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Lotus Pond - Being and Continuing

Chua Ek Kay (1947-2008)

A recipient of Singapore’s Cultural Medallion
Award, Chua is best known for bridging
Eastern and Western elements in his paintings.
He is the first Chinese ink painter to win the
UOB Painting Of The Year (“POY”)
Competition. Using Chinese ink as a medium,
Chua brings out the beauty and spirit of the
lotus at various periods of its life, capturing the
graceful movements of the lotus for posterity.
The UOB POY Competition and Exhibition is a
flagship event under the Bank’s corporate
social responsibility programme.
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Mission

United Overseas Bank Limited’s
mission is to be a premier

bank in the Asia-Pacific region,
committed to providing quality
products and excellent service.

UOB (China) will uphold this
mission and strive to achieve
the highest level of customer
satisfaction.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED
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The Board of Directors of the Company assures that the
information presented in this report is true, accurate and
complete. This report was passed at the Board of Directors
Meeting held on 1 April 2011.

The financial statements of the Company for Year 2010 were
audited by Ernst & Young Hua Ming Shanghai Branch in
accordance with the China Certified Public Accountants’
Independent Auditing Standards, and have obtained standard
auditors’ reports without any reserved opinions.

Board of Directors, United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

1 April 2011
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About United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
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uobchina.com.cn

United Overseas Bank (China) Limited (“UOB (China)”) is a
wholly-owned subsidiary of United Overseas Bank Limited,
Singapore (“UOB”). It was incorporated in the People’s Republic
of China on 18 December 2007 and officially commenced
business on 2 January 2008, marking a new chapter for UOB in
China.

Since the establishment of the first representative office in Beijing
in 1984, UOB has experienced stable development and growth.
To date, its network in China extends to eight branches and two
sub-branches across Beijing, Shanghai, Guangzhou, Shenzhen,
Xiamen, Chengdu, Shenyang and Tianjin.

UOB (China) offers a comprehensive range of foreign and local
currency banking products to corporations and individuals, which
include deposits, loans, project and trade financing, remittance,
guarantees and bills discounting, foreign currency exchange,
wealth management and treasury services.

For more information, visit uobchina.com.cn

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 3
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About United Overseas Bank Limited
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4 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

United Overseas Bank (“UOB”) was incorporated on 6 August
1935 as the United Chinese Bank. Founded by Datuk Wee Kheng
Chiang, the Bank catered mainly to the Fujian community in its
early years. The change of name was effected in 1965.

Over the past 76 years, UOB has grown from strength to strength.
Through a series of acquisitions, it is now a leading bank in Asia.
Besides Far Eastern Bank in Singapore, UOB’s major banking
subsidiaries in the region are United Overseas Bank (Malaysia),
United Overseas Bank (Thai), PT Bank UOB Buana and United
Overseas Bank (China). Today, the UOB Group has a network

of over 500 offices in 19 countries and territories in Asia Pacific,
Western Europe and North America.

UOB provides a wide range of financial services through its
global network of branches, offices, subsidiaries and associates:
personal financial services, private banking, commercial and
corporate banking, investment banking, corporate finance,
capital market activities, treasury services, futures broking,

asset management, venture capital management, insurance and
stockbroking services. UOB also has diversified interests in travel
and leasing.

In Singapore, UOB is a market leader in the credit card and
private residential home loan businesses. It is also a key player
in loans to small and medium enterprises. Its fund management
arm, UOB Asset Management, is one of Singapore's most
awarded fund managers with a growing regional presence.

UOB is rated among the world’s top banks by Moody’s Investors
Service, receiving B for financial strength, and Aal and Prime-1
for long-term and short-term bank deposits respectively.

UOB plays an active role in the community, focusing on children,
education and the arts. Its staff volunteerism programme was
initiated in 2007. Through the UOB Heartbeat Run/Walk, UOB has
raised funds for its named beneficiaries. UOB has also organised
the prestigious Painting Of The Year Competition and Exhibition
since 1982. In recognition of its contributions to the arts, UOB
was conferred the National Arts Council‘s Distinguished Patron of
the Arts Award for six consecutive years since 2005.

For more information, visit uobgroup.com
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Financial Highlights

2010

2009

Increase

(Decrease)
278 i & Operating result A RTT5T RMB'000 %
F BN Net interest income 305,996 362,177 (15.5)
FH R BE AW Net fee and commission income 23,017 15,735 46.3
EF\l W N &1t Total operating income 476,774 387,319 23.1
)\l £ F Total operating expenses 319,589 247,973 28.9
BEEERER S Impairment charges 39,396 41,420 4.9)
&\l FI3E Operating profit 117,789 97,926 20.3
FATFE Profit before tax 125,971 104,821 20.2
i EF5E Net profit after tax 92,993 79,176 17.5
# F=f11& Balance sheet ARt RMB'000 %
ARt Total assets 22,762,027 14,578,642 56.1
K IERER I #v2; Customer loans, net 9,533,099 9,393,993 1.5
&A1 Total liabilities 19,313,929 11,215,483 72.2
K W 772k Customer deposits 13,692,361 6,641,367 106.2
&R &1t Shareholders' equity 3,448,098 3,363,160 2.5
W %48#% Financial indicators % % % point
AAFEZ Return on average ordinary shareholders' equity 2.7 2.4 0.3
A FeFIEZ Return on average total assets 0.5 0.6 0.1
R AU EE Expenses/income ratio 67.0 64.0 3.0
FETHR ML ERN LS Net fee and commission income/total operating income 4.8 4.1 0.7
A F| BRIz Net interest margin 1.9 2.9 (1.0)
fE 52tk Loan-to-Deposit ratio el 146.0 (74.9)
AR HEFZE Non-performing loan ratio 2.9 4.0 (1.1)
% #% 78 3% & Non-performing loan coverage 101.0 78.4 22.6
HRAT R EIEHR Capital adequacy ratio
BIDRATERE Tier 1 CAR 37.0 36.0 1.0
AAFEEE Total CAR 39.2 37.3 1.9

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 5
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2010 was China’s year to shine again as it outpaced Japan as the
world’s second-largest economy. It saw GDP growth of 10.3%,
up from 9.2% in 2009. Along with strong economic growth,
inflation climbed to a two-year high, partly as a result of massive
credit expansion in the last two years. The Chinese authorities
tightened their monetary policies to manage inflationary pressure,
by raising reserve requirement ratios six times and interest rates
twice in 2010.

Against the backdrop of outstanding economic progress, UOB
(China) enjoyed good growth momentum during the year.

Delivering strong results

| am happy to report that in 2010, the Bank’s operating profit
increased 20.3% to RMB 117.8 million on the back of stronger
operating income and Net Profit After Tax rose 17.5% to

RMB 93.0 million.

Total gross loans grew 1.2% to RMB 9.8 billion at the end of
2010, while deposits increased by 106.2% to RMB 13.7 billion,
thus lowering the loan-to-deposit ratio to 71.7%. Assets quality
improved with NPL ratio declining to 2.9% at the end of last year,
down from 4% the previous year. The Bank maintained prudent
provisioning with NPL coverage ratio increasing to 101% as at
year end.

We ended 2010 with a stronger balance sheet and more
diversified revenue streams.

Connecting with customers
Banking is about partnering our customers for the long haul and
product innovation is crucial to meet their evolving demands.

In February 2010, the Bank obtained approval from the People’s
Bank of China to provide cross-border RMB settlement to
customers and act as RMB clearing bank for correspondent
banks. We continued to roll out an array of structured products
to meet the needs of individual and institutions. These initiatives
contributed to an increase in RMB business.

Our comprehensive suite of wealth management products have
been well received by the mid-to-high end consumer segment.
Our wealth management customer base more than doubled
and assets under management, encompassing savings, deposit
products, structured deposits and bancassurance, grew
substantially.

We also sharpened our industry specialisation to focus on key
industries and bring us closer to our customers. This resulted in
business activities in the corporate and commercial segments
contributing significantly to total earnings.
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Investing in talent

As UOB (China) looks ahead to the next phase of growth,
nurturing and retaining local talent is critical to the Bank’s
success. We have implemented programmes to equip our
people with the right skill-sets and mindsets. As part of the UOB
Group, our high performers also have opportunities for overseas
training to broaden their exposure and raise overall management
standards. We embarked on a local Management Associate
(“MA") programme and the pioneer batch of MAs will be deployed
to various divisions of the Bank in 2011.

2011 and beyond

UOB (China) marked the start of 2011 with the relocation of our
headquarters and Shanghai branch to fully occupy a new building
in the Lujiazui financial district in Pudong, Shanghai. This move
reaffirms our long-term commitment to China.

The Bank will continue to seize opportunities offered by a dynamic
market as China continues to prosper. China has released its
proposal on “Formulating the Twelfth Five-Year Programme (2011
to 2015) on National Economic and Social Development” with
the goal of improving people’s lives through strategic economic
restructuring. This entails expanding domestic consumption,
modernising agricultural practices and supporting industries of
emerging strategic importance. China’s continued progress,
even as most countries recover from the aftermath of the global
financial crisis, exemplifies the country’s economic strength and
potential.

We will continue to leverage the network, resources and
technology of the UOB Group to enhance customers’ experience
with the Bank. We will persist in our endeavours to deepen
customer relationships, create relevant and innovative products
and solutions, improve service quality and expand our distribution
channels.

UOB (China) will also harness the collective strength of the Group
to break new grounds in emerging industries and business
segments. Our regional vision is an integral element of our
commitment to support customers in their business expansion.

We are confident that UOB (China) will remain on a path of growth
in 2011.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 7
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Acknowledgement

| would like to express our appreciation to Mr Hua Sheng for his
contributions over the past three years as independent director.
He stepped down from the Board in December 2010 after his
tenure expired. At the same time, | would like to welcome Mr Zeng
Zhi Jie, who was appointed to the Board in October 2010 as an
independent director.

The Board of Directors is proud to have actively participated in
the achievements of the Bank. On behalf of the Board, | would
like to thank the management and all employees for their strong
contribution and commitment, and our customers for their
continued support.

Wee Ee Cheong
April 2011
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Registered Name
United Overseas Bank (China) Limited

Legal Representative
Wee Ee Cheong

Registered Office

Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan Road
Pudong New Area, Shanghai 200120
Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: uobchina.com.cn

Date of Incorporation
18 December 2007

Registration Authority
Shanghai Administration of Industry and Commerce

Registered Business Licence Number
310000400553992

Paid Up Share Capital
RMB 3,000,000,000

Shareholder (Founder)
United Overseas Bank Limited

Type of Company
Limited Company (Wholly Foreign-owned)

Tax Registration Number
310043669414723

Supervisor
Wee Cho Yaw

Board of Directors

Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Lee Chin Yong Francis

Chua Tian Chu

Tan Kian Huat (President & CEO)
Cham Tao Soon

Hua Sheng (retired on 27.12.10)
Zeng Zhi Jie

Executive Committee
Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman)
Lee Chin Yong Francis

Chua Tian Chu

Tan Kian Huat

Nominating and Remuneration Committee
Cham Tao Soon(Chairman)

Wee Ee Cheong

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Audit Committee

Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)
Lee Chin Yong Francis
Chua Tian Chu

Connected Transaction Control Committee
Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Chong Kim Khong William

Risk Management Committee
Cham Tao Soon (Chairman)

Lee Chin Yong Francis

Chua Tian Chu

Auditors
Ernst & Young Hua Ming (Shanghai Branch)
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Wee Ee Cheong

Chairman

Age 58. Mr Wee was appointed to the Board of Directors
(“Board”)on 17 September 2007 as the Chairman. He is also the
Chairman of the Bank’s Executive Committee and a member of
the Nominating and Remuneration Committee.

Mr Wee holds the position of Deputy Chairman and CEO of
United Overseas Bank (“UOB”). He joined UOB in 1979. He
served as the Deputy Chairman and President of UOB from
2000 to April 2007 and was appointed as Chief Executive Officer
(“CEQO”) on 27 April 2007.

He is a director of several UOB subsidiaries and affiliates,
including Far Eastern Bank, United Overseas Insurance, United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia), United Overseas Bank (Thai) Public
Company and United International Securities. He is also a
commissioner of PT Bank UOB Buana.

Mr Wee is the current Chairman of the Association of Banks in
Singapore. He serves as a director of the Institute of Banking &
Finance and chairs the Financial Industry Competency Standards
Steering Committee. He is a member of the Board of Governors
of the Singapore-China Foundation, Visa International Senior
Client Council, India-Singapore CEO Forum and Advisory Board
of the INSEAD East Asia Council and International Council. He is
also a director of Wee Foundation. Mr Wee is an honorary council
member of Singapore Chinese Chamber of Commerce & Industry.
He had previously served as Deputy Chairman of Housing &
Development Board, and a director of Port of Singapore Authority,
UOL Group and Pan Pacific Hotels Group.

He holds a Bachelor of Science (Business Administration) and a
Master of Arts (Applied Economics) from The American University,
Washington, DC.
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Lee Chin Yong Francis

Age 57. Mr Lee was appointed to the Board on 27 December
2007 as a non-executive director. He is also a member of
the Bank’s Executive, Nominating and Remuneration, Audit,
Connected Transaction Control and Risk Management
Committees.

Mr Lee is Senior Executive Vice President and Head of Group
Retail at United Overseas Bank (“UOB”). He joined UOB in 1980.
He leads the UOB Group’s retail businesses for consumers and
small business customers. Prior to his appointment in Singapore
in 2003, he was the Chief Executive Officer of United Overseas
Bank (Malaysia). Between 2003 and 2008, Mr Lee was the Head
of International and spearheaded the Group’s expansion in the
region. He was also responsible for the Bank’s consumer banking
business in Singapore and the region.

Mr Lee is a director of several UOB subsidiaries and affiliates,
including United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd, United Overseas
Bank (Thai) Public Company Limited, UOB Property Investments
Private Limited, UOB International Investment Pte Ltd,

UOB-Kay Hian Holdings Limited, Uni.Asia Capital Sdn Bhd,
Uni.Asia Life Assurance Bhd, President Hotel Sdn Bhd, HPL
Properties (Malaysia) Sdn Bhd, Grand Elite Sdn Bhd, Grand Elite
(Penang) Sdn Bhd and UOL Serviced Residences Sdn Bhd. He is
Vice President Commissioner of PT Bank UOB Buana.

He holds a Malaysia Certificate of Education and has more than
31 years of experience in the financial industry.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 11
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Chua Tian Chu

Age 52. Mr Chua was appointed to the Board on 6 June 2008
as a non-executive director. He is also a member of the Bank’s
Executive, Audit and Risk Management Committees.

Currently, Mr Chua is the Executive Vice President and Head

of the Global Financial Institutions Group, Global Markets and
Investment Management at United Overseas Bank (“UOB”). Prior
to that, he was the Head of Greater China, responsible for UOB’s
operations in Mainland China, Taiwan and Hong Kong. Mr Chua
joined UOB in 2007 as Executive Vice President, overseeing the
Bank’s international operations.

Mr Chua has held senior management positions in corporate
banking, real estate, and wealth management in Citibank and
Citigroup Asia Pacific Region. He was the Chief Executive Officer
and Managing Director of Orchard Parade Holdings Limited,
Singapore and the Executive Director and Business Development
Head at Far East Organization, Singapore.

Mr Chua also serves as a director of Evergrowing Bank Co.,Ltd., a
nation-wide joint-stock commercial bank in China.

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil) and a Master

of Business Administration from the National University of
Singapore. He also attended the Harvard Advanced Management
Programme at Harvard Business School.
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Tan Kian Huat

President & Chief Executive Officer

Age 53. Mr Tan was appointed to the Board on 6 June 2008 as an
Executive Director. He is also a member of the Bank’s Executive
Committee.

Mr Tan has been the President and Chief Executive Officer of
United Overseas Bank (China) since 6 May 2008. Prior to his
current appointment, he was a Senior Vice President in United
Overseas Bank (Malaysia).

In his 27 years in the banking industry, he has served as a Credit
Officer, Head of Credit, Branch Manager, Regional Manager and
Head of Business Banking.

Mr Tan holds a Bachelor of Science (Mechanical Engineering,

Hons) from the University of Leeds, UK, and a Master of Business
Administration from the University of Bradford, UK.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 13
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Cham Tao Soon

Age 71. Prof Cham was appointed to the Board on 27 December
2007 as an independent and non-executive director. He is also
the Chairman of the Bank’s Nominating and Remuneration,
Audit, Connected Transaction Control and Risk Management
Committees.

Prof Cham is an independent and non-executive director of United
Overseas Bank (“UOB”), and a director of UOB’s subsidiary,
namely, Far Eastern Bank. He is the Chairman of NSL Ltd, MFS
Technology and Singapore-China Foundation, and Deputy
Chairman of Singapore Press Holdings. He is a director of WBL
Corporation, Soup Restaurant Group and Singapore International
Foundation. He is a former director of Adroit Innovations, Keppel
Corporation, Land Transport Authority, TPA Strategic Holdings
and Robinson & Company, and former Chairman of Singapore
Symphonia Company.

Prof Cham is the Chancellor of SIM University and Chairman
of its Board of Trustees, and founding President of Nanyang
Technological University (1981-2002).

He holds a Bachelor of Engineering (Civil, Hons) from the
University of Malaya, a Bachelor of Science (Mathematics, Hons)
from the University of London and a Doctor of Philosophy (Fluid
Mechanics) from the University of Cambridge, UK. He is also a
Fellow of the Institution of Engineers, Singapore and Institution of
Mechanical Engineers, UK.
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Zeng Zhi Jie
Age 43. Mr Zeng was appointed to the Board on 26 October 2010
as an independent and non-executive director.

Mr Zeng is currently the General Manager & Managing Partner
of Kaixin Investment Co. Ltd and the Chairman of China Special
Article Logistics Company. Meanwhile, Mr Zeng serves as
director or independent director for six listed companies: Hunan
Talkweb Information System Co. Ltd, Chinasoft International Ltd,
Shanghai AJ Corporation, E-house, Vimicro and AutoNavi. In
addition, Mr Zeng serves as director in State Microelectronics
and other companies. Mr Zeng is also the co-chairman of
China Venture Capital Association, executive director of Asia
America MultiTechnology Association, China branch and a board
member of the 2005 Committee of Western Returned Scholars
Association, Chamber of Commerce of China.

Before joining Kaixin Investment Co. Ltd, Mr Zeng was Managing
Director of Walden International and mainly responsible for the
company’s venture investment in China and Asia. Prior to that,
Mr Zeng worked for Mitsubishi Corporation in Tokyo, Japan and
CITIC Pacific Ltd in Hong Kong.

Mr Zeng holds a Bachelor of Science in Economics from the

University of Nagasaki, Japan and a Master of Science in
Management from Stanford University.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 15
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UOB (China)’s new headquarters and Shanghai Branch are now located in the
Lujiazui financial district in Pudong, Shanghai.
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KERIT (HE) WEEBERELBBRGERE SR OEFTIIER .
UOB (China)’s management team lined up against the skyscrapers that define
the Lujiazui financial district in Pudong, Shanghai.

UOB (China) ended 2010 on a positive note, with
improved profitability and a stronger balance sheet. The
foundation of the bank’s progress lies in its firm focus on
providing customers with quality products and excellent
customer service.

Institutional Financial Services

Institutional Financial Services covers:

e Commercial Banking, which serves small and medium-sized
enterprises;

e Corporate Banking, which serves the large corporate groups
and multinational corporations; and

e Transaction Banking, which provides cash management
and trade services to all institutional clients including financial
institutions.

Commercial Banking

In line with UOB Group’s transformation objective to build a
premier bank in the Asia-Pacific region, a dedicated China
Commercial Banking unit was set up in 2010 to further entrench
our position as customers’ choice banker when they expand into
China. To enhance our capabilities in providing seamless cross-
border solutions to our customers, we will continue to strengthen
our partnership with our head office as well as group entities in
the region by further tapping on our strong regional franchise
network in Singapore and Southeast Asia.

During the year, a specialised Credit Analyst team was set up

to complement the services of our Relationship Managers to
improve marketing effectiveness and turnaround time of credit
process. We will continue to invest in and expand our valuable
human resource pool. We also seek to enhance our product
building programmes to build a sustainable commercial banking
business model in China.

As a new dedicated business segment, Commercial Banking

has performed reasonably well. Over the course of the year,

loan assets (including contingent exposure) and deposit growth
were 46% and 99% respectively. Fee and commission income
achieved a remarkable 183% growth rate in 2010 as compared to
2009.
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UOB (China) celebrated with our customers at a customer appreciation event organised by the Corporate Banking division on 9th April.

b R1T

ENRIEA KR ZEZHNTELT, DWRITEE2010FH4EH ST
BEHEER. RNEERANELHR, RULTHRSMNSERBR
HE, BREFAKNEE S SEK. BetEBTEMESER A
QEERIEIIERAT, RAEIT TATUEIHER, T ETREUT=
KRBT : BRRREERBTI; B REMRIRTL,; IR
RAFRERIT . TUWHENEEGHFRMNEMAEF D, F
EREAEBRHETWRITIEBRS, BRiEthBHEENEF
RERBR TR,

20102 AR MEFRUEESRRMH RIS E—F. BEIFEMA
ROEHEMNBRIEFT, RIEL T EMIFFOART = RFRS,
MR ARBEAR TR BRFZBEER, THEARTHER
RELEE. BEUARTIHTRZIHITEE KR EMEINART
FRESITHHRERE, BT — BRI —F.

2010, WRITHULERFREFVRESE. EINBEERAE
AW IHFHNAERRNEH, BWRITHERRLFIEK83%, &
FLBR TR BRUSHRRERBANE, BRNBIMRHEE
BEARFZEL>TATTFAART. FABEELZ~RHBSIN, IF
B BB NIE T 133%.

REARK, KERIT (PE) HEWRITHMEGHLEE AERANTE,
AEEERPEMRE LXK EHEETT RS UREE R BEER
BT Ko

Corporate Banking

With the dynamic growth in the Chinese economy, Corporate
Banking continued to invest in providing quality services and
financial solutions as part of our commitment to helping our
clients chart their business growth. To enhance our customer
solutions, we initiated three industry specialisations, namely
Consumer and Food & Beverage; Real Estate & Infrastructure;
and Energy & Resources. Such specialised coverage enhanced
our customer focus, and enabled us to provide industry-specific
advisory services. This was essential in accelerating our delivery
of time-critical solutions to our clients across China.

2010 marked a year that saw substantial progress in the
internationalisation of Renminbi (“BRMB”), as part of the
government’s initiatives to promote RMB outside China. In view
of this, we also rolled out new RMB products and services to
encourage the use of RMB between trading partners across
different markets, particularly in RMB cross-border trade
settlement. We expect this trend to continue in 2011, as
RMB-denominated trade volume increases and more offshore
RMB products are developed in various markets.

In 2010, Corporate Banking continued to perform well. Through
the enhanced partnership with our product specialists and the
extensive marketing campaign, our deposit business has grown
by 83% year-on-year. This has effectively improved our
loan-to-deposit ratio. While we have moderate growth in our
financing business, we have been able to reduce non-performing
loans by RMB 70 million through active management. With more
product launches, we have also increased our non-interest
income by 133%.

Moving forward, UOB (China)’s Corporate Banking will further
leverage the Group-wide platform, particularly our Greater China
and Southeast Asian franchise, to comprehensively serve our
customers’ growing needs.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 19
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Transaction Banking

Transaction Banking continues to be a key driver for UOB (China),
with on-the-ground expertise in China. The team comprises

cash management sales, trade sales, implementation managers
and product specialists, who work together to provide effective
end-to-end solutions that support customers’ supply-chain
management needs.

Our direct clearing membership, supported by our domestic
branch network in China has enabled us to provide
comprehensive collections and payables services to ensure
effective cash flow management for our customers. For trade, we
have trade product specialists providing advisory service to help
customers structure trade transactions and to mitigate the risk
associated with cross-border trade.

Following the launch of the Chinese Yuan Cross-Border Trade
Settlement pilot programme in July 2009, we supported the
growing demand for cross-border trade transactions, offering
Chinese Yuan settlement bank services in China. The service
has since been launched in Singapore, Malaysia, Hong Kong and
Thailand.

We continue to invest in enhancing Business Internet Banking
platform, our market-leading, web-based channel that provides
customers with added convenience and operating efficiency.

During the year, we saw a two-and-a-half-time rise in the number
of clients transacting with us via internet banking and overall cash
transaction volume doubled.

Supported by strong management and product expertise within
the Transaction Banking team, we will continue to make strategic
investments for meeting the growing needs of our customers.
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A new Privilege Banking Centre in Lujiazui was opened in January 2011 to
better serve clients.
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We continued to improve on customer service delivery to strengthen the brand
experience that uniquely distinguishes UOB.

Personal Financial Services

The tightening of monetary policy by the central bank and
property cooling measures by the government had a marked
impact on the banking industry. Personal Financial Services
continued to make breakthroughs in 2010 in spite of challenging
economic circumstances in China. Amidst these developments,
the Bank’s performance remained positive, recording growth in
both assets and new businesses.

Wealth Management Business

In 2010, UOB (China) increased efforts to sharpen our business
focus by continuing to concentrate on product innovation and
the intermediary business to improve our overall profitability and
expand our revenue source.

The intermediary business achieved new heights in the year,
enhancing UOB (China) brand recognition and the trust that
consumers have in us. Against 2009 figures, fixed deposits
grew by 68%, whilst structured products grew by 700%. Within
the same period, the volume of our Bancassurance business
expanded exponentially to reach RMB 179 million. We grew
our customer base significantly by 140%, with high net-worth
customers increasing by 300%.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 21
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Product innovation and marketing are key to the development of
the wealth management business. We have always placed great
importance on having a complete range of products to meet our
customers’ evolving needs. We provide a comprehensive suite
of long-term and short-term as well as local and foreign currency
products, to meet the increasingly sophisticated financial needs
of our customers. At the same time, comprehensive on-the-job
training is provided to sales staff to enhance their knowledge

of regulatory and compliance guidelines. This contributes
towards improving efficiency and providing quality service to our
customers.

Broad space for growth in the future

In September 2010, UOB (China) obtained regulatory approval

to open Xintiandi sub-branch, which will further expand our
business coverage and strengthen our presence in Shanghai. This
strategically located sub-branch will be a flagship outlet catering
to the needs of high net-worth individuals in Shanghai. We
anticipate this sub-branch to be operationally ready by mid-2011.

In 2011, UOB (China) will continue to optimise organization
structure, improve profitability, and actively fulfill social
responsibilities. We are committed to providing quality financial
products and premier customer service to lay a solid foundation
for sustainable growth and development.
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Our Home Loan allows you to enjoy attractive interest rates and flexible financing options tailored to your needs.
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Secured Lending Business

In 2010, our mortgage business, in terms of asset size, grew by
152% and our mortgage customer base expanded by 151%.
These were achieved in spite of the tight measures by the
government to curb excessive asset growth in the property
market. Our portfolio remains stable with zero non-performing
loans as we continue to develop our assets lending business
prudently in line with government policy.

We expanded our mortgage business to Beijing and Chengdu
successfully in 2010. Moving forward, efforts will be made to
expand our coverage to Shenyang, Guangzhou and Shenzhen in
the next 12 months. We will be looking to replicate our successful
Shanghai business model to these new cities as we continue to
grow the secured lending business.
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Global Markets & Investment Management

In 2010, Global Markets & Investment Management (“GMIM”)
China saw an increase in trading volume and product launches,
resulting in significant growth of its trading and sales capabilities.

As a locally incorporated bank, UOB (China) is licensed to provide
a wide range of hedging and investment products for both
corporates as well as individuals. These innovative products
helped strengthen our relationships with the medium sized
corporate segment.

Adding to that, GMIM also increased its dealings with onshore
counterparties, and expanded local currency business by
leveraging on the internationalisation of RMB cross-border
transactions.

In terms of funding, GMIM China diversified its funding source
by signing committed facility arrangements with strategic
partners, one of which was the RMB 300 million line provided
by Evergrowing Bank. Separately, we have also signed National
Association of Financial Market Institutional Investors Master
Agreement with the local banks so as to boost our access to the
market.

GMIM has been actively seeking business tie-ups with
counterparties in China. These include RMB Foreign Exchange
Forwards and Onshore Investment Collaboration agreements with
Evergrowing Bank, as well as deposits collection from insurance
companies.
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Technology & Operations

UOB (China)’s Technology & Operations (“T&0”) division is the
core engine supporting the Bank’s operational and information
technology requirements. In line with the Bank’s expanding
businesses, T&O’s operation centres were realigned and
structured into Wholesale and Retail T&O to provide focused
operational support to their respective businesses.

Wholesale T&O supports the Bank’s corporate and commercial
operational requirements in areas of Loans, Treasury, as well as
Trade and Remittance.

Retail T&O supports the Bank’s Channels, as well as our Debit
Card and ATM Network Operations.

To better support the Bank’s initiatives, our Systems & Network
Infrastructure and Project Management teams were integrated
under the Technology Service Department. This created optimal
synergies in fulfilling our Bank’s technological needs.

In February 2010, we obtained People’s Bank of China’s approval
to participate in the country’s RMB cross-border trade settlement,
enabling UOB (China) to provide customers with cross border
trade settlements in RMB, and act as RMB clearing bank for
correspondent banks.

Together with Personal Financial Service division, we have been
proactively driving our Bank’s Debit Card and ATM Network
initiative, with a target to go live in 2011.

During the year, UOB (China) successfully completed three major
projects:

1. We launched the Local Regulatory Reporting System, a joint
initiative with Finance & Corporate Services Department to
automate and improve the accuracy and timeliness of our local
reporting;

2. We also implemented the Dual Currency Deposit system,
to improve operational efficiency and service levels through
automation of pricing, order taking and derivation of underlying
FX positions, and strengthening the management of our Bank'’s
exposures; and

3. This culminated in the successful relocation of our Core
Banking Systems to China, in compliance with local regulation
requirements and mitigated cross-border risk.

These measures enable greater efficiency and productivity in

our processes, and contribute towards enhancing the banking
experience for customers of UOB (China).
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Horse riding was one of the highlights of the staff trip to Inner Mongolia in June.

Fs = -~

KEERIT (FE) 2010FMRITEANESIZ—: KBEWLEREE.
The trip to Changbai Mountain was one of the team building programmes in 2010.

9058 £ T [8) 33 it i 46 4R B9 B DA & TR
Staff participated in a team building event to increase employee engagement.

ANHE
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BEE W SERIEIEIC, KRERIT (PE) MARBEBERSHIT,
FFEMREIARIBREAEAREENH ATITEENSERETE
THSRHOE L

RERT (ME) FAFTATHEERRNMFZEE., HEREMLT
WEIHBE—RNAS, BHRHFENABIFNEANS, UK
WRAIABITHELRE. BT EFBBAFTRL, RNEANER
THSSRES) . (REED ARIBLK, HATE2010FX 28R &7 21T
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Human Resources

Since local incorporation in 2007, UOB (China) has grown from
strength to strength. Along with the business expansion, UOB
(China) increased its recruitment efforts, and the steady growth
in our staff strength is a reflection of the importance we place in
securing a strong talent pool for the Bank’s growth in China.

UOB (China) is committed to the development of its human
resources, and it is a priority for us to maintain talent retention
while promoting the development of our employees to support
expansion within China. To assimilate new members and raise
the level of competence of our employees, UOB (China) had
invested close to ten thousand hours in employees’ training and
development. These include professional ethics, technical training,
leadership and other soft-skills. In addition, the employees

were also encouraged to participate in the Chinese Banking
Professional Examination. About 200 employees applied for these
examinations in 2010.
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UOB (China) conducted the Management Associate recruitment roadshow in Fudan University in October.

NEHANAREE, WERRAA S, E2010FKERIT (FE)
ARAREXNEHTE-RBERFNETE, ARESBELFHF
B, 1REEAMRAFEMIERAFMEEXRF, KER
17 (FE) OEEBRIIED B FRAHOR15 AR ST EIIFER
B, WA LT AA FERITARKM R RIT TEESRAEM .

RERT (FE) ARBTFENERMEHIRE, EFEFRT
ZMEXEINTE . BRTEESIANSITHRANZINIEN, HAT
B2 REFHTHESRAKAITIES, HIREMLT R TRIERTEH
TF.

KRERT (hE) BIIMBANRBROER, MNMERMAUATRE
A B B AR

The Bank also launched its first Management Associate
Programme to attract outstanding graduates from top universities
such as Peking University and Fudan University. UOB (China)’s
Management Associate Programme is a 15-month developmental
programme that provides on-job-training and mentoring of young
talents for the banking industry.

UOB (China) drew on the Group Talent and Organisation
Development’s expertise to leverage off the latter’s award-winning
developmental programmes. Representatives from the Group
Office were also invited to China to conduct specialists training
and provide guidance to our employees. The Bank also started
seconding its employees for training attachments in Group
Human Resources as another avenue to develop its employees

By strengthening its human resources development, UOB (China)
seeks to optimise its talent management.
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Social Responsibility

UOB (China) believes in corporate social responsibility and we
want to make a difference in the communities in which we work
and live.

The Bank donated RMB 200,000 to the Red Cross Society of
China (“RCSC”) in support of humanitarian disaster relief efforts
in the wake of the Qinghai earthquake which caused massive
destruction and loss of lives. We want to do our bit to help the
survivors resume their lives by supporting RCSC with their relief
activities and reconstruction works.

Our sponsorships focus on two major platforms: cultural and
visual arts. We support community and cultural events through
sponsorship of grassroots events in local communities. We

also believe that healthy, vibrant communities are a direct

result of investing in creative vision and artistic talent. Hence,

by participating in arts exhibitions, we hope to support the
development of the arts in China and at the same time enhanced
the quality of life in the community by bringing the arts to more
people.

UOB (China) looks forward to opportunities to carry out our
corporate social responsibility efforts, and we will continue to play
an active and meaningful role in the community.
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Corporate Governance

EELAERENA AR TRELENRA, AAERIT (FE)
IRAERRRSNARBERE. EMRARRERGN, HITFEET
(PEAREMEARZE) « (FEARKMEFWRITE)  (FEA
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T (#H1E2010£12831H)

UOB (China) is committed to uphold the highest standards of
corporate governance which the Board sees as fundamental to
sustaining the Bank’s business. In setting the Bank’s corporate
governance framework, the Bank takes into account the
provisions of:

a) the PRC Company Law;

b) the PRC Commercial Bank Law;

c) the PRC Regulations on Administration of Foreign-funded
Banks, Rules for Implementing the PRC Regulations on
Administration of Foreign-funded Banks; and

d) other relevant regulatory requirements.

Board of Directors

There are six directors® on the Board, two of which are
independent directors. The size and composition of the Board is
in compliance with regulatory requirements and the provisions of
Articles of Association. The Board members as at 31 December
2010 are:

#a7 T3 £ RE AN JEEH
Name Gender Age Position Current term of office
BN S 58 BEERK/AMITES 201049 F17HZE201359H 16H
Wee Ee Cheong Male Chairman/Non-executive 17 September 2010 to 16 September 2013

=R 3 57 FEITES 2010412827 B E20134 12 526 H

Lee Chin Yong Francis Male Non-executive 27 December 2010 to 26 December 2013
R £ 52 FITES 20086 A6 H E201146H5H

Chua Tian Chu Male Non-executive 6 June 2008 to 5 June 2011

MR = 53 BATESBITKIREFHITE) 200846 H6H ZE20114E6 A5H

Tan Kian Huat Male Executive (President & CEQO) 6 June 2008 to 5 June 2011

EiEF 2 71 JIIES 2010412827 B E20134 1226 H
Cham Tao Soon Male Independent 27 December 2010 to 26 December 2013
BZA 2 43 JRITEE 2010F10A26 H £2013410H25H
Zeng Zhi Jie Male Independent 26 October 2010 to 25 October 2013

I EEEAE T (EH: 2007FE12H27HE20104%12826H)
F2010FE12 A27 X HAEHEMT. &2 ARFLE2010F10 526 AHWE
EARATMIESE, HEBRAKT20104F11 A18A LR EEITIIA
BEHERS IIERER®RE.

* Dr Hua Sheng’s (term of office 27 December 2007 to 26
December 2010) stepped down as independent directer on 27
December 2010. Mr Zeng Zhi Jie was appointed as independent
director of the Bank on 26 October 2010 and his qualification

as independent director of the Bank was approved by CBRC
Shanghai on 18 November 2010.
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20104, HATHBAEFZZWIR, SWHNAERERF. HEAL.
WERF. RARF. EFERUHNELREFRENSEETEOR
BREARKMEBEREAN (RAER) HAEXRERK. EFR
SWILRBBRTEESWBRT, SVEREKR. X

MUTABRESESWHERER:

1. 2010F E—REF W T HEIA24AELBAF, 2FEET
BT ARREW . SWHBHME T HAT2009F ELHITM SRS 2010
FMEMW SRR, BT HAT20100 B ERIIMBH TG,
WETEESTRETUERZHRE. EEENTECRERITAR
REAEHBITRES.

2. 2010F EREF W T UESABHAAELBAT, FTEES
HEFE T2 SWUIRTREFTHNE-FEVSRE. EFE2T
REZWERCHREREEERNIMHEOR, A TR THERES
BEEF2010F5 A HATHITI AR ER B

3. 2010FE=REHF2IWTHFRA12HAELBAHA, AEESY
HET W WEBHET BATERIT ALK B WA HTH
SHENESEN, T REFERHTNE_FEUSRE. E=22T
BEVERZMREREEERHNIHELR, THANETRERES
EBEER2010F5 ANFATHITINARENREMNEXELTE,
B T2EERKRKRBIERTE, AT HATEH ARMENRIT
BIREM—EXRIKZ S, HIHHET KX F2009F 2 A FRAVEIRE

4, 2010FEF A EESSWTHEN A10RAE LERTT, BRTEXK
HERNSEHE, Bz ANEEREFTRARE ST T2010E11 518HIKF
ERM S EBUERROETMAREHEN, EREEHHE TSN, &
WENHETEESRETVERSFRMENER, W T REH
HHE=ZFEMERE. EELTERLREVERSHBERERER
TECHR

30 UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED

In 2010, the Board met four times. The convening, discussion,
voting and resolution procedures of the meetings, number of
directors present and the content of resolutions made during the
meetings are in line with the requirements of relevant PRC laws
and the Articles of Association. The minutes of the meetings,
which are true and complete, are kept by the Company Secretary.

The detailed information of the abovementioned Board meetings
is as follows:

1. The first meeting in 2010 was held on 24 March in Shanghai.
All directors were present. The meeting reviewed and approved
the Audited Financial Results for 2009, 2010 Budget and Business
Plan, appointed the external auditors for 2010 and reviewed
reports from the Bank’s management and board committees and
the report on self-assessment of corporate governance of the
Bank.

2. The second meeting in 2010 was held on 25 May in Shanghai.
All directors were present. The meeting acknowledged the
unaudited financial results of first quarter of 2010, reviewed
reports from the Bank’s management and board committees
and noted the progress of CBRC on-site inspection of the Bank’s
headquarters and relevant branches in May 2010.

3. The third meeting in 2010 was held on 12 August in
Shanghai. All directors were present. The meeting reviewed
and approved authorised signatories for bank account opening
and transactions, acknowledged the unaudited financial results
of second quarter of 2010, reviewed reports from the Bank’s
management and board committees, noted and discussed the
findings of CBRC on-site inspection of the Bank in May 2010 and
the Bank’s proposed rectification plans, reviewed changes of
terms and conditions for two material connected transactions,
ratified one connected transaction approved before the Bank’s
local incorporation and reviewed and approved the errata to the
Bank’s 2009 Annual Report.

4. The fourth meeting in 2010 was held on 19 November in
Shanghai. All directors were present except for Mr Chua Tian Chu
who was absent due to a prior business engagement and

Mr Zeng Zhi Jie whose qualification as independent director of the
Bank was approved by CBRC Shanghai on 18 November 2010.
The meeting reviewed and approved the revisions to the Terms

of References for Board and its committees, acknowledged

the unaudited financial results of third quarter of 2010, reviewed
reports from the Bank’s management and board committees.
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In addition, eight Board resolutions were made by circulation in

AR 2010. The details are as follows:
FSs RIWE EERH
Number Resolution Matters Resolution Date
1 o g s . o T s =
KEZHEREMRE S B HARBRAF 2010F2H22H
Extension of facility to Connected Party: Shenyang Summer Palace Property Management Co.Ltd 22 February 2010
2 I R SAT 20104 H15H
Establishment of Shanghai Xintiandi Sub-branch 15 April 2010
3 KBRS FEHEN- MR S B AR BRA R
201048H31H
Change of Terms and Covenants of Connected Party: Shenyang Summer Palace Property Management
31 August 2010
Co.Ltd
4 s o . NN —
KB 5 EHBN- KR ENFEFMHRBRAF 201048 A31H
Change of Terms and Covenants of Connected Party: Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Development Co.Ltd 31 August 2010
5 . A —
REERFTI — & RES 201048H31H
Recommendation of Reappointment of Director - Mr Wee Ee Cheong 31 August 2010
6 . . .
EEMERIESE—BIARES 20104108 18H
Recommendation of Appointment of New Independent Director - Mr Zeng Zhi Jie 18 October 2010
7 N N e N
HEERETI—ZRE. BEFES 2010411 H6H
Recommendation of Reappointment of Director — Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong and Mr Cham Tao Soon 6 November 2010
8

T E BITA e ITE LA Ar
Change of operating premise for Headquarter office and Shanghai Branch

20104E12 824 H
24 December 2010
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Board Committees

The Board has five committees, namely Executive Committee
(“EXCQ?”), Connected Transactions Control Committee (“CTCC”),
Audit Committee (“AC”), Nominating and Remuneration
Committee (“NRC”) and Risk Management Committee (“RMC”).
Four committees, namely CTCC, AC, NRC and RMC, are chaired
by independent director, Professor Cham Tao Soon.

(1) Executive Committee

a.

The EXCO members are: Wee Ee Cheong (Chairman),
Francis Lee Chin Yong, Chua Tian Chu, Tan Kian Huat.

EXCQO’s main responsibilities are:

to take charge of the Bank’s overall business operation,
including making internal policies, monitoring the progress for
executing business plans and approving relevant credit limits
or facilities; and

to manage all human resource matters of the Bank (except
for the matters pertaining to President & CEO, Deputy CEO
and Deputy President).

EXCO meets as frequently as may be necessary, at least
once a month to fulfill the abovementioned responsibilities.

In 2010, EXCO met twenty-three times.

(2) Connected Transactions Control Committee

a.

<

CTCC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Francis
Lee Chin Yong, William Chong Kim Khong.

CTCC’s main responsibilities are:

to formulate and administer the connected transactions
management rules;

to manage connected transactions and control the risks
therein;

to examine non-material connected transactions, and

to review and recommend material connected transactions
for Board approval.

In 2010, CTCC met one time. The details of the meeting are
depicted in the following page.



Fs SWEERF FrE et iE

Number Summary Meeting Agenda Meeting Date

1 a) WERFHERES LBKRER2010F5 ANFTHITNFRENMET XK ZERNABTURE 2010F8H12H
KEUFR 12 August 2010

Noted CBRC'’s on-site inspection results in May 2010 with regard to management of Connected

Transactions and proposed rectification plans
b) BIWHLE T IHRIT RN 5 EIRBURAIELT
Approved revisions to the Connected Transactions Management Policy of Bank
FBOARTSRIT RS AR IR A SRITRTR EN—E— R XBKR 5

o

Ratified one non-material Connected Transaction entered into by the Bank before local incorporation

o

B RATREIARME RITIIR EN - EEARKR A RTEERINA

Reviewed and recommended one material Connected Transaction entered into by the Bank before

local incorporation for the Board'’s ratification
HIFESEAKERZ SHERMATNERIHERESEHE

o

Reviewed and recommended changes in terms and conditions of two Connected Transactions for Board

approval

f) BINRITREZSRIEL (BZE2010F6H30H)

Acknowledged the outstanding balances for Connected Transactions of the Bank as at 30 June 2010

HIHE TRITHOREB S 28 (B Z2010546H30H)

Q

Approved the list of Connected Parties (disclosed by Insiders as of 30 June 2010) for announcement

within the Bank

20104, kB ZERHIERSTBENTES AL T20URI, #¥48  In addition, two CTCC resolutions were made by circulation in 2010.

BT The details are as follows:

FS RWET ZE[TE

Number Resolution Matter Resolution Date

1 BITHRATREARZ 5 EHEUR 20102 H5H
Revisions to Connected Transactions Management Policy of Bank 5 February 2010

2 KERSEE-ILHE S B HRBRAF 201042 H5H

Extension of facility to Connected Party: Shenyang Summer Palace Property Management Co. Ltd

5 February 2010

(3) HitZERE (3) Audit Committee
a. ZREMRA: BER (£FF) =Rk, BXIK a. AC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Francis Lee

Chin Yong, Chua Tian Chu.
b. BUZRSHFEMEMNT:

o  FHMNBEITARREEEHEZATICRITHMZHERIER; b. AC’s main responsibilities are:

o BERNFMMINBEITIREE, SFEEARTIRANBEITUMEE o  toreview or discuss with the external auditors and the
SRTEEA, EAABEITAINBE TR Tt AR Management regarding the financial performance of the
BEITHREEE. Bank; and

e toreview the internal and external audit performance,

c. 2010%F, HITERASHBFSWAR, SWERFER T, including but not limited to nominating external auditor(s)
for appointment by the Board, evaluating the performance
of internal and external auditor(s), the audit fees and the
resignation or dismissal of the external auditor(s)

c. In 2010, AC met four times. The details are depicted in the

following page.
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Fs SWEERNE
Number Summary Meeting Agenda

FrEmfiE
Meeting Date

1 a) BHIRAN T 20094 BEIT S RIHERES AL
Reviewed and endorsed external audit results for 2009 and recommended it for Board approval
b) $#&& T2010FE BN H MM R EE <L
Nominate Public Accountants (Auditors) for appointment by the Board for 2010
o) T 2009F 8 XA HE T 4R
Reviewed internal audit results for 2009
d) BEIHEE T SR I I RIFI2010F F EE T I &I
Approved proposed strategic audit plan & annual plan for 2010
e) HLET2010F MBI EBIITNE
Approved the Internal Audit Division budget for 2010
) THTEBRERS CcFmsd EEsingE ARITRERE T T/EE LY
Noted guidelines on strengthening internal audit of local-incorporated foreign banks issued by CBRC

Shanghai
g) AT/ CEIIFEHRS

Reviewed report on fraud/attempted fraud cases

h) 7T RIANITHRE

Reviewed report on employee misconduct

20103 H24H
24 March 2010

2 a) W T HEXATMEITHER
Reviewed internal audit results
b) BH T #IE/ESIEE SRS

Reviewed report on fraud/attempted fraud cases

o T RIMNHITARSE

Reviewed report on employee misconduct

2010F5H25H
25 May 2010

3 a) HE THAXAREITER
Reviewed internal audit results
b) BH T #E/ R EE SRS

Reviewed report on fraud/attempted fraud cases

o WY RIMNHITARE

Reviewed report on employee misconduct

20108 H12H
12 August 2010

4 a) B THAXAEPEITLE
Reviewed internal audit results

b) BEIFFHE T 2011 F E SN E EE I T &
Reviewed and approved strategic & annual audit plan for 2011
o) EEIFFHLET AEE TR J2011 FEE
Reviewed and approved the Internal Audit Division budget for 2011

d) T HE/EERIFE RS

Reviewed report on fraud/attempted fraud cases

e) W T RINHITARE

Reviewed report on employee misconduct

201011 5194
19 November 2010
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(4) REEFHERS (4) Nominating and Remuneration Committee
a. ERSWA. BElF (FF) R, F=Rx a. NRC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Wee Ee
Cheong, Francis Lee Chin Yong
b. RENFMERSHEZMANT:
e HMEZSNATEZUVEZEARASEEMEZEA, HITES. 1TKFE b, NRC’s main responsibilities are:
BHITE. BEFEITEUNLEIITRKEFTESHEEARNFH o  to make recommendations for the appointments or

FIEFREEEZSIM, reappointments of members of the Board and its
o BIU—EFMINSIUENESZSSNERNE. EESTRES committtees; devise a framework of remuneration for
REMTMAMITKEEFEIITERNERD . Directors, President & CEO, Deputy CEO and Deputy
President for the full Board’s approval; and
c. 2010%F, RELFWERSBASWN—K, SWERFNT: e to establish a mechanism for the formal assessment on the

effectiveness of the Board as a whole and the contribution of
the Board’s various committees and the performance of the

President & CEO

c. In 2010, NRC met one time. The details are as follows:

FS SWARE Fr&riE
Number Summary Meeting Agenda Meeting Date
1 a) W 72009 ENESRSEUNERBIITNER 20104E5 8250

Reviewed the results of the performance evaluation for the Board and individual directors for 2009 25 May 2010
b) IWitHET N EFZS PR ENEES SR EFBIRITNEIEREIT

Considered and approved the revisions to the Performance Evaluation Mechanism for the Board

and individual directors
c) T A TEEEHFMISHEERK

Noted the latest regulatory updates on the Bank management’s remuneration

20104, HITREANFMERSLBENEZN I, ME THIIUR  Inaddition, four NRC resolutions were made by circulation in

W, HFABERNT: 2010. The details are as follows:
= RILET ZFEM I

Number Resolution Matters Resolution Date

1 HEERFTI—H &S 201048 H25H
Recommendation of Reappointment of Director - Mr Wee Ee Cheong 25 August 2010

2 WEMERIES— B AES 20104108 4H
Recommendation of Appointment of New Independent Director - Mr Zeng Zhi Jie 4 October 2010

3 HEERETI—FRRES 2010411 A4H
Recommendation of Reappointment of Director - Mr Francis Lee Chin Yong 4 November 2010

4 HEERETI—REGFES 2010411 A4H
Recommendation of Reappointment of Director - Mr Cham Tao Soon 4 November 2010
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(6) XNEEBEERS (5) Risk Management Committee
a. ZRSMA BERF (FF) , =hRx, EXWK a. RMC members are: Cham Tao Soon (Chairman), Francis Lee
Chin Yong, Chua Tian Chu

b. Efiéi I ZEREEIN T

J EFI@J_L EIRMEE. BRMXRZESEE, FRXEESINE b. RMC’s main responsibilities are:

o HENEEERANEIMEEREESSHMENSIEFIEE, e to review and recommend risk management strategies,

e TEIRH. HE. WEMEGESFXRHNERES, Eﬁﬁﬂﬁfﬁﬂlh policies and risk tolerance for the Board’s approval.
SR (BFER. X, 7E. ASTRR. BF. 58, & o 1o oversee the establishment and operation of risk
MIZHBARS) NS EMEE, management system that is consistent with approved

e HEE EE}:' KT XS 2R & L e HLE TR A XS M5 12 89 strategies and policies.

TEERE e o review and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of

J EEHHEEA?ﬁi#?ETEE AR ENGEGREE risk management structure including framework, policies,

methodologies, human resources, processes, information,

c. 2010%F, XBHEEASHBFSWA, SWERFNT: infrastructure and systems, in identifying, measuring,

monitoring and controlling the various types of risks.

e 1o review management’s periodic reports on risk exposures,
risk portfolio composition and the management, monitoring
and control of risks.

e toreport directly to the Board on a regular basis and highlight
any adverse risk events or trends for the Board’s attention.

c. In 2010, RMC met four times. The details are as follows:

Fs SWFERR Fr&HtiE

Number Summary Meeting Agenda Meeting Date

1 a) THRXKRERERSINENE 20103H24H

Noted the Terms and Reference for the Risk Management Committee 24 March 2010
b) MINAFHEERSENKRERSENERSRE
Acknowledged report from the ALCO & RMCC
c) HINRFIANKEE TIRRE
Reviewed and acknowledged risk management reports
d) B HRIA20094F B Ml S £E MR
Reviewed and acknowledged Annual BCM Attestation 2009
e) HIL K FIA20094 E XK B BT RS
Reviewed and acknowledged Annual Risk Self Assessment Report 2009
2 a) MINAFARERSENREESENERSRE 201045 25H
Acknowledged report from the ALCO & RMCC 25 May 2010
b) BN ABIARE EIE TIER &
Reviewed and acknowledged risk management reports
3 a) MIANAFRRERSENREESENERSRE 20108H12H

Acknowledged report from the ALCO & RMCC
b) S EFIARNE EE TIERE
Reviewed and acknowledged risk management reports

12 August 2010

4 a) MINAFARERSENREESENERSRE
Acknowledged report from the ALCO & RMCC
b) BN ABIAREEIE TIERE
Reviewed and acknowledged risk management reports

2010411 B19H
19 November 2010
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KERT (FE) RUE—4, ARRER, DERFHERRE
4. WEOBEHA KEERM (ATER) WAE.

BEMNBRNEERRE:

o WMTRITME,

o NEZE. BABEARBHAEENE (ARERE) BITART
BEHYIE;

o [LEEERS. SHEEARITARERT.
FERIEERANEEREG;

o RIEB (AELE) RBFFEFMHNE, WEE. SREEAR
REIFIAZE,

PRZR T2 EoAb R 248

REHA, EFZTRIFEETRETLVERZZW, MHERER (F
EARKAMERRZER) M (RAER) SHE, MMETHEEZM
BREEERBEENIRE. KR EBIITNERENTERE.
HERTEESZAE. FE. ¥FERFE LROBITLENXIL
EIBERHNAN, MRTHEERBRL. MR EENSREEA
ROERIER . EFIENRIBRMG EERT T HE.

Supervisor

The Bank has one Supervisor, who is appointed by the Bank’s
shareholder. The present Supervisor is Mr Wee Cho Yaw. The
appointment of Supervisor is in compliance with regulatory
requirements and the Articles of Association.

The main responsibilities and powers of the Supervisor include:

e inspecting the accounts of the Bank;

e supervising and correcting the act of any director or senior
executive which is in violation of laws, regulations or these
Articles;

e preventing the Board or any senior executive from acting in
such a way that may prejudice the lawful rights and interests
of the Bank, the Shareholder and other interested parties,
particularly the depositors; and

e commencing legal proceedings against any director or senior
executive in accordance with the PRC Company Law and
other applicable laws and regulations.

In 2010, the Supervisor was invited to observe Board meetings
and meetings of board committees and has duly performed

his responsibility of supervising the Board and the senior
management strictly according to the PRC Company Law and

the Articles of Association. By participating in discussion on
management reports and reviewing the monthly, quarterly and
yearly operation and risk management reports, the Supervisor
oversaw operations, finance, directors’ and management’s
performance as well as the policies and mechanisms approved by
the Board.
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(1) 2010EMIIEEHFEEESHIER

Performance of Independent Directors

The Bank has two independent directors as of 31 December
2010, i.e. Professor Cham Tao Soon and Mr Zeng Zhi Jie, which is
in compliance with the requirements of Guidelines for Corporate
Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign Banks, Guidelines for
Independent Directors and External Supervisors of Shareholding
Commercial Banks and Opinion on Enhancing the Corporate
Governance of Locally Incorporated Foreign Banks. Professor
Cham Tao Soon chairs four board committees, i.e. CTCC, AC,
NRC and RMC. Mr Zeng Zhi Jie was appointed as independent
director of the Bank on 26 October 2010 and his qualification

as independent director of the Bank was approved by CBRC
Shanghai on 18 November 2010. Dr Hua Sheng stepped down
from the Board as independent director of the Bank after his term
of office (27 December 2007 to 26 December 2010) expired on 26
December 2010.

Two independent directors duly attended four Board meetings
convened in 20107, reviewed matters on the meeting agendas and
are considered to be responsible to the shareholder of the Bank,
objective and diligent. Being chairman of CTCC, AC, NRC and
RMC, Professor Cham Tao Soon also participated and presided
at all CTCC, AC, NRC and RMC meetings. They are considered

to have effectively supervised the Board and its committees in the
procedure of decision making and safeguarded the lawful rights
and interests of the Bank and the shareholder.

*Note: Mr Zeng Zhi Jie’s qualification as independent director
of the Bank was approved on 18 November 2010 by CBRC
Shanghai and hence did not participate in Board meeting in 2010.

(1) Board Meeting Attendance Record of Independent Directors
for 2010

il HE EBRE
M EERZ (&) (&) (R)
Name of Independent No. of Board No. of Board Meetings  No. of Board &iF
Director Meetings held attended Meetings excused Remarks
EiERE 4 4 0 /
Cham Tao Soon
e 4 4 0 /
Hua Sheng
B 0 0 0 FERBEF2010F11 B1IsHAFERITIW R EEEERS £
Zeng Zhi Jie R E R,

Mr Zeng s qualification as independent director of the Bank
was approved by CBRC Shanghai on 18 November 2010.

(2) MIABEMHRITAEXRETREFRWUAER
20104, MUBBRYRNETAFENEFRIWNUERHEEFES
VAL RFTURE 7o
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(2) Dissent Raised by Independent Directors
In 2010, independent directors did not raise any dissent towards any
matters at Board meeting or under any other circumstance.



B R EE R R R # i \Senior Management Structure

% :6E3 23] Fi% {THRR =il HXEHFR
Name Position Sex Age Assignment Academic Degree Relevant Years
Commencement of Experience
EEMZRENH I REFE TRERN
. 17 TE Mechanical Engineering, Honours 27
e ﬁk%%ﬁﬂﬂﬁ E @ 00845 B chan g g
TAN Kian Huat President & CEO Male O May 2008 University of Leeds
HHTRERES Y A AR A T SRR+
Head of Branches/Channels Master in Business Administration
University of Bradford
BTKERR RS TS e b s st
WH Deputy President 8 5p 2007£12f ;ﬂ”ﬁfiﬁ;ﬁgi 10
TEO Tiat Chye Head of Technology & Male Dec 2007 ) .
i Nanyang University
Operations
B IR BATEW EERITED
o Ezx 1T &2 s 2 B hva
CHEONG Chwee Kin 5RSRITUEZBEE @ 00849 F N E S AE X E L
Head of Corporate & 40 Bachelor of Arts 16
Sam (Term ended 1 : ) Male Sep 2008 : ) . )
January 2011) Commercial Banking, National University of Singapore
v Head of Transaction Banking
- PN ¥ EapEs] IR
ik WRTEHES 5 4q 20104107 ;Zji”hf‘lfﬁ fizﬁjafji .
ANG Moh Chuan Head of Corporate Banking Male Oct 2010 ) y ) .
Nanyang Technological University
o PN ¥ FIET K
e BT R s ootogeg  DOAREEIATERSL .
KU Tse Kian Head of Commercial Banking  Male Mar 2010 ) ) .
Nanyang Technological University
EEFRMERBNIIAE
ITHEESt
HNE MM ERSEEE - 2007412 8 Bachelor of Business Administration 18
WEE Mun Seng Head of Personal Financial Mjajle 52 Dec 2007 Southeast Missouri State University
Alan Services ZEXBRSTAFTIHEEMLT
Master in Business Administration
Saint Louis University
Hokems HENRIFREERES L
mHE BREEHEE 3 51 20104117 HEFHOLE T AF o3
YAP Teck Yong Head of Global Markets & Male Nov 2010 Bachelor of Science
Douglas Investment Management Honours in Computer Science
University of British Columbia
*BBL= EREHHEE 5 53 200849H HAZAKFEEHFL o9
TEH Wee Jin Head of Credit Approval Male Sep 2008 Bachelor of Commerce
University of Otago, New Zealand
SKERER NG EEHEE £ - 2008417 M mFE T RERFLREFA 19
CHONG Kim Khong Head of Risk Management Male Jan 2008 Bachelor of Business, Honours
William Nanyang Technological University
SkATH ST AREZWSUE
P12 PASNIn RS AES . .
R Ml R A J.LEEL;:? EEE @ 008412 3 Diploma in Commerce
YAM Soon Lee Head of Finance & Corporate Male 43 Dec 2008 Tunku Abdul Rahman College 18
Ronnio Services HAAASITIASS R
Fellow, Association of Chartered Certified
Accountants
At e s BAS T S
PR ANAFREE % o7t AoAFTEER@EL
HONG Xiao Yan 34 Master in Business Administration 13
Head of Human Resources Female Dec 2007 ) .
Amy Fudan University
2N REBEH TR EE 2 57 20074127 EERFEFFEL 14
LI Gang Head of Internal Audit Male Dec 2007 Bachelor of Economics
Rick Shanghai University
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Name Position Sex Age Assignment Academic Degree Relevant Years
Commencement of Experience
MBAFEF L
FiE Bachelor of Law
WANG Yuan FERSWPHBEE oy a7 20074124 Hohai University "
. Head of Legal & Secretariat ~ Female Dec 2007 SEAFTHEENLT
Eliza ; . - .
Master in Business Administration
Fudan University
. B S BAf S b
R AMEEE E: co00mefy  (CAATEESRRESSL
) 39 Bachelor of Law 12
TAN Chong Meng Head of Compliance Male Jun 2009 o,
Louis King’s College London
University of London
I FERPITITR S 49 201048H I ELAF IHERF T 17
YEONG Kok Leng General Manager of Male Aug 2010 Bachelor of Business Administration
Vincent Beijing Branch National University of Singapore
PR EBoTITK S 40 201045H FEE AR T AFREFE L 14
LOH Nee Thiam General Manager of Male May 2010 Bachelor of Business
Harry Shanghai Branch Nanyang Technological University
H@mF I 4TITC 2 36 201043H CHAFRITESHF LREFA 10
TOK Aik Hong General Manager of Male Mar 2010 Bachelor in Banking & Finance, Honours
Lawrence Guangzhou Branch University of London
MINERFRFHF L
Bachelor of Commerce
Nanyang University
g1 N ERE~ N BEMHEFNFR
HiE BB E 2008598  BEAWNSE
General Manager of 58 . : 30
LIM Tow Meng . Male Sep 2008 Diploma in Management Consultancy
Xiamen Branch : e :
National Productivity Board, Singapore
REEEMFAFZTIHEEM LT
Master in Business Administration
University of Leicester
o s FRYNAITATIC 2 200849 A FNEEI AT TRHEEs+
R 39 . . S 13
, General Manager of Male Sep 2008 Bachelor in Business Administration
GOH Tuan Chiok . . .
Shenzhen Branch National University of Singapore
BB MR ATATIC - 2010488 LXALERAFEFFFL
CH AN Yoke Voon General Manager of Mjgle 44 Aug 2010 Bachelor of Economic 16
Shenyang Branch 9 National University of Malaysia
EEEE RN =
N ER I TITE Bachelor of Art
B kA5 AR ATAT K 2 200945 achelor oLATS
TAN Eng Wei General Manager of Male 44 May 2009 National University of Singapore 13
o’ Chengdu Branch Y BT R R A T St
Master in Business Administration
University of Strathclyde
RERAEREAFEFL
KEDITITI . Bachelor of Science
HEU General Manager of Mj;Ie 52 22092%85 University of Bradford 25
KU Nyet Fan Tianjin Branch P HEREFAF SR ER AL
Master of Arts in Finance & Investment
University of Exeter, United Kingdom
, BERL ITITK FEIREEMT
Bk EEEEIATITK @ 20104108 /j&.\%ﬁﬁgi .
. Branch Manager of 41 HEENATRREZKRE 8
ZHANG Da Lin L Male Oct 2010 . - .
Alex Jing an Sub-branch Master of Business Administration
Grenoble University
I LRBAAIIE 3 2009698  MWAEDERESL
; ranch Manager of 38 ; 15
. ) Male Sep 2009 Bachelor of Science
LIM Lian Kian Dongcheng ) .
University of South Alabama
Sub-branch
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Risk Oversight by Board of Directors and Senior
Management

Risk management is an integral part of the Bank’s business
strategy for securing the Bank’s financial soundness and integrity.

At the organisational level, the Bank is divided into three layers for
the purpose of risk oversight. These layers include the Board and
its committees, the President & Chief Executive Officer and senior
management committees and the heads of business and support
units. The Board takes overall responsibility in the approval of risk
governance structure, risk capital and risk appetite and provides
guidance in the Bank’s business strategies and direction.

The Executive Committee (EXCQO), a board committee, approves
risk management policies and strategies, reviews and approves
risk limits and substantial credits. The Risk Management
Committee (RMC), another board committee, oversees the
establishment of risk management framework and reporting
system to ensure consistency with approved policies and
strategies. The RMC also reviews and assesses the adequacy
and effectiveness of risk management infrastructure of the Bank,
reviews risk exposure reports and highlights adverse risk events
or trends to the Board.

Besides the EXCO and RMC, other board committees namely
Audit Committee and Connected Transaction Control Committee
as well as the independent Risk Management Division of the Bank
provides regular reports, updates and inputs to assist the Board
in its decision making process.

On a day to day basis, the Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO)
and Risk Management & Compliance Committee (RMCC),
provide oversight of all risk related matters. Chaired by the
President & Chief Executive Officer and represented by senior
management members, these senior management committees
meet at least on a monthly basis to review independent risk
assessment and monitoring reports submitted by the Risk
Management Division of the Bank. All risk policies, limits and
processes are reviewed by these committees before submission
for approval by the EXCO. Meeting minutes of the committees
are submitted for notation by the RMC and the Board as part of
the internal risk reporting system instituted.

The Risk Management function is independent of the business

units it monitors. The detailed Risk Management roles and
responsibilities are described on pages 43 to 51.
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Internal Control and Audit

Internal Control

UOB (China) has a well-established internal control system and
adheres strictly to local regulators’ requirements and the Group’s
guidelines. These practices enable the Bank to set strategic

and operational objectives in providing quality assurance for its
business development.

The Board emphasises establishing a sound internal control
system through the review of various committees’ meeting
minutes, management and budget reports, internal audit reports,
and also from the exchange of insights with industry peers.

The integrity and effectiveness of the Bank’s internal control
system arises from the continuous improvement in internal control
environment, including, but not limited to, the strengthening of
risk management processes, communication and feedback
mechanism, as well as evaluation and correction. The internal
control system can provide a reasonable level of assurance in
relation to implementing legal statutes and regulations.

Audit

Internal Audit, an independent division, reports to the Audit
Committee and Group Audit functionally, and to the President &
CEO of UOB (China) administratively.

Internal Audit follows the Internal Audit Guideline for Financial
Institutions as governed by China Banking Regulatory
Commission. Internal Audit adopts strict procedures in reporting
its findings to the Bank’s management and Audit Committee.

Internal Audit inspects all units in Headquarters and branches
according to a risk-based audit plan which is reviewed annually to
ensure that it is relevant to the business and risk environment.

Internal Audit also audits various application system controls and
local data centre of UOB (China).

Internal Audit reviews the effectiveness of internal control system,
including compliance with applicable laws and regulations and
provides recommendations to the Bank.

Internal Audit also closely monitors the follow up actions taken
by the management on the issues highlighted by internal audit,
external audit and regulators.
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The assumption of financial and non financial risks is an integral
part of the Bank’s business. The Bank’s risk management
strategy is targeted at ensuring ongoing effective risk discovery
and achieving effective capital management. Risks are managed
within levels approved by the Board and its committees. A
comprehensive framework of policies and procedures is
established for the identification, measurement, monitoring and
control of risks.

The Bank adopts the following risk management principles:

® promotion of sustainable long term growth through
embracing sound risk management principles and business
practices;

® continual improvement of risk discovery capabilities and
establishment of appropriate value-creating risk controls; and

@ focus on facilitating business development within a prudent,
consistent and efficient risk management framework that
balances risks and returns.

The Board is ultimately responsible for the Bank'’s risk governance
structure and provides guidance on overall risk appetite, business
strategies and direction. The Executive Committee (EXCO), a
committee with delegated authority from the Board, formulates
and approves risk management policies and strategies, reviews
and approves risk limits as well as substantial credits. The Risk
Management Committee (RMC), another board committee,
oversees the establishment of risk management framework as
well as reviews the adequacy of risk management infrastructure
and its related processes. Other internal management committees
established to oversee day-to-day risk related matters include
Asset and Liability Committee (ALCO) and Risk Management

& Compliance Committee (RMCC). Meeting minutes of the
committees are submitted to the RMC and the Board for noting
upon approval.

A centralised Risk Management Division, which is independent
of the business units, performs the primary roles of implementing
risk policies and procedures, and monitoring the compliance of
these policies and procedures by the business units. Regular
analysis and reporting on risk exposures as well as compliance
with risk policies and procedures are updated to the various risk
related committees, RMC and the Board.
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Credit Risk

Credit risk is defined as the risk of loss arising from any failure

by a borrower or a counterparty to fulfill its financial obligations

as and when they fall due. These obligations may arise from
on-balance sheet or off-balance sheet exposures such as direct
lending, trade finance, receivables under derivative and foreign
exchange contracts and other credit related activities. The
business units have primary responsibilities for the day-to-day and
active management of credit risk.

Credit risk policies and processes

The Bank establishes well defined credit risk acceptance
parameters, policies and procedures to ensure that a well
diversified and high quality credit portfolio is maintained. Credit
Risk Management Department (CRM) provides independent
oversight of credit risk and is responsible for the analysis

and reporting of all elements of credit risk. CRM develops a
comprehensive set of credit policies and guidelines for approval
by the RMCC and EXCO. It actively engages business units

on credit related matters and focuses on facilitating business
development within a prudent, consistent and efficient credit risk
management framework. Other responsibilities include monitoring
and reviewing credit risk exposures, performing analysis on credit
portfolio performance for fine-tuning policies and risk acceptance
guidelines as well as preparing various credit risk related reports
to management.

Independent credit approval

To maintain independence and integrity of the credit approval
process, the credit approval function is segregated from credit
origination. Credit approval authority is delegated through a
risk based credit discretionary limit (CDL) structure that is tiered
according to the borrower’s rating. Delegation of CDL follows a
stringent process that takes into consideration the experience,
seniority and track record of the approving officers. All credit
approvers are guided by credit policies and credit acceptance
guidelines while approval of consumer loans is guided by product
programmes. These credit policies, guidelines and product
programmes are periodically reviewed to ensure their continued
relevance.

Internal rating system

The Bank has implemented an internal credit rating system as
part of its credit decision process. This system incorporates both
statistical models and expert judgment scorecards as part of the
credit approval process for non retail exposures. The system
ensures that ratings are assigned to borrowers in a consistent
manner and systematically captures the rating history for future
model backtesting and validation. In contrast, consumer
exposure is managed on a portfolio basis and stringent product
program is established for credit underwriting purposes.
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Credit risk monitoring

The Bank has in place a rigorous process to regularly review,
manage and report credit risk concentration and portfolio quality.
This includes monitoring concentration limits and exposures

by borrowers, obligors, industries, collaterals and countries.
Concentration limits are generally set as a percentage of the
Bank’s capital fund.

All delinquent accounts, including credit limit excesses, as well as
vulnerable accounts are tracked and managed on a regular basis
by business units and CRM. Where appropriate, these accounts
are also subject to more frequent credit reviews. Delinquency
trends are monitored, analysed and reported to RMCC and RMC
periodically.

Credit risk mitigation

As a fundamental credit principle, the Bank does not grant

credit facilities solely on the basis of the collateral provided.

All credit facilities are granted based on the credit standing of
the borrower, source of repayment and debt servicing ability.
Collateral is taken whenever possible to mitigate the credit risk
assumed. The market value of collateral is monitored periodically.
The frequency of valuation depends on the type, liquidity and
volatility of the collateral value. The main types of collateral
accepted by the Bank are real estate, bank guarantee, cash and
machinery. Corporate guarantee or personal guarantee from the
principal promoters are often obtained when the borrower’s credit
worthiness is not sufficient to justify an extension of credit.

Credit exposures from foreign exchange and derivatives

For internal risk management, master agreements such as
International Swaps and Derivatives Association (ISDA) agreement
and related Credit Support Annex (CSA) and National Association
of Financial Market Institutional Investors (NAFMII) agreement

are executed with active counterparties to manage credit risk
arising from foreign exchange and derivative transactions. Such
agreements allow the Bank to cash-settle transactions in the
event of counterparty default, resulting in a single net claim
against or in favour of the counterparty.

Credit stress test

Credit stress test forms an integral part of the Bank’s internal
credit portfolio management process. Periodic credit stress tests
conducted allow the Bank to assess the potential credit losses
arising from the impact of exceptional but plausible adverse
events. Remedial actions such as exposure reduction, portfolio
rebalancing, hedging and reviewing of credit policies and credit
acceptance guidelines are taken if necessary.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED 45



BRaE. MREFMAR ZHIZLHE

HATHBEFANEBLERNBETRRE NN TRAGHITHE,
ERE|BSIREFENBFHNRRAMBATIAD N "ER™ « "X

T TR L TRIERT I CHRKRT

R¥E, ARFEFITHERAVSRAMETER

R, BEARIMBLNIFATR
FEHBIERBE NG

BTELANRRDETIR. AREARBANDXE "EF" & "X
TR, BFAERARM SN MERAIEFKRE £ E TG

RN TR

REMREZRITR KRB EXIES R EZ 8RR/ IR RFIT
RRREZMUNTEAN TR EFRKFURLENE. NITREHRE

NEERHRPITHERARFAREETE
B, BARGRA AT IZE

AIREIEHRIR I WIE R Z R

Loan classification, provisioning and write off

The Bank classifies its loan portfolio according to the borrower’s
ability to repay the loan from its normal source of income. All
loans and advances to customers are classified into ‘Pass’,
Special Mention’, ‘Substandard’, Doubtful’ or ‘Loss’ in accordance
with the requirements of China Banking Regulatory Commission
(CBRC) regulations. A restructured loan is also categorised as
non-performing and placed on the appropriate classified grade
depending on the Bank’s assessment of the financial position
and repayment ability of the borrower based on the restructured
terms. Upgrading and de-classification of a non-performing loan
to ‘Pass’ or ‘Special Mention’ status must be supported by a
credit assessment of the repayment capability, cash flows and
financial position of the borrower.

Loan loss provision is made in line with CBRC guidelines after
careful consideration of the future recovery value including
liquidation of collateral of the non-performing loan. A classified
loan is written off when there is no realisable tangible collateral
securing the account and all feasible avenues of recovery have
been exhausted.

HRIEETUA T ARTHET %
Loans by Industry Distribution RMB million

4135\ Manufacturing 3,816.4 38.9%
Bt Property and Real Estate 2,399.9 24.4%
A& B IR S B2k Professionals, Private, Individuals 1,564.1 15.9%
#t & M ZF &\l Wholesale and Retall 884.0 9.0%
{EEME Ll Hospitality and Food & Beverage 240.3 2.5%
H1bOthers 914.0 9.3%
&ifTotal 9,818.7 100%
SHBEENTA ARMET %
Loans by Booking Branch RMB million

_EShanghai 4,140.9 42.2%
1t 5 Beijing 1,364.9 13.9%
KiETianjin 34.9 0.3%
FX#BChengdu 1,128.0 11.5%
I~ JlGuangzhou 1,160.0 11.8%
> BAShenyang 213.8 2.2%
iw®lIShenzhen 963.7 9.8%
B[ IXiamen 812.5 8.3%
&1t Total 9,818.7 100%
BRI H % R SR ARTETT %
Loans by Classification RMB million

1IE% Passed 9,521.7 97.0%
% ;ESpecial Mention 14.2 0.1%
& 2% Substandard 188.7 1.9%
a] £&Doubtful 29.4 0.3%
HkLoss 64.7 0.7%
&itTotal 9,818.7 100%

2010 K, N"ERHERFAITARM282.86 77,
2.88%.
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As at year-end 2010, total non-performing loans amounted
to RMB 282.8m, representing 2.88% of the Bank’s total loan
portfolio.
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Market Risk

Market risk arises from all market price sensitive financial
instruments including debt securities, foreign exchange contracts,
equity and derivative instruments, as well as from balance sheet
structural positions. The Bank is exposed to market risk in its
trading portfolios arising mainly from changes in interest rates
and foreign exchange rates from its client-driven market making
and product structuring activities as well as proprietary trading
activities.

The Board and the EXCO approve market risk management
policies and framework and delegate the responsibility of day-
to-day oversight of market risk management to the ALCO. The
ALCO meets monthly to review and provide directions on all
market risk related matters. The Market & Balance Sheet Risk
Management Department (MBSM) provides support to ALCO
with the establishment of market risk policies, control procedures
and framework. Independent report of market risk exposures is
also submitted to the RMC and the Board on quarterly basis.

The Bank’s market risk framework comprises market risk policies
and practices, the validation of valuation and risk models, the
control structure with appropriate delegation of authority and
market risk limits. Market risk limits are proposed by the Global
Markets & Investment Management Division (GMIM), reviewed
by MBSM and approved by the ALCO and the EXCO on annual
basis. The Market Risk Control Department (MRC) provides
independent valuation of products traded by GMIM, monitoring
of market risk limits and the reporting of any limit excesses and
ratification on a daily basis.

The Bank adopts a daily Value-at-Risk (VaR) measure to
estimate market risk within a 99% confidence interval using the
historical simulation method. This methodology does not make
assumptions on the distribution of returns and the correlations
between risk classes. The method assumes that possible future
changes in market rates, such as interest and foreign exchange
rates, may be implied by observed historical market movements.
The VaR estimates are back-tested against profit and loss of the
trading book to validate the robustness of the methodology.

To complement the VaR measure, sensitivity stress tests and
historical scenario stress tests are performed on the trading
portfolios to provide early warnings of plausible extreme losses as
part of proactive management of market risk.

UNITED OVERSEAS BANK (CHINA) LIMITED a7
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Liquidity Risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank is unable to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Liquidity risk
arises from the general funding of the Bank’s banking activities
and in the management of its assets and liabilities including
off-balance sheet items. The Bank maintains sufficient liquidity to
fund its day-to-day operations, meet deposit withdrawals and loan
disbursements, fund new investments and repay borrowings.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the ALCO and EXCO.
The ALCO formulates key strategies on liquidity risk management
and reviews the Bank’s asset liability structure and liquidity risk
profile on a monthly basis. Day-to-day management of the
Bank’s liquidity cash flows is undertaken by GMIM while MBSM
independently monitors and reports liquidity risk exposures to the
ALCO, RMC and the Board.

Liquidity is managed to address known as well as unexpected
cash funding needs. The Bank takes a conservative stance

in its liquidity management by proactively managing its core
deposit base, ensuring liquidity risk limits are strictly adhered to,
diversifying the sources and term of funding as well as maintaining
adequate liquid assets to meet cash shortfall.

Liquidity risk is measured and managed on a projected cash
flow basis. The Bank monitors liquidity risk under the “Business
as Usual” scenario as well as stress scenarios involving “Bank
Specific Crisis” and “General Market Crisis”. Cash flow mismatch
limits are established to limit the Bank’s liquidity exposures. The
Bank also employs liquidity early warning indicators and trigger
points to signal possible contingency situations.

Contingency funding plans are in place to identify liquidity crises
using a series of warning indicators. Crisis escalation processes
and various strategies covering information gathering, funding,
communication and reporting have been developed to minimise
the impact of any liquidity crunch.
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Interest Rate Risk in the Banking Book

Interest rate risk in the Banking Book is the impact to earnings
and economic value of the Bank due to fluctuation in interest rates
on the structural banking book of the Bank that is not of a trading
nature.

The ALCO establishes policies, strategies and limits to manage
interest rate risk exposure of the Bank. GMIM is responsible for
the effective management of interest rate risk in accordance with
approved policies and strategies while MBSM independently
analyses and monitors interest rate risk exposure and reports to
ALCO on a monthly basis.

Mismatches in re-pricing and other characteristics of assets,
liabilities and off-balance sheet items of the Bank give rise to
sensitivity to interest rate movements. As interest rates and yield
curves change over time, these mismatches may result in decline
in earnings of the Bank. Hence, the main purpose of interest rate
risk management is to protect and enhance capital or economic
value of the Bank through adequate, stable and reliable growth
in net interest earnings. This is achieved by ensuring that the
structural interest rate risk is identified, measured, monitored
and managed over a range of potential and realistic interest rate
scenarios, including under stress situations.

Interest rate risk exposure of the Bank is quantified mainly using
static analysis tools such as repricing schedules while sensitivity
analysis of assets and liabilities to interest rate fluctuation provides
indications of the potential impact of interest rate changes on
interest income and economic value. Interest rate sensitivity
varies with different repricing periods, currency and embedded
optionality. Mismatches in the longer tenor would result in greater
change in economic value than similar positions in the shorter
tenor.

Stress testing is also performed regularly to determine the Bank’s
capital adequacy in meeting the impact of extreme interest

rate fluctuations on its assets and liabilities. Such tests are also
performed to provide early warnings of potential extreme losses,
facilitating the proactive management of interest rate risk in a
rapidly changing financial market.
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Operational Risk

Operational risk is defined as the risk of loss arising from
inadequate or failed internal processes, people and systems
or from external events such as fire, flood or other disasters.
Operational risk losses may be in the form of financial loss

or other damages, for example, loss of reputation and public
confidence that will impact the Bank’s credibility and ability to
transact, maintain liquidity and obtain new business.

The Operational Risk Management Department (ORM) develops
and maintains the Bank’s operational risk management
framework, policies and procedures and supports the business
and support units in their implementation. ORM also monitors and
submits regular operational risk reports to the RMCC and RMC.

Operational risk is managed through a framework of policies,
processes and procedures by which business and support units
identify, assess, monitor and control/mitigate their operational
risks.

Operational Risk Self Assessments which involve identifying and
assessing inherent risks as well as the effectiveness of controls
are carried out by the business and support units on an annual
basis. Action plans to address issues identified are documented
and monitored via Operational Risk Action Plans.

Key Operational Risk Indicators are statistical data collected and
monitored by business and support units on an on-going basis
to facilitate early detection of potential operational risk control
weaknesses. Trend analysis is carried out to identify systemic
issues that need to be addressed.
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A database of operational risk events and losses has been
established to facilitate the future use of advanced approaches for
quantification of operational risks. Additionally, the analysis of loss
trends and root causes of loss events helps in strengthening the
internal control environment.

A product/service program process ensures that risks associated
with the introduction of new products and services are identified,
analysed and addressed prior to launch. Product reviews are
performed periodically to ensure that any change in risk profile is
identified and addressed.

In line with the increasing need to outsource for cost and
operational efficiency, an Outsourcing Policy & Framework is
established to ensure that outsourcing risks are adequately
identified and managed prior to entering into any new
arrangements and on an on-going basis.

To ensure prompt recovery of critical business functions in the
event of major business and/or system disruptions, effective
business continuity and crisis management strategies and plans
have been developed and are tested on a regular basis.

An insurance program is in place to appropriately mitigate the risk
of high impact operational losses.

Legal risk, which is part of operational risk, arises from
unenforceable, unfavourable, defective or unintended contracts,
lawsuits or claims, developments in laws and regulations or
non-compliance with applicable laws and regulations. Business
and support units work closely with the Bank’s Legal & Secretariat
Division as well as external legal counsels (when necessary) to
ensure that legal risks are effectively managed.

Reputation risk is the adverse impact on earnings, liquidity or
capital arising from negative stakeholder perception or opinion on
the Bank’s business practices, activities and financial condition.
The Bank has developed a framework for managing reputation
risk.

An operational risk management training and awareness

programme is in place to promote an effective risk management
culture within the Bank on an ongoing basis.
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(1) Shareholder Status Update
Name of Shareholder: United Overseas Bank Limited
Percentage of shares held: 100%

(2) There were no changes to the Company’s registered
capital, nor any split or merger during the reporting
period

(3) None of the Company’s directors, supervisors or top
management was penalised by the regulatory
authorities during the reporting period.

(4) Other highlights during the reporting period:
- In 2010, UOB (China) registered a record net profit of
RMB 93.0 million since local incorporation.

- As at December 2010, our loan-to-deposit ratio was 71.7%,
which met the statutory requirement of 75%.

- In February 2010, UOB (China) obtained the People’s Bank
of China’s approval to participate in the country’s RMB cross-
border trade settlements and to act as RMB clearing bank for
correspondent banks.

- In April 2010, UOB (China) donated RMB 200,000 to Red
Cross Society of China in support of the humanitarian disaster
assistance to the victims of Qinghai earthquake.

- In September 2010, UOB (China) obtained the China Banking
Regulatory Commission’s approval to open Shanghai Xintiandi
sub-branch.

- In January 2011, UOB (China) headquarter office and Shanghai
branch was relocated to Dongyuan Road in Lujiazui, the main
financial district in Shanghai Pudong.



= AT

Our Network

BiT
EETMEAHRAEEK1115
1210587, 2. 3
#B4%: 200120

BiE: (86) (21) 6061 8888
f£H: (86) (21) 6886 0908
SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

M 31E: uobchina.com.cn

LiEaiT
EHETRRHXARERK1115
1E101-104 871

R4 200120

FBiE: (86) (21) 6061 8288
t£H: (86) (21) 6886 1113

BRIIT (L8
e R R AR 14685
Rt KE1P-01/022%
B4 200040

FBi%E: (86) (21) 6080 9388
tEE: (86) (21) 6289 1001

=T
EEMEEITIAES
E 5 AE2E2513%
#B4%: 100004

FBi%E: (86) (10) 6505 1863
t£H: (86) (10) 6505 1862

AT (EF)

EEHHRE XA T KEH7S
ERHCHE1E1088 T
#34%: 100010

8iE: (86) (10) 8418 3688
tEE: (86) (10) 8418 3668

LFEST
JRBATI RN X bk B 555
WEFIOCECTIBIIT1-2E
#B%s: 110013

Bi%E: (86) (24) 3128 0606
f£H: (86) (24) 3128 0628

IS T

[N KA AL 183-1875
KEBATI%1107-11104
1113-1114 817

#B%s: 510075

Fi%: (86) (20) 8755 8787
t£H.: (86) (20) 8755 6661

RS T

YT IR FE AR B 50025
St E R L
SFEG2EIm28 T
#B%s: 518008

FBiE: (86) (755) 8246 1298
1EH: (86) (755) 8246 3326

REST

FIEMAFX

LBk 236 51238 S B 17
B4 : 300040

i (86) (22) 2339 3688
1£H: (86) (22) 2321 0166

RAERST
FLEBTI AR K 73085
T IR

#i4%: 610017

FBi%: (86) (28) 8667 6121
tEE: (86) (28) 8667 7121

Bil5T
BRI 195
RIERITRE-2E

H4%: 361012

1% (86) (592) 508 1601
t£H: (86) (592) 508 1605

Head Office

Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan Road,
Pudong New Area,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908

SWIFT: UOVBCNSH

Website: uobchina.com.cn

Shanghai Branch

Unit 101-104, 111 Dongyuan Road,
Pudong New Area,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 8288

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 1113

Jing’an Sub-branch (Shanghai)
1P-01/02, United Plaza,

1468 Nanjing Road West,

Shanghai 200040

Tel: (86) (21) 6080 9388

Fax: (86) (21) 6289 1001

Beijing Branch

Unit 2513, Tower 2,

China World Trade Centre,
1 Jianguomenwai Avenue,
Beijing 100004

Tel: (86) (10) 6505 1863
Fax: (86) (10) 6505 1862

Dongcheng Sub-branch (Beijing)
Unit 108, Tower C, The Fifth Square,
7 Chaoyangmen North Avenue,
Beijing 100010

Tel: (86) (10) 8418 3688

Fax: (86) (10) 8418 3668

Shenyang Branch
Fortune Plaza Tower C,

Unit C1, 1-2 Floor,

55 Beizhan Road, Shenhe District,
Shenyang 110013

Tel: (86) (24) 3128 0606

Fax: (86) (24) 3128 0628

Guangzhou Branch
Unit 1107-1110 & 1113-1114,
Metro Plaza,

183-187 Tianhe Bei Road,
Guangzhou 510075

Tel: (86) (20) 8755 8787
Fax: (86) (20) 8755 6661

Shenzhen Branch

Unit 2, G2 Floor (North Side),
Di Wang Commercial Centre,
Shun Hing Square,

5002 Shennan Road East,
Shenzhen 518008

Tel: (86) (755) 8246 1298
Fax: (86) (755) 8246 3326

Tianjin Branch

Unit 236 & 238, Hebei Road,

The Emperor Place, Heping District,
Tianjin 300040

Tel: (86) (22) 2339 3688

Fax: (86) (22) 2321 0166

Chengdu Branch
Level 1, First City Plaza,
308 Shuncheng Street,
Chengdu 610017

Tel: (86) (28) 8667 6121
Fax: (86) (28) 8667 7121

Xiamen Branch

1-2 Floor, United Overseas
Bank Building,

19 Hubin Bei Road
Xiamen 361012

Tel: (86) (592) 508 1601
Fax: (86) (592) 508 1605
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We have audited the accompanying financial statements of United
Overseas Bank (China) Limited, which comprise the balance
sheet as at 31 December 2010, the income statement, the
statement of changes in equity and the cash flow statement for
the year then ended, and notes to the financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial
Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair
presentation of these financial statements. This responsibility
includes: (1) preparing and fairly presenting the financial
statements in accordance with Accounting Standards for
Business Enterprises; (2) designing, implementing and
maintaining internal control as management determines is
necessary to enable the preparation of the financial statements
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in
accordance with the Chinese Standards on Auditing. Those
standards require that we comply with Code of Ethics for Chinese
Certified Public Accountants and plan and perform the audit

to obtain a reasonable assurance about whether the financial
statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence
about the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements.
The procedures selected depend on the auditors’ judgment,
including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of
the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making
those risk assessments, the auditors considers the internal
control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity’s internal
control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of
accounting polices used and the reasonableness of accounting
estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion.
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Ernst & Young Hua Ming Shanghai Office

HE e

Shanghai, the People’s Republic of China

Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements present fairly, in all material
aspects, the financial position of United Overseas Bank (China)
Limited as at 31 December 2010 and their financial performance

and cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises.

mENEMZITI &5

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Huang, Yuedong

hEEMITD a7 48

Chinese Certified Public Accountant: Yu, Mei

20114F4H1H

1 April 2011
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AERHER

BALANCE SHEET
20104 & For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MR 2010412A31H 2009%12A31H
Notes 5 2010-12-31 2009-12-31
#= ASSETS
W& NEFERFRETHI  Cash and balances with central banks 1 2,430,489,928 1,505,218,151
TERUE M ZRIN Due from banks 2 1,650,383,493 760,963,181
FE#RE E;ii?;:sts with banks and other financial 3 3.450,718.335 2 129,647,393
MEERA™ Derivative financial assets 4 171,499,753 12,469,437
NHF] B Interest receivables 5 118,268,811 30,487,290
B AR Loans and advances to customers 6 9,533,098,828 9,393,993,073
At ES AT Available-for-sale financial assets 7 3,640,054,803 600,419,057
INBRESBAFT Reverse repurchase financial assets 8 1,592,450,000 -
B R = Fixed assets 9 33,129,770 18,130,620
TR R Intangible assets 10 36,018,006 28,019,452
BIEFTR AT Deferred tax assets 11 41,087,937 57,908,039
HAobF = Other assets 12 64,827,312 41,386,735
BrERIT TOTAL ASSETS 22,762,026,976 14,578,642,428
4 LIABILITIES
&\ 7 I Due to banks 14 295,852,719 54,832,613
WARE Placements from banks and other financial institutions 15 5,111,338,851 4,430,717,354
MESBAR Derivative financial liabilities 4 53,811,733 14,319,234
SIS/ Customer deposits 16 13,692,361,400 6,641,346,731
SI{FER T 3B Payroll payables 17 22,263,859 16,262,696
IENSE Tax payables 18 6,059,034 27,776,021
AT F] B Interest payables 19 92,698,077 11,468,092
HAb fa ik Other liabilities 20 39,543,577 18,759,996
AREIT TOTAL LIABILITIES 19,313,929,250 11,215,482,737
FEENZE EQUITY
SR A Paid-up capital 21 3,000,000,000 3,000,000,000
RARTR Capital reserves 22 (14,826,623) (6,771,343)
BRI Surplus reserves 23 17,216,958 7,917,626
— ALK A General reserves 24 202,536,188 132,108,606
RO ECHE Retained earnings 25 243,171,203 229,909,802
FEEN @& TOTAL EQUITY 3,448,097,726 3,363,159,691

AR ATEEN GBI

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

22,762,026,976

14,678,642,428

T E63MEF 134T I M SR FMHE AR SHREZAAMA
The notes on pages 63 to 134 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FlliiE =
INCOME STATEMENT

20104E/Z For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

BHER 20106 % 20095
Notes 5 Year 2010 Year 2009
—. Bl 1. OPERATING INCOME

AI=UON Interest income 26 522,425,003 499,622,484
FEZH Interest expense 26 (216,428,705) (137,445,313)
FIE AN Net interest income 26 305,996,298 362,177,171
FEFR AW Fee and commission income 27 26,246,371 19,037,634
FEFE NI Fee and commission expense 27 (3,229,718) (3,302,914)
FERLRBeFRN Net fee and commission income 27 23,016,653 15,734,720
KR W= Investment income 28 36,709,735 8,822,021
PANEZER TR Gains or losses from changes in fair value 29 116,536,811 10,273,276
L5 RO R AR ok Foreign exchange loss (31,244,298) (6,159,394)
EHl RN/ ) Other operating income/ (expense) 25,758,652 (3,529,024)
RNy TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 476,773,851 387,318,770

= Bz 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
NIy iyl Business tax and surcharges (22,034,678) (25,159,737)
W55 &R General and administrative expenses 30 (297,553,866) (222,813,272)
ArERERE Impairment losses 31 (39,395,820) (41,419,762)
Bl FZHET TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (358,984,364) (289,392,771)
=. BAFLE 3. OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 117,789,487 97,925,999
JITR= 2NN Add: Non-operating income 32 8,688,858 8,060,323
B BN Less: Non-operating expenses 33 (507,540) (1,165,539)
M. BETFESEH 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 125,970,805 104,820,783
R TSR Less: Income tax expense 34 (32,977,490) (25,644,515)
B EFIE 5. NET PROFIT 92,993,315 79,176,268
7N HitEEEs 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 36 (8,055,280) 8,406,595
€. FEWHEEH 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 84,938,035 87,582,863

T 63N EF 134T M SR FMIE AR M SR FRAIAMRB S
The notes on pages 63 to 134 form an integral part of these financial statements.

FEOINMZEFIMTTHMESIMERHAUTALTEE:
The financial statements from page 63 to 134 have been signed by:

BE RER
Director: TAN Kian Huat

M558 T RA]
Chief Financial Officer: YAM Soon Lee Ronnie

MEEE: REE
Head, Finance: CHEN Si Meng Juliet
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HERER
CASH FLOW STATEMENT

20104 & For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

MiER 20106 % 20094
Notes 5 Year 2010 Year 2009

— BERHFENIESRE 1. CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
IRHEERE AR DM Net decrease in placements with banks and other financial institutions - 503,680,575
BB R AN R D ER Net decrease in loans and advances to customers - 1,181,464,576

R, W F A 2] Ml 7 s T4 8 Net increase in customer deposit and due to banks

AR L AR Net increase in placements from banks and other financial institutions

WM E . FERRBENIE Cash received from interest, service fee and commission

W His 548 FE <MlE Cash received from other operating activities

ZESEFMETANNT Sub-total of cash inflows from operating activities

TER[E) A 34 &R Net increase in due from banks

IR RS R E Net increase in placements with banks and other financial institutions
INBES AT FEINEN Net increase in reverse repurchase financial assets

RSN FOR S AR Net increase in loans and advances to customers

TERH SARAT S48 JINER Net increase in due from the Central Bank

RN SR DE Net decrease in placements from banks and other financial institutions

TAWFE. FERLAEENUE Payments made for interest, service fee and commission
FATAIMT EARTZ A2 Cash paid to and on behalf of employees

TAHEIE Cash paid for all types of taxes
TAWEMELEENEXNUE Cash paid for other operating activities

SEFEDHIUE M /Nt Sub-total of cash outflows from operating activities
AREENFENIERE ST Net cash flows from operating activities

= RABHFENHESRE 2. CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
W B 7 KR & Cash received from maturity of investments
PSR KRR e Cash received from investment income
Qb E [E] TE A P AN EAR AR I ' )
EHHE Proceeds from disposal of fixed assets and other long term assets
BAEDWESTRAMNT Sub-total of cash inflows from investing activities
FEER RN E Cash paid for investment
fjﬁizﬁ#ﬂﬁ@ﬁﬂ@ﬁ#i Cash paid for purchase of fixed assets and other long term assets
BAESDW SR Sub-total of cash outflows from investing activities
BAFEMNTENI SR 22 Net cash flows from investing activities

= ;E:;";“ﬁﬂﬁﬂﬁ&lﬂﬁ%m%ﬂﬂ 3. Effect of Exchange Rate Changes on Cash and Cash Equivalents

M. NERMEEMYEEIM/(B)E 4. Net increase/(decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents

. ERERNEEN PRI Add: Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year
i EXRPUERASENMRE 5. Cash and cash equivalents at end of the year

7,332,926,520
820,125,354
481,647,840
29,598,768
8,664,298,482
415,288,800
436,650,987
570,000,000
297,053,322

1,372,829,146

136,663,254
171,431,968
59,646,007
109,513,688
3,668,977,172

5,095,321,310

4,084,536,450

15,951,748

572,094

4,101,060,292
6,997,560,120

34,936,781

7,032,496,901
(2,931,436,609)
(74,282,222)

2,089,602,479
3,138,749,265

35 5,228,351,744

1,344,967,575

594,142,139
75,988,827
3,700,243,692

136,557,600

66,058,475
4,308,041,720
175,586,672
124,935,777
87,319,012
99,126,067
4,997,625,323

(1,297,381,631)

6,846,759,996

18,100,089

3,499

6,859,863,584
7,046,567,180

19,281,633

7,065,848,813
(205,985,229)
(7,452,323)

(1,510,819,183)
4,649,568,448

3,138,749,265

T E63MEF 134T I M SR FMHEARM SHREZAAMA
The notes on pages 63 to 134 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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HERER (4)
CASH FLOW STATEMENT (Continued)

20104E/Z For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

HhFEFE R MHER 20106 20095

Supplementary information Notes 5 Year 2010 Year 2009

1. HBEFIHRATAZEEHWMETRE: 1. Reconciliation of net profit to cash flows from operating activities
BT Net profit 92,993,315 79,176,268
A ERK Impairment losses 39,395,820 41,419,762
& E A= IH Fixed assets depreciation 4,948,312 4,293,569
i 43} Intangible assets amortisation 4,190,436 2,805,793
KEARFMEZ: A Amortisation for long term deferred expenses 4,455,865 3,952,238
P AT A= RS R AT (N Vi BN (Gain)/loss on disposal of fixed assets and other long-term assets (395,307) 561,960
NRMEZ N Gain from the changes in fair value (116,536,811) (10,273,276)
FRHAL AT BN I A s Interest received from bond investments and investment income (36,709,735) (8,822,021)
JCRIREK Foreign Exchange loss 79,674,289 7,698,870
HIEFTS RN Increase/decrease in deferred tax assets/liabilities 19,505,196 (6,862,820)

LEERIKIR B BIEE )R>
ZEERAIINE B9/ R

(Increase)/decrease in operating receivables

Increase/(decrease) in operating payables

(3,037,110,990)

8,040,910,920

1,626,970,685

(3,038,302,659)

ZEENFFENISRE R

Net cash flows from operating activities

5,095,321,310

(1,297,381,631)

N
.

RERREEMWEEMBER:
MEFERRH

B MERFNRE

o MeENMOFERRE
B MeENYOFENRE

2. Net increase in cash and cash equivalents:

Cash on hand at end of year
Less: Cash on hand at beginning of year
Add: Cash equivalents at end of year

Less: Cash equivalents at beginning of year

35 6,179,239
5,367,965
35 5,222,172,505

3,133,381,300

5,367,965
5,000,602
3,133,381,300

4,644,567,846

ME T & EM PG I/ 06 )8R

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

2,089,602,479

(1,5610,819,183)

T 63T EF 134T M ST M E AR S IR KRB TS
The notes on pages 63 to 134 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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FEENE TR
STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

20104 & For the year ended 31 December 2010
(Unless otherwise stated, expressed in RMB Yuan)

ol i BN BREAR —RREES KEFE ait
Paid-up Capital Surplus General Retained
Capital Reserves Reserves Reserves Earnings Total
200912831 H %% Balance as at 31 December 2009 3,000,000,000 (6,771,343) 7,917,626 132,103,606 229,909,802  3,363,159,691
KEMBBFHEH  Movements during the year - (8,055,280) 9,299,332 70,432,582 13,261,401 84,938,035
(—) 5 FI3E (i) Net profit - - - - 92,993,315 92,993,315
(D) v A s (i) Other comprehensive income - (8,055,280) - - - (8,055,280)
1. AJHELHESBEAT 1. Net change in the fair value of
PRAMEERTE available-for-sale financial assets - (10,740,374) - - - (10,740,374)
2. 5 AFTEENEE 2. Income tax impact recognised
HHKAIFT S BESZD directly in equity - 2,685,094 - - - 2,685,094
A BER Total Comprehensive income - (8,055,280) - - 92,993,315 84,938,035
(Z)FE (iii) Profit appropriation - - 9,299,332 70,432,582 (79,731,914) -
1. 12BB AR 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - 9,299,332 - (9,299,332) -
2. IREL— M X% 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - 70,432,582 (70,432,582) -
201012 A31H&%1 Balance as at 31 December 2010 3,000,000,000 (14,826,623) 17,216,958 202,536,188 243,171,203  3,448,097,726
SRR F A BN BRRAE —BXKES FKATELFNE Ait
Paid-up Capital Surplus General Retained
Capital Reserves Reserves Reserves Earnings Total
2008412 A31 H&4 Balance as at 31 December 2008 3,000,000,000 (15,177,938) - - 290,754,766  3,275,576,828
KBNS Movements during the year - 8,406,595 7,917,626 132,103,606 (60,844,964) 87,582,863
(—)&FE (i) Net profit - - - - 79,176,268 79,176,268
(D) At (i) Other comprehensive income - 8,406,595 - - - 8,406,595
1. AHEHESFEAFT  1.Net change in the fair value of
NARMEEREE) available-for-sale financial assets - 11,208,793 - - - 11,208,793
2. B ABTEEME  2.Income tax impact recognised
LB SRS Y A ) directly in equity - (2,802,198) - - - (2,802,198)
LRE W DB Total Comprehensive income - 8,406,595 - - 79,176,268 87,582,863
(E)FFSE (ii) Profit appropriation - - 7,917,626 132,103,606  (140,021,232) ;
1. 2B B AT 1. Appropriation to surplus reserves - - 7,917,626 - (7,917,626) -
2. 1B — M XUB 2. Appropriation to general reserves - - - 132,103,606 (132,1083,606) -
200912 531 H&RE Balance as at 31 December 2009 3,000,000,000 (6,771,343) 7,917,626 132,103,606 229,909,802  3,363,159,691

T E63MEF134TTHIM SR FMHEARM SHREZAAMA
The notes on pages 63 to 134 form an integral part of these financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

for the year ended 31 December 2010

KRERIT (hE) BRAR (ATER "£ART ) 2RAKERTE
PRAR (PUTER "RERIT ) AhEARKME LEHMIIRISN
BRARIT.

ZHERITIVHRESEEZRS (WTER "RES" ) T20074485H
HfE, KERITIR (PEAREMEINEBITEESE) GLTER
(EIREEFY " ) . (REARLMEINEBITETELGISHEHN)
(LURERR © CGREAN) " ) HBEXIE, ELEmEZAERRE
REVNEIRARRIT—ALERIT (FE) BRAR, FBEPEERNNA
FRIT BT =T FINDIT TINIT. BE21T. B
T DT EEELET AUTER "BRREXSITRIIT ) X
HIAKERIT (hE) BRARRSZHM.

ZEBISSHOE, AN FF2007412 8 12H4MEL 7000003865 4 5t
WFRNEF F20074612 818 T LET ITETHEEEMAHE
310000400553992%5 (/) ®lEAEWHE. FMALNEE
AR™M30Z 7T

REALNFEUVHRINE, ALRLEHRRANAERR. £AF
WEESENEA R EENMAENIMNCWSTMARTWS. 2008
F1R2EBAXRAERPEXITHWSTE

HZE2010F12831H, BRAE LERIMNKRERIT (hE) BRAF
BTN, KRARIDTELE. de= ORI M. BRER. BT SRR
KIEIRIL T8RP 1T

AMESHREBRBHRFEARKEMEMER (UTER "MEHB" ) F
20062 AR (Wit AN EAENY FI3STEKEITH
N, HEMAHMAER. @RULEMAERINE (G st
AN ) &l

AW SWMEUE AR FEEE REMIIR

AMESREFELUSITAENHER, BEX. TEHEBRT ARNF
2010412 A31 AR M ER R L L 201 0EEHAE R RN ERE.

United Overseas Bank (China) Ltd. (The “Bank” or “UOB (China)”)
is a wholly-owned foreign-funded bank established in Shanghai,
P.R.China, by United Overseas Bank Ltd. (“UOB”).

In accordance with the Regulation of the People’s Republic

of China on the Administration of Foreign-funded Banks (the
“Regulation”), and the Detailed Rules on the Implementation of
Regulation of the People’s Republic of China on the Administration
of Foreign-funded Banks (the “Implementation”), China Banking
Regulatory Committee (“CBRC”) approved on 5 April 2007 to
prepare the setting up of its wholly-owned subsidiary bank,

UOB (China), in Shanghai and to convert its branches in mainland
of People’s Republic of China (“PRC”) to UOB (China) Shanghai
Branch, Beijing Branch, Shenzhen Branch, Guangzhou Branch,
Chengdu Branch, Xiamen Branch, Shenyang Branch and Jing’an
sub-branch respectively.

The Bank obtained its Financial License No. 00000386

on 12 December 2007 upon approval from CBRC. On

18 December 2007, the Bank obtained its Business License No.
310000400553992 issued by Shanghai City Administration of
Industry and Commerce, with a registered capital equivalent to
RMB 3 billion.

The Bank obtained its business licence issued with an unlimited
operating period. The business scope of the Bank are Renminbi
and foreign currency businesses as approved by relevant
regulatory authorities. The date of business conversion from
former PRC branches to UOB (China) was 2 January 2008, on
which the Bank officially started its business operations.

As of 31 December 2010, besides the Head Office incorporated
in Shanghai, the Bank has set up eight branches respectively in
Shanghai, Beijing, Shenzhen, Guangzhou, Chengdu, Xiamen,
Shenyang and Tianjin.

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance

with the Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises-Basic
Standard and 38 specific standards issued in February 2006, and
the implementation guidance, interpretations and other relevant
provisions issued subsequently by the Ministry of Finance of
People’s Republic of China (MOF), (collectively referred to as
“Accounting Standards for Business Enterprises”).

The financial statements are presented on a going concern basis.

The financial statements of the Bank have been prepared

in accordance with the Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises, and present fairly and fully, the financial position
of the Bank as of 31 December 2010 and the results of the
operations and the cash flows for the year then ended.
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1. Accounting year
The accounting year of the Bank is from 1 January to 31
December of each calendar year.

2. Functional currency

Both the reporting currency and the presentation currency for
financial statements are the Renminbi (“RMB”). All amounts are
stated in RMB, unless otherwise stated.

3. Basis of accounting and principles for measurement
The Bank’s financial statements have been prepared on

an accrual basis under the historical cost as the basis of
measurement, except for derivative financial instruments, the
financial assets and financial liabilities that are measured at fair
value with changes recorded in profit and loss, and
available-for-sale financial assets. Subsequently, if the assets
are impaired, corresponding provisions should be recognised in
accordance with relevant standards.

4. Foreign currency transactions
Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the reporting
currency accordingly.

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the respective
functional currency at the exchange rates ruling at the transaction
date. Subsequent to initial recognition, monetary assets and
liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated

into the functional currency at the closing rate of exchange
ruling at the balance sheet date. Exchange differences arising
from the translation of monetary items at balance sheet date
are recognised in the income statement. Non-monetary

items measured at historical cost in a foreign currency are
translated using the exchange rates ruling at the date of the
initial transactions; Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates
when the fair value is determined, the exchange difference thus
resulted should be recognised in the income statement or other
comprehensive income of the current period.

5. Financial assets

Financial assets are classified as follows: At fair value through
profit and loss; Held-to-maturity; Loans and receivables and
Available-for-sale. Financial assets are initially recognised at their
fair value. For financial assets at fair value through profit and
loss, the related transaction costs are directly charged to income
statement of the current period. Transaction costs relating to
financial assets of other categories are included in the amount
initially recognised.
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MARMETTEERZHIT A SPRENEMATBRARZMFE
HEm A VBN REEE AL LA RNETEEEZNITAS
BB SR ARSMEFENERATERHE TIEZ—
HemA: 1) RZeRATNENEATERHALE, 2) &
FHATEFEENA AR T AAGH 32, EEEWIEERR
AR RERRA ARINIZA G #HTER; 3) BFITELIA, B
EWEENBYRERIANTEIRRSI . XESRATTEEEITE
HENARMETE. A ESAMARNRECAN LHIRE.

REHAENTEAZ—, eRATSERAGRAAIEVRITENEE
AUARNEITEREZSIT A NREHN SR AR SRR R

() ZUUEERIEUEREI RE DB T &R &R A RAIT 25
TNEFTSEHEXFSSRR ARSI 8 EA—EHAIER.

(i) RpeERNRARKHNEXBEXHCHRY, ZefTAHAAGMN
ARNEANEMBFTER. TN CREEARRS,

(i) BE—MHEIHRATELAMRETIE, RIFEHRAITELAR
SNBRELAENASRETEERNE, FEMBRANITELR
RETRYMNERBEE AT,

(v) BERENFELEERGREEMAF AR AN HETER
HEMNHRANTIAEMESTIA.

HEEZTHRF

FAEZIMEAZRINPEEE. DWEHBEERIHE, AL
AIEVBHEEMENFE 2R BHOIFTESRA . W THESHR
7, RAKERRERE, ERERMARITRETE, HLLEWIN &
SR ESFHETENFEIIRL, T ASHBRE. MRAARRE
RPN ETFE R PRAEASTFEALERED X AAIH
HESHRATNEH, BAYTIZEXRAEHEREDLIMH DR K
B, ZERANRRBORSERILNATREESHA, BAEE
SHFERMNEFRNTEN I FERNNESBRIZERAT YD A%
BEIERE. B2, THIERERSN:

At fair value through profit and loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss are financial
assets which are either classified as held for trading or designated
by the Bank at fair value through profit and loss upon initial
recognition. Financial assets are classified as held for trading if
they meet any of the following: 1) acquired for the purpose of

sale in the short term; 2) part of a portfolio of identifiable financial
instruments that are collectively managed, and there is objective
evidence indicating that the enterprise recently managed this
portfolio for the purpose of short-term profits; 3) derivatives unless
they are designated as effective hedging instruments. For such
kind of financial assets, fair values are adopted for subsequent
measurement. All realised or unrealised gains or losses on these
financial assets are recognised in the income statement of the
current period.

Financial assets/liabilities are designated as fair value through
profit and loss only if they meet any of the following criteria:

(i)  The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the
inconsistency in recognition or measurement of gain or loss
arising from the difference of measurement basis of financial
assets and financial liabilities.

(i) In accordance with documented risk management or
investment strategy, this financial assets portfolio are
managed, and evaluated at fair value and reported on that
basis to key management personnel.

(iii)  The financial instrument contains one or several embedded
derivatives, unless the embedded derivatives do not
significantly modify the cash flow of the mixed instrument or it
is clear that they would not be separately recorded.

(iv) The financial instrument contains an embedded instrument,
which need to be separated but is unable to be measured
separately at initial recognition or subsequent measurement
at each subsequent balance sheet dates.

Held-to-maturity

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturity are classified as held-to-maturity
investments when the Bank has the intention and ability to hold
the assets till maturity. After initial recognition, held-to-maturity
financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest rate method, less any allowance for
impairment. Gains and losses are recognised in the income
statement when the held-to-maturity financial assets are
derecognised or impaired, as well as through the amortisation
process. The Bank shall not classify any financial assets as
held-to-maturity if the Bank has, during the current financial year
or during the two preceding financial years, sold or reclassified
more than an insignificant amount of held-to-maturity investments
before maturity (more than insignificant in relation to the total
amount of held-to-maturity investments), any remaining held-to-
maturity investments are reclassified as available-for-sale financial
assets except for:
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(1) Sales that are so close to maturity (for eg: within three
months) that changes in the market interest rate would not
have a significant effect on the financial asset’s fair value;

(2) Sales that occur after the Bank has collected substantially all
of the financial asset’s original principal through scheduled
payments or prepayments; or

(3) Sales that are attributable to an isolated event that is beyond
the bank’s control, is non-recurring, and could not have been
reasonably anticipated by the Bank.

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets

with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in an
active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets
are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method, Gains or losses arising from derecognition,
impairment or amortisation are recognised in the income
statement.

Available-for-sale

Available-for-sale are non-derivative financial assets which are
designated as such or are not classified in any of the three
preceding categories. After initial recognition, available-for-
sale financial assets are subsequently measured at fair value.
Interest income earned during the holding period is accrued
using the effective interest rate method and recognised to the
income statement as interest income. Changes in fair value of
available-for-sale financial assets except for the impairment and
exchange gain or loss are recognised as a separate component
of equity until the financial asset is derecognised at which time
the cumulative gains or losses previously reported in equity are
included in the income statement.

6. Impairment of financial assets

The carrying value of financial assets other than financial assets

at fair value through profit and loss is assessed at each reporting
date to determine whether there is any objective evidence that

it is impaired as a result of one or more events (“impairment
events”). The impairment events are referred to those occurring
after the initial recognition of the assets, which have an impact on
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets and can

pbe reliably estimated by the Bank. Evidence of impairment may
include indications that the borrower or a group of borrowers are
experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability that they will enter
bankruptcy or other financial reorganisation and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as deterioration of the situation in arrears
or sudden change of economic conditions, which may lead to the
debtors’ failing to fulfill the responsibility of repayment.
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Financial assets carried at amortised cost

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on such
financial assets carried at amortised cost has been incurred,

the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between

the financial asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit losses that
have not been incurred) discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate, taking into account the value of any related
collateral.

The Bank first assesses whether objective evidence of impairment
exists individually for financial assets that are individually
significant, and individually or collectively for financial assets

that are not individually significant. If the Bank determines that

no objective evidence of impairment exists for an individually
assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes

the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk
characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment.
Assets that are individually assessed for impairment and for
which an impairment loss is or continues to be recognised are not
included in a collective assessment of impairment.

Future cash flows of a group of financial assets that are
collectively assessed for impairment are estimated on the basis
of historical loss experience for assets with similar credit risk
characteristics. The historical loss experience is adjusted on the
basis of current observable data, to reflect the effects of current
conditions not affecting the period of historical experience and
to eliminate the impact of historical conditions that do not exist
currently. The methodology and assumptions used for estimating
future cash flows are reviewed regularly by the Bank.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of an impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be attributed objectively to
an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss shall be reversed. Any
subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in the
income statement, to the extent that the carrying value of the
assets does not exceed its amortised cost at the reversal date.

Financial assets carried at cost

If objective evidence shows that the financial assets carried at
cost are impaired, the difference between the present value
discounted at the prevailing rate of return of similar financial
assets and the book value of the financial asset are provided as
an impairment loss in the income statement. The impairment loss
recognised cannot be reversed.

Available-for-sale financial assets

If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss for available-
for-sale financial assets has been incurred, the cumulative loss,
measured as the difference between the acquisition cost (net

off any recovered principals and amortised amount) and the
current fair value, less any impairment loss on that financial asset
previously recognised in the income statement, is reversed from
other comprehensive income and recognised in the income
statement.
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Debt instruments classified as available-for-sale with impairment
loss recognised, if, in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument increases and the increase can be objectively related
to an event occurring after the impairment loss, the previously
impaired loss is reversed through the income statement. Reversal
of impairment loss of equity instruments classified as available-for-
sale is not recogonised in the income statement.

7. Financial liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities at fair
value through profit and loss, or other financial liabilities.

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss include
financial liabilities held for trading and those designated as at fair
value through profit and loss upon initial recognition. Gains and
losses from changes in fair value are recognised in the income
statement.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts are measured at the fair value on
initial recognition. For financial guarantee contracts that are not
designated as at fair value through profit and loss, they are, after
initial recognition, subsequently measured at the higher of, the
amount determined in accordance with Accounting Standards
for Business Enterprises No. 13 — Contingencies, and the amount
initially recognised less the cumulative amortisation determined
according to the principles of Accounting Standards for Business
Enterprises No. 14 - Revenues.

Other financial liabilities

Except for financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
and financial guarantee contracts, deposits and other financial
liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest rate method.

8. Derecognition of financial instruments

Financial asset:
A financial asset is derecognised when one of the following
conditions is met:

(i) the rights to receive cash flows from the financial assets have
expired; or

(i) the Bank has transferred substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership of the financial asset; or has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial asset, but has transferred control
over the asset.
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Where the Bank has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control

of the financial asset, the asset is recognised to the extent

of the Bank’s continuing involvement of the financial asset.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over
the transferred financial asset is measured at the lower of the
original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount of
consideration that the Bank could be required to repay.

Financial liability:

The financial liabilities are derecognised when the responsibilities
over them have been discharged, cancelled or expired. If the
original financial liabilities are replaced with substantively different
terms in essence by the same creditor, or the provisions of the
contract are substantively modified in its nature, such replacement
or modifications are treated as derecognition of original liabilities
and recognition of new liabilities, with the difference recorded in
the income statement.

9. Derivatives and hedge accounting

Derivative financial instruments are recognised initially, and
subsequently measured, at fair value. Derivatives with positive and
negative fair values are presented as assets and liabilities in the
balance sheet respectively.

Derivatives embedded in other financial instruments are treated
separately as derivatives when their economic characteristics and
risks are not closely related to those of the host contract and the
hybrid instrument is not carried at fair value through profit and
loss. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value with
the changes in fair value recognised in the income statement.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are taken
directly to the income statement.

10. Repurchase and reverse repurchase transactions
Assets sold under agreements to repurchase at a specified future
date (“repos”) are not derecognised from the balance sheet.

The corresponding cash received, including accrued interest, is
recognised on the balance sheet as a “repurchase agreement”,
reflecting its economic substance as a loan to the Bank. The
difference between the sale and repurchase prices is treated as
an interest expense and is accrued over the life of the agreement
using the effective interest method.

Conversely, assets purchased under agreements to resell at

a specified future date (“reverse repos”) are not recognised

on the balance sheet. The corresponding cash paid, including
accrued interest, is recognised on the balance sheet as a “reverse
repurchase agreement”. The difference between the purchase
and resale prices is treated as an interest income and is accrued
over the life of the agreement using the effective interest method.
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11. Construction in progress

The cost of construction in progress is determined according to
the actual expenditure for the construction, including all necessary
expenditure incurred during the construction period.

The costs are transferred to fixed assets, intangible assets or
other long term assets when the asset is ready for its intended
use.

12. Fixed assets and accumulated depreciation

Recognition of Fixed Assets

The fixed assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to fixed assets are likely to flow into the Bank, and
the cost of fixed assets can be measured reliably.

Subsequent expenditure can be recognised in the cost of fixed
assets when the recognition criteria set above is met, and the
replaced carrying amount shall be derecognised. Otherwise, such
expenditure is normally charged to the income statement in the
period when it is incurred.

Valuation and depreciation of fixed assets

Fixed assets are initially measured at cost and presented at
historical cost less accumulated depreciation and provision for
impairment. The cost of a purchased fixed asset comprises
the purchase price, relevant taxes and any directly attributable
expenditure for bringing the asset to working condition for its
intended use, such as delivery and handling costs, installation
costs and other surcharge.

Depreciation is charged to profit and loss on a straight-line basis.
The respective estimated useful lives, estimated residual values
and annual depreciation rates of fixed assets are set by the Bank
considering the nature and usage of fixed assets.

fER%Ew it ek EE FiAE

Estimated useful lives Estimated residual value Annual depreciation rate

BB M ERY) Properties and buildings 504 - 2%
VAT BBRRIE & Office equipment and computers 5% - 20%
EHE & Motor vehicles 54 - 20%
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Residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods are
reviewed and adjusted if appropriate, at each balance sheet date.
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13. Intangible assets

Intangible assets are identifiable non-monetary assets without
physical substance owned or controlled by the Bank. The
intangible assets can be recognised only when the economic
benefits related to intangible assets are likely to flow into the Bank,
and the cost of intangible assets can be measured reliably.

Intangible assets are initially recognised at cost and the useful
life is determined according to the economic useful lives; those
intangible assets with unforeseeable economic lives can be
classified as intangible assets with infinite useful lives.

The Bank’s intangible assets comprise computer software with a
10-year useful life.

For the intangible assets with finite useful lives, amortisation

is charged to income statement over the assets’ estimated
economic lives using methods that best reflect the pattern of
economic benefits; or on a straight-line basis when the pattern of
economic benefit realisation cannot be reliably determined. For
the intangible assets with infinite useful lives, no amortisation is
made.

The useful life and amortisation method for intangible assets with
finite useful lives are reviewed at each balance sheet date, with
proper adjustments made by the Bank when necessary.

14. Long-term deferred expenses

Long-term deferred expenses refer to the expenses incurred with
an amortisation period of more than one year (not including one
year), mainly including rental fee and leasehold improvements.

Rental fee of the operating lease of fixed assets is amortised on
a straight-line basis over the period of the lease contract. Other
long-term deferred expenses are amortised on a straight-line
basis over the lower of lease period or useful life.

The carrying amount that has not been amortised is charged to
income statement if the expenditure does not bring benefits to
subsequent accounting periods.

15. Impairment of assets
The Bank assesses impairment of assets as follows, except for
financial assets and deferred tax assets.

The Bank assesses whether there is an indication that an asset is
impaired at each balance sheet date. If any such indication exists,
the Bank makes an estimate of the asset’s recoverable amount
and carries out an impairment test. For those assets with infinite
useful lives, regardless of whether the impairment indications
exist, the impairment test is made at least annually.

An asset’s recoverable amount is the higher of its fair value less

costs to sell and the present value of estimated future discounted
cash flows, which is determined on an individual basis.
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If the recoverable amount of the asset is less than its carrying
value, an impairment loss is recognised immediately in income
statement and the carrying value of the asset reduced by the
amount of the loss.

Once an impairment loss is recognised, it shall not be reversed in
a subsequent period.

16. Recognition of income and expense

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Bank and the revenue can be
reliably measured. The following specific recognition criteria must
be met before revenue is recognised:

Interest income and expense

Interest income and expense are determined using the effective
interest method, the effective interest rate is the rate that exactly
discounts estimated future cash payments or receipts through

the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial
asset or financial liability. The calculation takes into account all
contractual terms of the financial instrument and includes any fees
or incremental costs that are directly attributable to the instrument
and are an integral part of the effective interest rate, but not

future credit losses. The carrying amount of the financial asset

or financial liability is adjusted if the Bank revises its estimates of
payments or receipts. The adjusted carrying amount is calculated
based on original effective interest rate and the change in carrying
amount is recorded as an interest income or expense.

Fee and commission income
Fee and commission income is recognised when the services are
rendered and the proceeds can be reasonably estimated.

17. Income tax
Income tax includes current tax and deferred tax.

Current tax is the expected tax payable on the taxable income
for the year, using tax rates enacted or substantially enacted at
the balance sheet date. The taxable income is calculated at the
accounting results for the year as adjusted in accordance with
relevant tax regulations.

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior
periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities in accordance with relevant
tax regulations.

Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability method, on all
temporary differences between the tax bases and their carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes at
the balance sheet date.
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Deferred income tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and
unused tax losses can be utilised, except: (i) where the deferred
tax assets arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the
time of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable income or deductible loss; and; (ii) in respect of taxable
temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
associates and interests in joint ventures, where the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is
probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates
that are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised
or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet
date.

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed

at each balance sheet date and reduced to the extent that it is

no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available

to allow all or part of the deferred income tax asset to be utilised.
Unrecognised deferred income tax assets are reassessed at each
balance sheet date and are recognised to the extent that it has
become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred
tax asset to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities

are offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off current tax
assets against current tax liabilities and the deferred income taxes
relate to the same taxable entity and the same taxation authority.

18. Employee benefits

Short term employee benefits

Salaries and bonuses, social security contributions and other
short term employee benefits are accrued in the period in which
services have been rendered by the employees of the Bank.

Defined contribution plans

According to relevant laws and regulations of Mainland China, the
Bank is required to make contributions to several social security
schemes separately administered by the local government
authorities. The contribution is recognised to income statement of
that period.

19. Cash and cash equivalents

Cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, non-statutory deposits
due from central banks, amounts due from banks and other
financial institutions, reverse repurchase agreements maturing
within three months, and short-term highly liquid investments that
are readily convertible into known amounts of cash, and which are
subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value, which have an
original maturity date within three months.
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20. Related parties

Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability,
directly or indirectly, to control the other party or exercise
significant influence over the other party. Parties are also
considered to be related if they are subject to common control or
common significant influence.

The state-owned enterprises without other relationships do not
consititute related parties.

21. Fiduciary activities

Where the Bank acts in a fiduciary capacity such as nominee,
custodian or agent, assets arising thereon together with related
undertakings to return such assets to customers are excluded
from the financial statement.

22. Operating leases

Leases which transfer substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership of the assets to the lessees are classified as finance
leases. Other leases are classified as operating leases.

The Bank mainly recorded operating leases as a lessee. Rental
payments are charged to the income statement on the straight-
line basis over the lease terms.

23. Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from

past events and whose existence will only be confirmed by the
occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future
events not wholly within the control of the Bank. It can also be a
present obligation arising from past events that is not recognised
because it is not probable that an outflow of economic resources
will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be measured
reliably.

The Bank will not recognise contingent liabilities, but disclosed in
the notes to financial statements. In case the condition changes,
which led to the outflow of economic resources is probable,
provision will be made.
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24. Accrued liability

An obligation related to a contingency is recognised as accrued
liability when all of the following conditions are satisfied (except for
contingent liability recognised in a business combination):

(i) the obligation is a present obligation of the Bank;

(i itis probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required
to settle the obligation; and

(iii) the amount of the obligation can be measured reliably.

The accrued liability is initially measured at the best estimate

of the expenditure required to settle the related present
obligation. Factors pertaining to a contingency such as the risks,
uncertainties and time value of money are taken into account

as a whole in reaching the best estimate. The Bank reviews the
carrying amount of a provision at the balance sheet date. The
carrying amount of a provision will be adjusted when there is
clear evidence that the amount does not reflect the current best
estimate.

25. Offsetting

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset only when the
Bank has a legally enforceable right to offset the recognised
amounts and both parties of the transaction intend to settle on a
net basis.

26. Significant accounting judgment and estimates

In the process of applying the accounting policies, the
management has used its judgment and made assumptions of
the effects of uncertain future events on the financial statements.
The use of judgment and key assumptions concerning the future
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the balance
sheet date have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment
to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial period.

Impairment losses of loans and advances

The Bank determines periodically whether there is any objective
evidence that impairment losses on loans and advances have
occurred. If any such evidence exists, the Bank assesses the
amount of impairment losses. The amount of impairment losses
is measured as the difference between the carrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Assessing the
amount of impairment losses involving significant judgment on
whether the objective evidence for impairment exists and also
significant estimates when determining the present value of the
expected future cash flows.
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Income tax

Determining income tax provisions requires the Bank to estimate
the future tax treatment of certain transactions. The Bank carefully
evaluates tax implications of transactions in accordance with
prevailing tax regulations and makes tax provisions accordingly. In
addition, deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which
the deductible temporary differences can be utilised. This requires
significant estimation on the tax treatments of certain transactions
and also significant assessment on the probability that adequate
future taxable profits will be available for the deferred tax assets to
be recovered.

Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities with active
markets are determined based on the market prices. For financial
instruments with no active markets, fair value are established
using valuation techniques such as making reference to

recent transactions or other comparable financial instruments,
discounted cash flow method and option pricing models. To the
extent practicable, valuation technique makes maximum use of
market inputs. However, where market inputs are not available,
management needs to make estimates on areas such as credit
risk (both own and counterparty’s), volatility and correlation.
Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments.

Classification of investment

Significant management judgment is required to evaluate the
classification of investments, since different classification will
result in different accounting treatments and financial positions of
the Bank. If improper judgment on the classification of investment
is noticed after the balance sheet date, the Bank may need to
reclassify the whole investment portfolio.

Derecognition of financial instruments

The management of the Bank has assessed and made
judgments on the extent to which it retains the risks and rewards
of ownership of the financial instruments for the transferred
transactions entered into, and make relevant accounting
treatments accordingly.



1. AEREFHPRBFITHD

1. Cash and balances with central banks

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
EFENE Cash on hand 6,179,239 5,367,965
TR RBITEEEZS-ARM  Statutory deposit reserve with the central banks - RMB 1,989,270,082 664,137,583
EHHPRBITEE EEES-IND Statutory deposit reserve with the central banks - foreign currency 73,465,560 25,768,914
TR SARAT R E AR I Other deposits with central banks 361,575,047 809,943,689
ait Total 2,430,489,928 1,505,218,151

REFEARRITHAERNE, FARUITIR—ELRYMTFIES
eTPEARRIT. BRSTHINDERESESR EARIIDERR
MHIS%HE, ARMHEREZENZE EARARTEFRARTAI16.5%
17 (20094 : 13.5%)

2. 7FHRRE LR

In accordance with relevant regulations issued by the People’s
Bank of China (“PBOC”) the Bank should place a statutory
deposit reserve fund with the PBOC. The statutory deposit
reserve fund could not be used for daily operations. The required
statutory deposit reserve ratios set by the PBOC is 5% of the
balance of customer deposits denominated in foreign currencies
at the end of last month, and 16.5% (Year 2009: 13.5%) of the
balance of customer deposits denominated in RMB at 10 days
before the month end respectively.

2. Due from banks

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
FRIERETEL Due from domestic banks 1,574,765,716 572,165,497
FRUSINMBITEIY Due from foreign banks 75,617,777 188,797,684
FRE W EER Net amount of due from banks 1,650,383,493 760,963,181
3. IFrHHE 3. Placements with banks and other financial institutions

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

IR & IR A ERAT Rk
IR AE H R SMRATR]
IR A S

Placements with domestic banks

Placements with foreign banks

Net amount of placements with banks and other financial institutions

3,450,718,335 1,945,285,993
- 184,361,400

3,450,718,335 2,129,647,393

4. TEEMIA

TEeRTAE-—MEM~ R, ENEBRTHEARMBS—M "&
it emrRENSEeTENME. BEXL "EilT TRE
ERE. KREMA. GEmh. BEmNSUCERRRRSE, £ARIEZ
ANTEeRTASEZRAN. =R

4. Derivative financial instruments

A derivative is a financial instrument, the value of which is derived
from the value of another “underlying” financial instrument, an
index or some other variables. Typically, an “underlying” financial
instrument is a share, commodity or bond price, an index value or
an exchange or interest rate. The bank uses derivative instruments
such as forwards, futures, swaps and options.
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FAREAEPRREENMEEEAERTANTESRTA.

ARA TR AR AAFENITESMTANT:

The notional amount of a derivative represents the amount of
underlying asset upon which the value of the derivative is based.
It indicates the unsettled volume of business transaction at the
balance sheet date. The amount of underlying asset reflects the
risk exposure of derivative at the end of accounting period other
than fair value.

The fair value is the amount for which an asset could be
exchanged, or a liability settled, between knowledgeable and
willing parties in an arm’s length transaction.

The bank has no derivative designated as hedging instruments.

The notional amount and fair value of the Bank’s derivative
instruments are as follows:

2010-12-31
BRKIHAIFHEXET A RME
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
3 Am 3 AEhE 14E 554 ait #= fE
Over three  Over one year
Within three months but but within five

months  within one year years Total Assets Liabilities
MCOETR:  IEEe e
HIE A Forwards 57,572,120 1,842,355,499 40,695,600 1,940,623,219 125,612,082 1,011,865
HHEH Swaps 6,452,255,907 2,735,484,100 - 9,187,740,007 25,526,085 33,657,985
HNEA Options 289,640,086 373,071,846 - 662,711,932 1,983,862 1,983,862
N Sub-total 6,799,468,113 4,950,911,445 40,695,600 11,791,075,158 153,122,029 36,653,712
FIEGTETE: Interest rate contracts:
HHIE4 Swaps 1,309,632,000 999,340,500 781,671,136 3,090,643,636 10,411,287 8,869,658
HANEA Options 1,826,439,514 2,393,649,412 129,758,561 4,349,847,487 16,868 16,868
/N Sub-total 3,136,071,514 3,392,989,912 911,429,697 7,440,491,123 10,428,155 8,886,526
AmNi&E#HTITE: Commodity contracts:
HHAEH Swaps - 42,358,721 - 42,358,721 66,715 74,128
AL Options - 10,311,743 6,431,501 16,743,244 1,309,345 1,309,345
INVE Sub-total - 52,670,464 6,431,501 59,101,965 1,376,060 1,383,473
BEMEEHTE: Equity Contracts:
HHEH Swaps - 31,697,020 37,954,190 69,651,210 1,561,802 1,704,586
HANEL Options 690,229,726 1,162,971,491 199,230,190  2,052,431,407 5,011,707 5,183,436
INE Sub-total 690,229,726 1,194,668,511 237,184,380 2,122,082,617 6,573,509 6,888,022
Ait Total 10,625,769,353 9,591,240,332 1,195,741,178 21,412,750,863 171,499,753 53,811,733
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2009-12-31

REKRBF ST ELEH NRME
Notional amounts by remaining life Fair values
3T ARW 3N AENE 16 5|56 Ait #= it

e Curtioonots Oreeiewit oty s i
SMCETETA: Exchange rate contracts:
AL Forwards 65,795,923 333,557,301 - 399,353,224 853,790 608,046
IS4 Swaps 279,439,384 1,009,118,000 - 1,288,557,384 2,747,308 2,979,970
A Options 21,037,222 - - 21,037,222 39,958 39,958
INIT Sub-total 366,272,529  1,342,675,301 - 1,708,947,830 3,641,056 3,627,974
FIZEGTETR: Interest rate contracts:
IS Swaps - 725,551,000 450,000,000 1,175,551,000 3,866,047 5,728,926
BREL Options 160,008,495 1,170,788,461 274,398,045 1,605,195,001 399,136 399,136
NIE Sub-total 160,008,495 1,896,339,461 724,398,045 2,780,746,001 4,265,183 6,128,062
HmiNtEE#HITE: Commodity contracts:
& Options 7,495,201 21,662,855 - 29,158,056 - -
BREMEREHTE: Equity Contracts:
BREL Options 155,428,474 18,015,381 121,863,333 295,307,188 4,563,198 4,563,198
At Total 689,204,699  3,278,692,998 846,261,378 4,814,1569,075 12,469,437 14,319,234
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5. HFIE

5. Interest receivables

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
(RS MR R Interest receivable on bond 59,776,927 781,051
TR & Interest receivable on loan 34,667,845 27,678,482
INBERFNMKF B Interest receivable on reverse repurchase bond 5,766,397 -
5] Ml N7 R B ELA Interest receivable from banks and others 18,057,642 2,027,757
&it Total 118,268,811 30,487,290

6. KRGIRXFIEE
6.1 A AFdk 515

6. Loans and advances to customers
6.1 Distribution of loans and advances by individual and
corporate is as follows:

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

PNGE B Individual loans and advances:
BRI Mortgages 1,538,487,198 589,063,131
HE Others 25,570,849 29,337,005
NF Sub-total 1,564,058,047 618,400,136

ol G Rk AR Corporate loans and advances:
B Loans 8,223,502,930 8,999,160,825
850 Trust receipts 19,420,224 62,335,796
[l Discounted bills 4,993,556 3,962,322
HAt Others 6,749,235 15,612,043
INF Sub-total 8,254,665,945 9,081,060,986
e s Total 9,818,723,992 9,699,461,122

B REIRR
PRI 1B

Less: Loan impairment provisions

Carrying value of Loans and advances to customers

(285,625,164)

9,533,098,828

(305,468,049)

9,393,993,073
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6.2 BITUSTH

6.2 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by

industry is as follows:

2010-12-31

T E R ER LB 51(%)

Amount Rate(%)
LHE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing 84,974,927 1%
KA Mining - -
g Manufacturing 3,818,609,002 39%
B, BSRKBSEFE R R Electricity, gas and water supply 207,965,845 2%
A Construction 173,053,286 2%
KBk, CEFIHRE Transportation, storage and post 67,375,286 1%
FREER, ITEVRSFZ 4L Telecommunication, computer service and software 150,000,000 2%
HEFIZEW Wholesale and retail 883,959,423 9%
EERE R Accommodation and catering 240,360,767 2%
Bl Real estates 2,399,862,939 24%
TREME SRS Leasing and commercial services 127,209,073 1%
BEHR, FHARSHMREZ Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation 12,000,000 -
KA, IMEFIAFLIZEEIR Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 22,790,000 -
BRRSIHARS Residents services and other services 64,443,750 1%
#Ha Education - -
D&, HeREMESER Health, social security and social welfare 2,061,647 -
MWNEEI Consumer credit 1,564,058,047 16%
e G = st Total amount of loans and advances 9,818,723,992 100%

B BEIR R
IR K E 11{E

Less: Loan impairment provisions

Net value of loans and advances

(285,625,164)

9,5633,098,828
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2009-12-31

T T R 50 e (%)

Amount Rate(%)
PRARHE Agriculture, forestry, farming and fishing - -
KA Mining 51,700,000 1%
g Manufacturing 4,274,277,205 44%
B, BRROKBOAEFEFNA Rl Electricity, gas and water supply 180,282,000 2%
2l Construction 210,518,600 2%
ZIRIEH, CEFABEN Transportation, storage and post 59,858,334 1%
EEEM, ITENRS I Telecommunication, computer service and software 143,529,775 2%
HEFZEN Wholesale and retalil 571,794,131 6%
EEmEsl Accommodation and catering 297,738,493 3%
Pl Real estates 2,432,728,126 25%
FAEME SRS Leasing and commercial services 699,368,703 7%
BEWR, FARSHREIZ Scientific research, technical services and geologic perambulation 14,000,000 -
IKF, IREFIA IS HEE TR Water conservancy, environment and public facilities administration 23,140,000 -
ERRSMEMARS W Residents services and other services - -
HEW Education 120,000,000 1%
&, #HeREMESER Health, social security and social welfare 2,125,619 -
PAHBRER Consumer credit 618,400,136 6%
G Total amount of loans and advances 9,699,461,122 100%
W REIRKER Less: Loan impairment provisions (305,468,049)

GRS K E A &

Net value of loans and advances

9,393,998,073
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6.3 RMX5SH

6.3 Distribution of loans and advances to customers by
geographical region is as follows:

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
it North-East 216,583,473 553,990,000
7R East 4,668,984,279 4,891,817,711
S5y North 2,091,531,489 964,309,281
feh Central 221,415,095 253,071,870
tm South 1,528,694,662 1,773,738,343
i3] South-west 1,080,745,352 1,082,193,846
FIM X Overseas 10,769,642 180,340,071

BRI ZEN
B REIRAR S
P FIR K E 1B

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: Loan impairment provisions

Carrying value of loans and advances

9,818,723,992
(285,625,164)

9,5633,098,828

9,699,461,122
(305,468,049)

9,393,998,073

6.4 BHERAXNSH

6.4 Analysed by type of collateral or guarantee:

2010-12-31

2009-12-31

ERRHE
TRIETRE
PHE RA TR

Hep: iR

B ANE K E B

Unsecured loans

Guaranteed loans

Loans with collateral

Secured by mortgages

Secured by pledges

Total amount of loans and advances
Less: Loan impairment provisions

Carrying value of loans and advances

1,312,875,619
2,089,457,442
6,466,390,931
5,083,070,700
1,3883,320,231
9,818,723,992

(285,625,164)

9,633,098,828

1,316,879,615
3,042,210,966
5,340,370,541
4,389,022,098
951,348,443
9,699,461,122
(305,468,049)

9,393,993,073
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%

6.5 EHITTEC 6.5 Overdue Loan
2010-12-31
BEIXEX EHNXEIE(E1E) B EE3E(R35) HHABEM £ #it
Overdue 91 days to Overdue
Overdue 1day 1 year Overdue 1 year to 3 years
to 90 days (included) 3 years (included) above Total
FRIEEERR Guaranteed loans 16,700,000 - 9,200,362 - 25,900,362
MIFBRHIEIZK Loan with collaterals 9,781,352 10,000,000 253,577,129 - 273,358,481
He: Of which:
IR secured by mortgages 31,352 10,000,000 253,577,129 - 263,608,481
SRR Secured by pledges 9,750,000 - - - 9,750,000
&it Total 26,481,352 10,000,000 262,777,491 - 299,258,843
2009-12-31
BEIXZEX EHNXEIE(E1E) BN EEIE(535) HEHABEM £ &it
Overdue 91 days to Overdue
Overdue 1day 1 year Overdue 1 year to 3 years
to 90 days (included) 3 years (included) above Total
FRIE SRR Guaranteed loans 5,130,753 27,164,920 10,251,678 - 42,547,351
MIIBRHIEIZR  Loan with collaterals 2,835,132 34,789,683 317,569,654 - 355,194,469
He: Of which:
IR secured by mortgages 2,835,132 34,789,683 317,569,654 - 355,194,469
A1t Total 7,965,885 61,954,603 327,821,332 - 397,741,820

AR A 2SR BB E Re L BRI B
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Overdue loans are loans of which the principals or related
interests are overdue one day or above.



6.6 WEMKEZMEER. 13)

6.6 Loan impairment provisions(Note 5, 13)

20104
Year 2010
B HE Fit
Individual Collective Total
FEYIRE Opening balance as at 1 January 2010 186,691,076 118,776,973 305,468,049
AEITR Charge for the year 8,821,841 30,573,979 39,395,820
AEZH Write-off for the year (562,306,560) - (52,306,560)
AEHE( Reverse for the year 5,788 - 5,788
LTEER Exchange rate difference (5,565,304) (1,372,629) (6,937,933)
FERFEN Closing balance as at 31 December 2010 137,646,841 147,978,323 285,625,164
20094 &
Year 2009

BT HE Ait
Individual Collective Total
EYREN Opening balance as at 1 January 2009 150,172,147 134,222,119 284,394,266
AFEIHE Charge for the year 56,819,567 (15,399,805) 41,419,762
KFEZE Write-off for the year (20,208,526) - (20,208,526)
LERER Exchange rate difference (92,112) (45,341) (137,453)
FERFRE Closing balance as at 31 December 2009 186,691,076 118,776,973 305,468,049

7. AIEHESMB ™ 7. Available-for-sale financial assets
2010-12-31 2009-12-31

BREER: Bond investments:

IR ITER N E & Central bank bills and government bonds 2,355,936,970 199,781,250
Al R Corporate bonds 447,736,300 -
BRMERITRSE Bonds issued by policy banks 836,381,533 400,637,807
&1t Total 3,640,054,803 600,419,057
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8. INBEERMHA™

8. Reverse repurchase financial assets

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
RN F o Classified by counter-party:
SRATIRI A Other banks 1,592,450,000 -
BB M. Classified by pledge
= Bonds 1,592,450,000 -
9. EEH™ 9. Fixed assets
MR mees gi e
Properties and Office equipment
20105 & Year 2010 buildings Motor vehicles and computers Total
B Cost or valuation:
20101 B1H At 1 January 2010 4,798,060 4,937,719 26,533,037 36,268,816
AN Additions - 338,000 17,528,754 17,866,754
@?’g@?;j?)\ I,:lir;:fgf ngg)construct|on in progress ) ) 2 003,125 2003125
KELHE Disposals - (1,457,299) (603,103) (2,060,402)
201012 A31H At 31 December 2010 4,798,060 3,818,420 45,551,813 54,168,293
ESagiil=E Accumulated depreciation:
20101 H81H At 1 January 2010 1,284,110 4,108,214 12,053,299 17,445,623
FEITR Additions 80,102 219,317 4,648,893 4,948,312
KEHE Disposals - (1,457,299) (590,686) (2,047,985)
201012 A31H At 31 December 2010 1,364,212 2,870,232 16,111,506 20,345,950
Bl E # =i E Net book value
201012 A831H At 31 December 2010 3,433,848 948,188 29,440,307 33,822,343
BEAEREES: (EE. 13) Impairment provision: (Note 5, 13)
20101 B1H At 1 January 2010 692,573 - - 692,573
AELLH Disposals - - B} B
2010F12831H At 31 December 2010 692,573 - - 692,573
[&] 7E 3% 7= i B Net carrying amount:
2010F12A831H At 31 December 2010 2,741,275 948,188 29,440,307 33,129,770
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pEx EiE et ait
Properties and Office equipment
20095 Year 2009 buildings Motor vehicles and computers Total
Bt Cost or valuation:
20091 81H At 1 January 2009 4,798,060 4,621,968 22,046,309 31,466,337
AEIEINER Additions - 315,751 4,637,494 4,953,245
e ot - - e e
KELRE Disposals - - (286,691) (286,691)
2009%F12A31H At 31 December 2009 4,798,060 4,937,719 26,533,037 36,268,816
Hit#rlH: Accumulated depreciation:
2009F1A1H At 1 January 2009 1,204,008 3,955,904 8,147,679 13,307,591
AEITHR Additions 80,102 152,310 4,061,157 4,293,569
AEHE Disposals - - (155,537) (155,537)
200912 A31H At 31 December 2009 1,284,110 4,108,214 12,053,299 17,445,623
Bl E =i E Net book value
2009F12A31H At 31 December 2009 3,613,950 829,505 14,479,738 18,823,193
_:EEI \%ﬁfzﬁﬁ;ﬁ%; (P Impairment provision: (Note 5, 13)
200941 81H At 1 January 2009 692,573 - - 692,573
AEFH Disposals . - B 3
200912 A31H At 31 December 2009 692,573 - - 692,573
[&] 7E 73 7= 14 B Net carrying amount
2009F12A31H At 31 December 2009 2,821,377 829,505 14,479,738 18,130,620
F2010£12A31H, DIRENIBMAEEANEEA=EREENT:
As at 31 December 2010, details of fixed assets which were fully depreciated but still in use are as follows:
pER EiE s ait
Office equipment and
Properties and buildings Motor vehicles computers Total
MK mE R 1E Original cost - 2,624,732 4,923,960 7,448,692
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10. kR &=

10. Intangible assets

20106 20094
Riing Software Year 2010 Year 2009
B Cost or valuation:
FHIRE Opening balance 32,330,480 24,644,219
FFEWE Additions 4,541,223 1,478,931
ERTIREZEANMER. 12.2) Transfer from construction in progress (Note 5, 12.2) 7,647,767 6,207,330
FRREN Closing balance 44,519,470 32,330,480
ST Rk Accumulated amortisation:
FEHKTE REN Opening balance 4,311,028 1,505,235
REHR Additions 4,190,436 2,805,793
FERFE Closing balance 8,501,464 4,311,028
ToR 5 P B R Net carrying amount
FRREN Closing balance 36,018,006 28,019,452
11. BEFRBHAT/(T1H) 11. Deferred tax assets/(liabilities)
20104 Year 2010
ERT AL AR HELER ERRT
Credited/ Credited/
(charged) (Charged)
38 3E BT 15 8 B 72/ (51 4%) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1/1/2010 to profit and loss to equity 31/12/2010
IR R Loan impairment provision 44,666,516 9,281,857 - 53,948,373
EEAFREER Fixed asset impairment provison 173,143 - - 173,143
PAWIY Pre-operating expense 4,254 (4,254) - _
iyt i = Depreciation of the fixed asset 232,958 (37,679) - 195,279
AR ESBAT AR IR oaioed profit orloss on the 2,257,115 - 2,685,004 4,942,209
available-for-sale financial assets
TEEMTAEARNESZE Changes in fair value of derivatives 462,449 (29,884,454) - (29,422,005)
IR EGIS(E Revaluation of option (1,755,883) (246,078) - (2,001,961)
ESvaawilist Non-accrued interest 7,624,209 (135,571) - 7,488,638
ZEME Operating lease 177,604 20,692 - 198,296
IR I I AR S Payroll payable 4,065,674 1,500,291 - 5,565,965
&It Total 57,908,039 (19,505,196) 2,685,094 41,087,937
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20094 Year 2009

&5
FEHRE AETARE H#EITA ERRE
FRAENE
Credited/ Credited/
(charged) (Charged)
BIEFTBRA~/(H115) Deferred tax assets/(liabilities) 1/1/2009  to profit and loss to equity 31/12/2009
WK R Loan impairment provision 43,834,599 831,917 - 44,666,516
Bl E AR E R Fixed asset impairment provison 173,143 - - 173,143
PARIY Pre-operating expense 292,785 (288,531) - 4,254
B E# IR Depreciation of the fixed asset 253,446 (20,488) - 232,958
A st iz ae  UNrealised profit or loss on the
A ESR A ALY RS . ) . 5,059,313 - (2,802,198) 2,257,115
available-for-sale financial assets
TEEMmI AN NETE) Changes in fair value of derivatives 1,001,104 (538,655) - 462,449
AN E hiEE Revaluation of option - (1,755,883) - (1,755,883)
JERTITFI R Non-accrued interest 3,144,494 4,479,715 - 7,624,209
ZEHE Operating lease 156,913 20,691 - 177,604
MIRMTITIALRK S Payroll payable - 4,065,674 - 4,065,674
N s L un Changes in fair value of financial
AT EL B H TSR assetg at :‘air \I/;Leuthrouglgjh pr(ljfit
T A AT =
MBS A=A METE) and loss (68,380) 68,380 i i
&1t Total 53,847,417 6,862,820 (2,802,198) 57,908,039
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12, Hith 5™~

12. Other assets

i
Notes 2010-12-31 2009-12-31
KERRFMZE A Long-term deferred expenses 12.1 25,788,615 17,449,750
TREITRE Construction in process 12.2 5,235,145 1,364,471
Ho A SR Other receivables 12.3 33,803,552 22,572,514
it Total 64,827,312 41,386,735
12.1 KHIFHES: A 12.1 Long-term deferred expenses
SRE HANEERHRTZH HESR ait
2010 E Year 2010 Membership fee Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
FHREN Opening balance - 13,361,060 4,088,690 17,449,750
AEE Additions 192,248 2,988,568 - 3,180,816
AEAEETIRENBE  Transfer from construction in
EEH. 12.2) progress(Note 5, 12.2) i 9,778,284 i 9,778,284
AELE Disposals - (164,370) - (164,370)
AEPEE Amortisation (17,771) (4,239,454) (198,640) (4,455,865)
FRREN Closing balance 174,477 21,724,088 3,890,050 25,788,615
AANEER~HRZH HEH ait
20094 & Year 2009 Leasehold improvement Rental fee Total
. i I 12,263, 4,287,331 16,550,631
AR Opening balance 63,300 87,33 6,550,63
AL Additions 4,808,646 - 4,808,646
AEFETREN Transfer from construction in progress
FHER. 12.2) (Note 5, 12.2) 477,016 ) 477,016
KEHE Disposals (434,305) - (434,305)
AEREH Amortisation (3,753,597) (198,641) (3,952,238)
FRREN Closing balance 13,361,060 4,088,690 17,449,750
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122 EETHE

12.2 Construction in progress

20104 20094

Year 2010 Year 2009
FHIRE Opening balance 1,364,471 143,931
AFIEIN Additions 23,674,192 8,040,811
BEANBEERFHHER. 9) Transfer to fixed assets (Note 5, 9) (2,093,125) (135,925)
BANTERFHHER. 10) Transfer to intangible assets (Note 5, 10) (7,647,767) (6,207,330)
EHKERFRER AT Transfer to long-term deferred
F.12.1) expenses (Noteb, 12.1) (9,778,284) (477,016)
Hebgg> Other decrease (284,342) 3
FEXRAE Net closing balance 5,235,145 1,364,471
12.3 HAd R 12.3 Other receivables
Wi Aging 2010-12-31 2009-12-31
1FBLA Within 1 year 27,161,044 17,086,954
1-24 1-2 years 2,755,744 3,460,329
2-34F 2-3 years 2,405,910 1,831,525
3FEMLE More than 3 years 1,480,854 193,706
ait Total 33,803,552 22,572,514

ARREEETE N E MM KRB AT B W RREHITN . INALTE IR AR EES,
The management of the Bank has assessed the recovery of other receivables on a regular basis and made the judgment that there is no
need to provide bad debts provision for the balance as at 31 December 2010.
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13. AFEEEES

13. Provision for impairment losses

FERET AEITHRE B LEER FERRE
Exchange rate

20104 Year 2010 1/1/2010 Accrual Write-off difference 31/12/2010
WK ES Provision for loans
MHEE. 6.6 (Note 5, 6.6) 305,468,049 39,395,820  (52,300,772) (6,937,933) 285,625,164
EE A REE®Z  Provision for fixed assets
FHERE. 9) (Note 5, 9) 692,573 - - - 692,573
it Total 306,160,622 39,395,820  (52,300,772) (6,937,933) 286,317,737

FERE AEITHRE i LEER FERRE

Exchange rate
20094 & Year 2009 1/1/2009 Accrual Write-off difference 31/12/2009
WK ES Provision for loans
MHEE. 6.6 (Note 5, 6.6) 284,394,266 41,419,762  (20,208,526) (137,453) 305,468,049
EE A REE®Z  Provision for fixed assets
FHEE. 9) (Note 5, 9) 692,573 - - - 692,573
At Total 285,086,839 41,419,762  (20,208,526) (137,453) 306,160,622
14. Bl EHETE 14. Due to banks
2010-12-31 2009-12-31

BERRITETFR Due to domestic banks 2,086,350 -
HFIMRAT R TR Due to foreign banks 293,766,369 54,832,613
&1t Total 295,852,719 54,832,613
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15. FARBAESE

15. Placements from banks and other financial
institutions

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

B RERITRIAR AR AR
BAMRATE AR AR AN

Placements from domestic banks

Placements from foreign banks

165,567,500 430,000,000

4,945,771,351 4,000,717,354

&it Total 5,111,338,851 4,430,717,354
16. IR =50 16. Customer deposits
2010-12-31 2009-12-31
HEEK Current deposits:
AREF Corporation 2,717,822,243 2,650,556,682
PAEFR Individual 179,344,123 77,254,675
INF Sub-total 2,897,166,366 2,727,811,357
EHEFEX Time deposits:
NEEF Corporation 9,434,407,546 3,622,332,642
PAER Individual 1,360,787,488 291,202,732
INF Sub-total 10,795,195,034 3,918,535,374
ait Total 13,692,361,400 6,641,346,731

LW ERFE 2B RIREUANARTS,433,116,39450 (2009-
12-31: ARmM834,613,55370) . LA RE, HNTITES
BET R, FEAFEREN. SNCER. BRENMEEDHRN. FRNE
THEINGE . Eha UMMEANART1,083,268,9077 (2009-12-31
. ANRM834,613,55370) KM ARITELMT EHINEANEEER
RABYRR, A, 228 ESERSHF. EARNMEDITALT
et TASEF,

Customer deposits include wealth management products
amounting to RMB 5,433,116,394 (RMB 834,613,553 as at 31
December 2009). These structured deposits are embedded with
derivatives which are mainly interest options, foreign exchange
options, equity options and commodity options, etc. Among
which there are RMB 1,083,268,907 (RMB 834,613,553 as at 31
December 2009) book value derivatives which are considered
not closely related to the host contract. Consequently, the Bank
separates them from deposits and the fair value is recorded in
derivatives.
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17. BZ{TER T ErE

17. Payroll payables

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
TH. e WAL odawbonussuosidy 20,216,200 14,469,838
and allowance

HSRERLEELARE Social insurance and Housing Fund 2,026,722 1,777,516

ITBZHRMNIHE LR Labour union expenditure and staff education 20,937 15,342

A1t Total 22,263,859 16,262,696
18. [ H#E 18. Tax payables

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

Bl A R Bt hn Business tax and surcharges 6,394,247 5,554,861

A FTEH Corporate income tax (20,414,941) 4,879,203

Hitb Others 20,079,728 17,341,957

&1t Total 6,059,034 27,776,021

FRRAFEFERIRABRRIITIOT:

R - N NAIS%ITEE W F

1l BT S R - RIE20084%1B1HEMHEITH (BT
BRGEY . W FTBE B 2008F 217N
IMTEFTSEIH25%it 8, KARARMT
KN Z B R A25%.

RN AFTER - ARBAZMAERRANTFE, HARNERH

ERFOEA APTSRL
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The major categories of tax applicable to the Bank and the

respective tax rates for the current financial year are as follows:

Business tax — The Bank is subjected to a business
tax rate of 5%.

— In accordance with the PRC
Enterprise Income Taxation Law,
which has been implemented since
1st January 2008, both domestic
and foreign enterprises are subjected
to a corporate tax rate of 25%. The
corporate income tax rate adopted
by the Bank for its RMB and foreign
currency business has been amended
to 25% since 1st January 2008.

Corporate income tax

— In accordance with the relevant tax
laws in the PRC, the Bank is required
to withhold individual income tax on
salaries paid to its employees.

Withholding Individual
Income tax



19. fTFE 19. Interest payables

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
BFEHRATHE Interest payable arising from customer deposits 91,557,392 9,707,842
ENANERpAlSysacx i Interest payable to banks and others 1,140,685 1,760,250
&1t Total 92,698,077 11,468,092
20. H it 5 fi; 20. Other liabilities

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

FEEIEERIN Settlement and clearing 7,906,529 4,886,835
NATITR G iR 55 %2 IT system service fee 10,977,731 1,068,649
HAth Others 20,659,317 12,804,512
At Total 39,543,577 18,759,996

21. TPHF 21. Paid-up capital

20104E F 20094
Year 2010 and Year 2009
ZEART %
RMB equivalent %
KERITEIRAF] United Overseas Bank Limited 3,000,000,000 100

FRIWAACELUHITESHARIE, FHETRARSE. EFHBE  The paid-up capital was verified by the Certified Public
KERITAERADIN /AT EBEART1,198,680,917.657T. B Accountants with capital verification. RMB equivalent amounting
BEHREXDITRZTEERENEERSRETEAAZEART  to1,198,580,917.65 was injected by United Overseas Bank Ltd.,
1,801,419,082.357C - in cash, and the rest was transferred from operating capital of

former branches in Mainland China.
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22, FFLR

22. Capital reserves

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
AMEHESH AT A AMEZE)  Fair value changes of available-for-sale financial assets (19,768,832) (9,028,458)
Frigfissim Income tax impact recognised directly in equity 4,942 209 2,257,115
(14,826,623) (6,771,343)

23. 2521 23. Surplus reserves
ENEEH AEIE KERD EREH
1/1/2010 Increase Decrease 31/12/2010
EERRLR Statutory surplus reserves 7,917,626 9,299,332 - 17,216,958

RIBAREMALARERNINE, HFER201MF4R1AEERRIL,
AR EIREFRERN0%REVEER R ARE . FERRLRETTN
AAREMAARS0%L LR, AITNBZEL

AR ERIEEERAREF, TRIEIEEARARE. 2,
ERRARARETATRAMANEESRIEMBER. REALTE
SRWHRY, FFEENMeRIEARARE.

24. — MRS &

AN AR £[2005]498 XX (&7l REFIRIEEINE) BN
TEMBEEFE PR R N _E A T RS A = B R R AR % L1 R —
HRES, EAFSESEAE., AN TEE0I1FE4R1HNES
SR, BB N ESIT ARM70,432,58270. F2010F12A
318, AARM—RXESREANART202,536,18870, 2ikZ|
AN BN B ERREHI1 %o

According to the Company Law of the People’s Republic of
China and the Bank’s Articles of Association, accompanied with
resolution passed by the board of directors on 1 April 2011, the
Bank has appropriated 10% of its profit to the statutory surplus
reserves. The Bank should appropriate until the reserves balance
reaches 50% of its registered capital or above.

After the statutory surplus reserves have been appropriated, the
Bank may appropriate discretionary surplus reserves. Discretionary
surplus reserves can be used to compensate for the accumulated
losses of previous years or convert to capital upon approval. It

has been determined by the Board of Directors of the Bank that no
discretionary surplus reserves is appropriated this year.

24. General reserves

According to the regulation CaiKuai [2005] No. 49 “Circular on
Impairment Loss on Loans” issued by the Ministry of Finance,
the Bank is required to set aside a general reserves of at least
1% of its total risk assets at year end from net profit and the
general reserves shall form part of the Shareholders’ equity. With
the approval of the Board of Directors on 1 April 2011, general
reserves amounting to RMB 70,432,582 is set aside in 2010, and
as at 31 December 2010, total general reserves is

RMB 202,536,188, which reaches 1% 2010 of the Bank’s total risk
assets as at 31 December 2010.

ENREM AN AER D FERFH
1/1/2010 Increase Decrease 31/12/2010
— RN General reserves 132,103,606 70,432,582 - 202,536,188
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25. FKSEFIE

25. Retained earnings

20104 20094/

Year 2010 Year 2009
FEHRDEAE Retained earnings brought forward 229,909,802 290,754,766
ez aINiEd Net profit for the year 92,993,315 79,176,268
B IRBUEER ST Less:Appropriation to statutory surplus reserves 9,299,332 7,917,626
e IRE— M XS Less:Appropriation to general reserves 70,432,582 132,103,606
ERKDEHE Closing balance of retained earnings 243,171,203 229,909,802

RIE (PEARKMEARE) RARBNORAER, ARAFEE

(1) WEFAEMSHME: (2) FABIFEESH; (3) REUE
EBAARE: (4) BRE—MARES: (6) RINEERRERAR
w5, AIMFERREXARARK. —RNLEERETE SR
BULBIER AR RXEAMNIRT, HARAESERRE,

SEFEANREHAAREESRE, HSTEBHER. WEHSKRKE
HttE X REMEE.

According to the Company Law of the People's Republic of China
and the Bank's Articles of Association, the profit of the Bank

can only be distributed to shareholders after (1) fulfilling all tax
responsibilities, (2) compensating any accumulated losses, (3)
making appropriation to statutory surplus reserves,(4) making
appropriation to the general reserves, (5) making appropriation to
the discretionary surplus reserves. The appropriation ratios of the
general reserves and surplus reserves are decided by the Bank's
Board of Directors in compliance with the relevant regulations.

The profit distribution is decided by the Bank’s Board of Directors,
with reference to the operation performance, financial positions,
and other relevant factors.

26. FIRBEA 26. Net interest income
20104 20095
Year 2010 Year 2009
FIEWAN: Interest income:
TFRE Due from banks 55,997,393 5,085,545
R RARIT Due from central banks 19,810,756 11,301,296
R A#E  Loans and advances to customers 394,168,562 460,542,702
INEBEEESH Reverse repurchase bonds 11,196,221 -
FHAESRHM  Placement with banks and other financial institutions and others 41,252,071 22,692,941
N Subtotal 522,425,003 499,622,484
FIEFZH: Interest expense:
ENZE Due to banks 377,865 657,333
USEgE Customer deposits 179,383,156 87,902,119
AR ERHEAM  Placement from banks and other financial institutions and others 36,667,684 48,885,861
N Subtotal 216,428,705 137,445,313
FI 2B Net interest income 305,996,298 362,177,171
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27. FEBRRAEHBA

27. Net fees and commission income

20104 % 20094 &
Year 2010 Year 2009
FEERASWA: Fees and commission income:
SEHEEEFER Settlement and clearing fees 8,509,170 4,834,304
RIB A SZF 5228 Agency brokerage fees 5,376,875 927,896
ERAEFEHAES Credit commitment fees 2,040,455 234,607
EEEAXREN Credit related income 8,043,268 10,928,077
=gic) Others 2,276,603 2,112,750
N Subtotal 26,246,371 19,037,634
FEERAESZTH: Fees and commission expense:
FERIE Fee expenses 3,229,718 3,302,914
\S7y Subtotal 3,229,718 3,302,914
FEBRRAESHEEAN Net fees and commission income 23,016,653 15,734,720
28. A 28. Investment income
20106 20094 &
Year 2010 Year 2009
ARG MEFBEHEER R AR Gain/(Loss) on disposal of held for trading bond investments (123,862) (2,097,728)
AMEHERERAHESRT Gain on disposal of available-for-sale bond investment (59,880) 12,946
B AT BN Bond Interest income 36,893,477 10,906,803
it Total 36,709,735 8,822,021
29. N EENIRE 29. Gains or losses from changes in fair values
20106 20095 &
Year 2010 Year 2009
AR5 BRI SRR Held for trading financial assets - (273,520)
fTE4mIT A Derivative financial instruments 120,522,128 9,178,151
Hitb Others (3,985,317) 1,368,645
ait Total 116,536,811 10,273,276
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30. I XREHEE

30. General and administrative expenses

20106 & 20095 &
Year 2010 Year 2009
RT#A: Staff costs:
ITHENES Salaries and bonuses 151,042,400 111,107,344
EREF A0 Defined contribution schemes 20,010,603 14,701,847
HiERT %A Other employee benefits 6,380,128 6,061,639
N Subtotal 177,433,131 131,870,830
#rIR%R Depreciation 4,948,312 4,293,569
RPPEHER Amortisation 8,646,301 6,758,031
%% A Other operating expenses 106,526,122 79,890,842
it Total 297,553,866 222,813,272
31. AFBERK 31. Impairment losses
20104 % 20095 &
Year 2010 Year 2009
CEROR B Impairment losses for loans 39,395,820 41,419,762
32. BB 32. Non-operating income
20104 20094
Year 2010 Year 2009
B ERFUEFR Gain from the disposal of fixed assets 395,307 -
INFE NERIT AN (GE) Subsidy for opening foreign-funded bank (Note 1) 6,000,000 6,000,000
HAth Others 2,293,551 2,060,323
&1t Total 8,688,858 8,060,323

E BRIELETMBE (KT RFARTEATRRIET
BRI FTEN) BME, ARBRGREFFAE, IZA MR 6]

D EIREL.

Note 1: According to the policy "supplementary to the policy of
supporting the development of foreign-funded banks in Shanghai”
issued by Shanghai Financical Bureau, the Bank received a one-
off start-up subsidy, which was obtained in proportion on yearly

basis.
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33. BElshZiH

33. Non-operating expenses

20106 5 20094

Year 2010 Year 2009

EE AP ERE Loss on the disposal of fixed assets - 193,255

Hit Others 507,540 972,284

&it Total 507,540 1,165,539
34. Fri5HEH 34. Income tax expenses

20106 20094

Year 2010 Year 2009

LHAET R Income tax expenses for the current year/period 13,472,294 32,507,335

IBIEFTISRL Deferred income tax expenses 19,505,196 (6,862,820)

&it Total 32,977,490 25,644,515

FrisfiE A SRR AR T: The reconciliation of income tax expense to profit before tax is as

follows:

20106 20095 %

Year 2010 Year 2009

RiBIFE Profit before tax 125,970,805 104,820,783

R TERE25% 1T EHIFLIN Tax charge on a tax rate at 25% 31,492,701 26,205,196

XFPABTHA [B) 4 AR R T JE = Adjustment in respect of prior periods 98,815 (600,840)

AR ISR Non-deductible items 1,385,974 40,159

g figR A Income tax expenses 32,977,490 25,644,515
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35. RERMEEF MY

35. Cash and cash equivalents

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
e Cash 6,179,239 5,367,965
MEEMY: Cash equivalents:
FERIRZE=1AAKE With original maturity less than three months
-TERUE L FR I -Due from banks 1,091,702,493 617,570,981
-FHA S -Placements with banks and other financial institutions 2,596,762,515 1,705,866,630
INBREESBAFT Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,022,450,000 -

R AR T H AR RN
FEEER (WWEHEZ="ARNEE)
INF

&it

Other Deposits with central banks-General deposit reserve
Bond investment with original maturity less than three months
Subtotal

Total

361,575,047
149,682,450
5,222,172,505
5,228,351,744

809,943,689

3,133,381,300
3,138,749,265

36. Hit&E&WE

36. Other comprehensive income

20104 2009fF &

Year 2010 Year 2009

A ESR A A RMEEE) Net change in the fair value of available-for-sale financial assets (10,740,374) 11,208,793
PS5 M Income tax impact recognised directly in equity 2,685,094 (2,802,198)
&t Total (8,055,280) 8,406,595
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The Bank monitors its daily business operation according to RMB
business and foreign currency business separately. Operating
expenses and depreciation charge, which are directly attributed
to such business, are allocated to that business directly. Common
operating expenses, are allocated between the RMB book and
foreign currency book in accordance with the proportion of

total interest income. Interest income and interest expense are
recorded separately in accordance to the currency. Segment
information of the Bank’s RMB business and foreign currency

business is as follows:

2010£12A31H
31 December 2010

ARl e &it
RMB Foreign Currency

Business Business Total

#= ASSETS
WM& RFMTREITEHIN Cash and balances with central banks 2,353,792,771 76,697,157 2,430,489,928
R E W Due from banks 1,144,651,628 505,731,865 1,650,383,493
FHAS Placements with banks and other financial 2,510,000,000 940,718,335  3,450,718,335

institutions

MEESRA™ Derivative financial assets 9,241,887 162,257,866 171,499,753
IR Interest receivables 103,388,998 14,879,813 118,268,811
RGEE AR Loans and advances to customers 5,531,756,631 4,001,342,197 9,533,098,828
A E SRR Available-for-sale financial assets 3,251,931,470 388,123,333 3,640,054,803
INBEEFRTT Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,592,450,000 - 1,592,450,000
& 72 Fixed assets 18,200 33,111,570 33,129,770
TR A= Intangible assets - 36,018,006 36,018,006
BIEFT R AT Deferred tax assets 11,003,672 30,084,265 41,087,937
HAib Other assets (2,317,120,932) 2,381,948,244 64,827,312
AR TOTAL ASSETS 14,191,114,325 8,570,912,651  22,762,026,976
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2010128310
31 December 2010

ARBLE LN ES &it
RMB Foreign Currency
Business Business Total
ki LIABILITIES
ENIREETT Due to banks 240,355,851 55,496,868 295,852,719
FAAS iFr’]I:tci;ti?s:;s from banks and other financial ) 5.111,338,851 511,338,851
TESB AR Derivative financial liabilities 7,055,168 46,756,565 53,811,733
ISR Customer deposits 12,226,718,254 1,465,643,146 13,692,361,400
JSEATER T S M Payroll payables - 22,263,859 22,263,859
73z i 28 Tax payables 2,375,459 3,683,575 6,059,034
INERp Y=Y Interest payables 88,295,267 4,402,810 92,698,077
Ht sk Other liabilities 1,567,383 37,976,194 39,543,577
TR R TOTAL LIABILITIES 12,566,367,382 6,747,561,868 19,313,929,250
FBEE&EN® EQUITY
SR A A Paid-up capital 1,390,051,270 1,609,948,730 3,000,000,000
BANT Capital reserves (7,910,141) (6,916,482) (14,826,623)
BRATR Surplus reserves 4,781,864 12,435,094 17,216,958
— XA General Reserves 142,180,591 60,355,597 202,536,188
KOEFE Retained earnings 95,643,359 147,527,844 243,171,203
FrEEN@EIT TOTAL EQUITY 1,624,746,943 1,823,350,783 3,448,097,726

nERFIEEREAT

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

14,191,114,325

8,670,912,651

22,762,026,976
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2009£12A31H
31 December 2009

ARl E N &it
RMB Foreign Currency
Business Business Total
#r= ASSETS
W& REFMPREITHIN  Cash and balances with central banks 1,477,129,911 28,088,240 1,505,218,151
e ENIE Due from banks 12,129,680 748,833,501 760,963,181
FHAS Placements with banks and other financial 495,000,000 1,634,647,393 2,129,647,393
institutions
TSR Derivative financial assets 3,825,138 8,644,299 12,469,437
RIUFI R Interest receivables 19,321,058 11,166,232 30,487,290
RGN Loans and advances to customers 5,180,141,374 4,213,851,699 9,393,993,073
At ESRART Available-for-sale financial assets 199,781,250 400,637,807 600,419,057
& E 7 Fixed assets - 18,130,620 18,130,620
TR R Intangible assets - 28,019,452 28,019,452
HIEPTISRLF Deferred tax assets 4,310,261 53,597,778 57,908,039
HAtb Other assets 5,501,651 35,885,084 41,386,735
BRI TOTAL ASSETS 7,397,140,323 7,181,502,105 14,578,642,428
i f LIABILITIES
ENIRERLET Due to banks - 54,832,613 54,832,613
PN E':tﬁ?s:f from banks and other financial 430,000,000 4,000,717,354 4,430,717,354
TESRAGR Derivative financial liabilities 4,354,913 9,964,321 14,319,234
ISLeE 4 Customer deposits 5,547,079,237 1,094,267,494 6,641,346,731
NEATER T Hr M Payroll payables - 16,262,696 16,262,696
INEFiTE Tax payables 10,285,275 17,490,746 27,776,021
INEREAlE= Interest payables 10,086,422 1,381,670 11,468,092
HAh R Other liabilities (340,567) 19,100,563 18,759,996
AR TOTAL LIABILITIES 6,001,465,280 5,214,017,457 11,215,482,737
FEEN EQUITY
SRR A Paid-up capital 1,160,051,270 1,839,948,730 3,000,000,000
BRANTR Capital reserves (6,509) (6,764,834) (6,771,343)
BRAR Surplus reserves 4,084,311 3,833,315 7,917,626
— PRI General Reserves 59,708,835 72,394,771 132,103,606
RAEFE Retained earnings 171,837,136 58,072,666 229,909,802
FaEENRET TOTAL EQUITY 1,395,675,043 1,967,484,648 3,363,159,691

nERFAEENEALT

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

7,397,140,323

7,181,5602,105

14,5678,642,428
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2010

Year 2010
ARl LN &it
RMB Foreign Currency
Business Business Total
—. BAKA 1. OPERATING INCOME
lISUON Interest income 358,755,410 163,669,593 522,425,003
FEZH Interest expenses (175,864,064) (40,564,641) (216,428,705)
TV TN Net interest income 182,891,346 128,104,952 305,996,298
FEHERBEEN Fee and commission income 13,031,558 13,214,813 26,246,371
FEHELASIH Fee and commission expense (1,385,722) (1,843,996) (3,229,718)
FERLMEFEKN  Net fee and commission income 11,645,836 11,370,817 23,016,653
KRN E Investment income 32,952,306 3,757,429 36,709,735
NAMEZEIRE Gains or losses from changes in fair value 2,591,983 113,944,828 116,536,811
LR R Foreign exchange loss - (31,244,298) (31,244,298)
Al WA/ ) Other operating income/(expense) (892,924) 26,651,576 25,758,652
BRI N=yas TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 229,188,547 247,585,304 476,773,851
—. Bl EH 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
B £ BN Business tax and surcharges (15,680,449) (6,354,229) (22,034,678)
WK EIRE General and administrative expenses (172,287,562) (125,266,304) (297,553,866)
BrEERERK Impairment losses (33,780,624) (5,615,196) (39,395,820)
EWEZ AT TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (221,748,635) (137,235,729) (358,984,364)
=. BRI 3. OPERATING PROFIT 7,439,912 110,349,575 117,789,487
JIRE=NZNIPN Add: Non-operating income 2,780,403 5,908,455 8,688,858
W BN H Less: Non-operating expenses (290,176) (217,364) (507,540)
M. FiE R 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 9,930,139 116,040,666 125,970,805
W BTSRRI ER Less: Income tax expenses (2,954,607) (30,022,883) (32,977,490)
. EFE 5. NET PROFIT 6,975,532 86,017,783 92,993,315
N HitGgEE s 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (7,903,632 (151,648) (8,055,280)
. EFEWHEDEH 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (928,100) 85,866,135 84,938,035
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Year 2009
ARl CN RIS &it
RMB Foreign Currency
Business Business Total
—. Bl 1. OPERATING INCOME
FEWN Interest income 329,498,997 170,123,487 499,622,484
FEZH Interest expenses (98,030,544) (39,414,769) (137,445,313)
EIVET DN Net interest income 231,468,453 130,708,718 362,177,171
FEHR AW Fee and commission income 8,221,683 10,815,951 19,037,634
FEHLBEZHE Fee and commission expense (2,186,805) (1,116,109) (3,302,914)
FER LA AN Net fee and commission income 6,034,878 9,699,842 15,734,720
Eaa g Investment income 777,450 8,044,571 8,822,021
NRMEZEIRE Gains or losses from changes in fair value 638,938 9,634,338 10,273,276
SLiRs Foreign exchange loss - (6,159,394) (6,159,394)
HAb S W) Other operating income/(expense) 128,559 (3,657,583) (3,529,024)
ERZ9N=vry TOTAL OPERATING INCOME 239,048,278 148,270,492 387,318,770
. Bl 2. OPERATING EXPENSES
Bl B4 I Bt hn Business tax and surcharges (16,374,515) (8,785,222) (25,159,737)
NIE=YS A= FEE General and administrative expenses (141,065,518) (81,747,754) (222,813,272)
AR ERE Impairment losses (25,742,248) (15,677,514) (41,419,762)
Bl HAELT TOTAL OPERATING EXPENSES (183,182,281) (106,210,490) (289,392,771)
=. BAFE 3. OPERATING PROFIT 55,865,997 42,060,002 97,925,999
JIRE=R 2NN Add: Non-operating income 2,320,103 5,740,220 8,060,323
R BN Less: Non-operating expenses (677,924) (487,615) (1,165,539)
M. i 4. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 57,508,176 47,312,607 104,820,783
e BTEHER A Less: Income tax expenses (16,665,064) (8,979,451) (25,644,515)
. &R 5. NET PROFIT 40,843,112 38,333,156 79,176,268
N HitE&WEs 6. OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME (6,509) 8,413,104 8,406,595
t. FERERT 7. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME 40,836,603 46,746,260 87,582,863
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1. Commitments

Capital commitments
The Bank has no material capital commitments as at 31 December
2010.

Operating lease commitments

The Bank leases certain premises under operating lease arrangements.
The total future minimum payments in respect of non-cancellable
operating leases at the balance sheet date are as follows:

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
—FAE—F) Within 1 year 60,990,043 29,156,576
—FEU EZEPAEZF) 11to 2 years 52,480,508 11,407,936
“HEY E=FENAE=F) 2 to 3 years 41,287,362 8,805,033
=FPE Over 3 years 26,180,257 9,447,247
&t Total 180,938,170 58,816,792
2. EH&iE 2. Credit commitments

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
MEERER: Financial guarantee contracts:
RITARGLILE Bank acceptance 5,000,000 4,000,000
{RERZRIN Letter of guarantee 23,613,048 21,899,434
%= REMIE Standby credit letter 722,912,739 14,748,912
FFHAE BIE Letters of credit issued 878,398,841 88,348,549
N Sub-total 1,629,924,628 128,996,895
AAIISHAO SRS ARIE:  Irrevocable loan commitments with original maturity of:
FREIFHEIFEUA Within one year - B}
FBERAIESL L More than one year 199,153,013 553,421,799
N Sub-total 199,153,013 553,421,799
Ait Total 1,829,077,641 682,418,694
Eg%iﬁﬂ@ﬁﬁmmm Weighted credit risk of credit commitments 176,291,194 302,912,460

WEBREBEFERLER. —EXFPRRESSZSHARITHEERE
ERSHETAENLSH, RITEERITHERRE.

Financial guarantee contracts, with the nature of guarantee,
require the Bank to be obliged to fulfill the customers’
responsibility as guarantor in case that the customers fail to repay
the contracted amount or fail to fulfill their obligations.
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Loan commitments represent the commitment made by the Bank
to its customer to grant a certain amount of loan in the future.
Loan commitments are normally attached with an effective date
or termination clause, and it is possible that the Bank may not
need to fulfill such commitment on the maturity date. Hence, the
amount of the loan commitments does not necessarily represent
the future expected cash outflow.

3. ZRRUF 3. Entrusted Business

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
TERE Entrusted deposits 23,000,000 -
TR Entrusted loans 23,000,000 -

ERASERGFFEFTARANZI, NATREFEAEEENE=
TEMERZ . RFEXNERNEAR SRR,

4. SHHE
BEEEEN, T2010FE, A FRMITL. 2 ERFIEH BN
BARIN, FELEMEE Rk

RARXAEBREBIHEARAZE W SHE S R 7 AEE D
%, AENTRANEEFERELRHNER. ARAAANEENE
HRTHEEESRNERIN, EHMRFEBRIEEENRATR
RERMERFEHE AN . WFLFERZHIZ (LA IR 80 K AFAE
FARRRRBBFEALLEN .

BOARABIERAE . REALR. BRAMR. —BREESFRIEF
e WERAASE—ESMEMHERA.

AABREFURITERREERNE (PERITILKEERERS
% (2007) $£75) HENRAATERMNT:

M
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Entrusted deposits represent funds from depositors, which
depositors have instructed the Bank to grant loans to third parties
designated by them. The credit risk remains with the depositors.

4. Contingent liabilities

As at 31 December 2010, according to the management, there
was no other contingent liabilities except those that have been
disclosed in Note 7, 2.

The Bank has adopted a strong capital management method

to mitigate the inherent risk in the business operation and
complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital
management. The Bank also targets to maintain sufficient capital
adequacy ratio for operations and optimising shareholders’ value.
The Bank may adjust its capital structure actively to adapt with the
change of economic environment and related risk characteristics.

Core capital includes paid-up capital, capital reserves, surplus
reserves, general reserves and retained earnings. Supplementary
capital includes general loan provision and others.

The capital adequacy ratio calculated by the Bank in accordance
with the “Regulations Governing Disclosure Information of
Commercial Bank” (CBRC [2007] No.7 ) promulgated by CBRC is
as follows:



2010-12-31

2009-12-31

AINAE E 2 Core capital
A Supplementary capital
AZNE Net capital base

IR P RN A A% Risk weighted assets and market risk adjustment

3,316,5634,045

195,177,001
3,5611,711,046
8,967,355,235

3,355,695,042

120,894,852
3,476,589,894
9,316,034,216

B BEARTE R Core capital adequacy ratio 36.98% 36.02%
RATRE Capital adequacy ratio 39.16% 37.32%
1. ERARE 1. Credit risk

1.1 ERARKER

FRARRERS NSRBI FEARNE, EZRBITOERATRI
S F AR F L MIMLETE L SHBER S ARRNRE
AR EZERE FRHEAMBR, FIMENEANEEERET
FEFEMIE. ST RATAIRAE

FERNEHETRE: Y—EHNENST R ERITHRNEEEN,
b FAEEHHIEA & S HAT ABHANLFFEELRITAL
KN =2 EE—2F SR m. FERNKHETEE R TRIT
WSy —AF EAT I s IR (T B SRR

RN RRERERTE S I . SRS ER R RR R R AR
HB PR T E AR . AN R ERANEFNEERR T
BE, WRFRERTOMFRETENERRKEEZEE.

Tt 54848 I SRR AROE P AR RS ZE S B 5 RN SR B R AR L o
Hit, ZEXZSHRIE. REEENMAMIERERETESHH
ARl AR

1.2 REREAERYEHE IS RERE BN & XS AR O
FRFEAFRERA, AEREMERYREMERERBEENEKER
JXUBSE L 33 I T DT

1.1 Credit risk management

Credit risk is the risk of loss arising from the inability of a
borrower’s or counterparty’s inability to meet its obligations as
and when they fall due. The Bank’s credit risk exposure mainly
arises from loans and advances to customers. Credit risk of
off balance sheet items mainly arises from the letters of credit/
guarantees, issued as well as loan commitments.

Credit risk centralisation refers to the situation whereby there is

a concentration of customers in the same business activities,
geographical location, or industry sector with similar economic
characteristics such that their repayment ability would be affected
by the same economic fluctuations. Credit risk concentration
reflects the sensitivity of the Bank’s performance to such
customer concentration.

The Bank establishes a comprehensive set of policies and
procedures which effectively mitigate and control credit risk.

The procedures cover credit evaluation, credit approval, credit
monitoring as well as reporting. The Bank reviews the borrowers’
business operations periodically, analyses the quality of credit
portfolio and ensures adequacy of loan loss provisions.

The risk from financial guarantee and loan commitments is similar
with that from loans and advances to customers. Hence, the Bank
adopts the same policies and procedures for managing credit
contingencies which cover application, follow-up monitoring and
collateral requirements, etc.

1.2 Maximum credit risk exposure without consideration of
any collateral and credit risk mitigation

As at the balance sheet date, the maximum credit risk exposure
of the Bank without taking into consideration of collateral and
credit risk mitigation is set out in the following page.
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2010-12-31

2009-12-31

FE R AR TR Balances with central banks

Ec NI el Due from banks

INRESBAF Reverse repurchase financial assets
TSR~ Derivative financial assets
RIS R Loans and advances to customers
A ESR AR Available-for-sale financial assets
Hp = Other assets

&It Total

FErAIE SRR D EHEE. 2) Credit commitments (Note7.2)
A RS Maximum credit risk exposure

2,424,310,689
1,650,383,493

3,450,718,335

1,692,450,000
171,499,753
9,633,098,828
3,640,054,803
152,072,363
22,614,588,264
1,829,077,641
24,443,665,905

1,499,850,186
760,963,181

2,129,647,393

12,469,437
9,393,993,073
600,419,057
58,059,804
14,450,402,131
682,418,694
15,132,820,825

1.3 NEEFRE

WS FEFTEIT X, sHEASFLELFSE, S
ANKEBEESENRS. N, AEITI X L7 R RIEEM
BRI S, ELARE BT AN X 1S A XS IR AN [E]

ARAEZABEATFRUIFRMFBRER . KARRMEZMN
BHRRTWEEFE, ESEMIR. 6.

1.4 HEY
AN BRELZ SN FHE BN AR ETEREEY SN IR,
AN BB IRY R THEXHIER, SEXBERYITEIMEET
AR E K.

AR b T L R
- NTEASER, BRONEE. DLRER. REORDIE
: %i&xﬁ%,@ﬁ%ﬁﬁﬁ@@o

BT8R T R 518681 SR RO T H I E S IRIBAR S LR

BMIIRY, FAERTRAEENTEEFER TS ERIBRYEOT
M.
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1.3 Risk Concentration

The concentration of borrowers/counterparties in the same
industry sector, geographical location or having similar economic
characteristics would tend to pose higher credit risk to the Bank.
On the other hand, the level of credit risk may be varied from for
each industry or geographical location in view of their unique
economic development characteristics.

The Bank mainly provides loans and commitments/guarantees to
domestic customers. Analysis on industry sector concentration for
the Bank’s loans and advances can be found at Note 5, 6.

1.4 Collateral

The amount and type of the collateral required would depend
on the credit risk of the borrowers/counterparties as assessed
by the Bank. The Bank has established a guideline on accepting
collateral including the frequency of collateral valuation.

The main types of collateral taken by the Bank include:

e  For corporate & commercial loans, main collateral taken include
properties, cash deposits, bank guarantee and machinery; and
e  Forpersonal loans, collateral taken are mainly residential properties.

The management requires relevant Business Units to monitor the
market value of the collateral and follow up with the borrowers/
counterparties to top up collateral in accordance with the relevant
provisions of the loan agreements. The change in market value
of the collateral would also be taken into consideration when
reviewing the adequacy of loan loss provisions.



1.5 ERAKRE

FABEMEHMAT GRHKRREESR) BEARESTWNT:

1.5 Credit quality
The credit quality of financial assets of the Bank (excluding loan

provisions) is analysed as follows:

2010-12-31 %*ﬁﬁég Eiﬁ‘é SREE &it
Neither overdue nor ~ Overdue but not

impaired impaired Impaired Total
FERE I Due from banks 1,650,383,493 - - 1,650,383,493
FlRe Efgi?j:;s with banks and other financial 3.450.718.335 ) - 3450718335
Y=\ Interest receivables 118,268,811 - - 118,268,811
KILRE AN Loans and advances to customers 9,509,445,448 26,481,352 282,797,192  9,818,723,992
AL ESEATT  Available-for-sale financial assets 3,640,054,803 - - 3,640,054,803
INIBREEFATT  Reverse repurchase financial assets 1,592,450,000 - - 1,592,450,000
&it Total 19,961,320,890 26,481,352 282,797,192 20,270,599,434
2009-12-31 E’E*ﬁﬁg Eﬁfé% ERE Fit

Neither overdue nor Overdue but not

impaired impaired Impaired Total
R E LRI Due from banks 760,963,181 - - 760,963,181
FlAe Elstti:tirt?oe:;s with banks and other financial 0.120,647,393 ) . 2129,647,393
INLedlbst Interest receivables 30,487,290 - - 30,487,290
RIS FARER Loans and advances to customers 9,301,719,302 7,965,885 389,775,935  9,699,461,122
AT HESBA  Available-for-sale financial assets 600,419,057 - - 600,419,057
INIRESBATT  Reverse repurchase financial assets - - - -
ait Total 12,823,236,223 7,965,885 389,775,935 13,220,978,043
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Loans and advances that are neither overdue nor

impaired

The composition of loans that are neither overdue nor
impaired by collateral arrangement as at the balance sheet
date is as follows:

2010-12-31

%

Pass

*iE

Special Mention

&it

Total

Unsecured loans

Loans secured by guarantees
Loans secured by mortgage

Loans secured by pledges

Total

1,312,875,619
2,003,5637,379

1,312,875,619
2,003,537,379

4,814,993,480 4,468,739 4,819,462,219

1,373,570,231 - 1,373,570,231

9,604,976,709 4,468,739 9,5609,445,448
2009-12-31

% XiE &it

Pass Special Mention Total

Unsecured loans

Loans secured by guarantees
Loans secured by mortgage

Loans secured by pledges

Total

1,316,879,615
2,979,725,271
4,029,481,034

961,348,443
9,277,434,363

19,938,344
4,346,595

24,284,939

1,316,879,615
2,999,663,615
4,033,827,629

951,348,443
9,301,719,302

EEHE R BRI 55 R 2%

THEFGRE, CBERAENEBERR

B T T

Loans and advances that are overdue but not impaired

balance sheet date is as follows:

Aging analysis of loans that are overdue but not impaired as at the

2010-12-31

1A 1™A 24 R o
B )24 B 534 B &it FHEERAMARMNE
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
R NESF  Loans and advances to customers 26,481,352 - - 26,481,352 75,451,725

2009-12-31

1A 1A 24R .
S 24 5 B34 5 &t FHEERNARNE
Within 1 month 1 to 2 months 2 to 3 months Total Fair value of collaterals
W Loans and advances to customers 7,959,404 6,481 - 7,965,885 31,860,000
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Impaired loans and advances

Where there is objective evidence that a single or multiple
negative events have occurred after the initial recognition of the
loans and the impact from the events on the expected future
cash flows can be estimated reliably, the relevant loans should
be recognised as impaired loans. These loans are classified as
“Substandard”, “Doubtful” or “Loss”.

As at the balance sheet date, the fair value of collateral of impaired
loans held by the Bank were as follows:

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

B SR R

The collateral value of impaired loan

2,082,673,300 1,758,228,558

ERRMEA N E AR BRI B AR AL ELB AT IR
Xt & F AT RSN BT A T BT B EA T

BEHANRH TR REZ
FRBEATRAFIEEMEW AL EEER XS, WL TRAELAR
®, DEERENHEEREK.

TAFAGRRAEERANRM AR BRKENEIRAT:

The fair value of collateral that the Bank holds is determined from
the latest external valuation with necessary adjustment made after
considering the Bank’s own experience in collateral disposal as
well as the current market conditions.

Restructured loans and advances

The Bank has formulated a set of loan restructuring policies to
renegotiate the contractual terms with customers in order to
maximise the recovery of impaired loans as well as to manage
customer relationships.

The carrying amount of restructured loans and advances is as follows:

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

ZEARKR S ER
-BRE

-Impaired

Restructured loans and advances

10,019,701 -
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ARAREIERNEEEE AT BN EEER THITH, B84
HAFARERSFNTERSHENETEER . EHRRE. KKR
o AFARERSARHEEZNRNENCERRKE, FERH
BANR R A GEMFIRENEREERRL . TR ERAER
BARAARAENEREE. MHEATAGNRERIIRLEE
AN QMK RBER, ARAFRARERS/NEEEE
RECRBRIEN

FARRANERCERHTERREE T RANENFRITL . FPE
B, HFEEZEURN2ITUNEMBRT. BAARRNREEET
AXZAERMEReRoITEF ARERERIX RN R K ZH
EAREZR, BERRRN, RIT T —RINHFAEEARKRHEERE
MEREMIEARE R, F A MIEE RIEMRROEMATIERL, IEFRERE
ToREE, BARKNERXAARNFRATEESEW.

T2010F12A31H, ARANEMAFT REB AR B 2TF
WRTT.
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2. Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is defined as the risk that the Bank is unable to meet
its financial obligations as and when they fall due. Liquidity risk
arises from the general funding of the Bank’s banking activities
and in the management of its assets and liabilities including
off-balance sheet items.

Liquidity risk is managed in accordance with a framework of
policies, controls and limits approved by the Asset Liability
Committee and Executive Committee. The Asset Liability
Committee formulates key strategies on liquidity risk management
and reviews the Bank’s asset liability structure and liquidity

risk profile on a monthly basis. Day-to-day management of the
Bank’s liquidity is undertaken by Global Markets & Investment
Management Division while Market & Balance Sheet Risk
Management Department independently monitors and reports
liquidity risk exposures against control limits to the Asset Liability
Committee/Risk Management Committee.

The Bank’s liquidity risk management covers the whole

process of strategy development & planning, risk assessment

& measurement, monitoring & review as well as contingency
planning. The Bank measures and manages liquidity risk

mainly by analysing contractual cash flows of maturing assets
and liabilities. The Bank also employs liquidity early warning
indicators, including indicators imposed by regulators, and control
limits to monitor liquidity risk on a daily basis. Liquidity early
warning indicators are further classified to signal different level of
contingency situations for appropriate actions.

The Bank’s maturity profile of financial assets and liabilities as at
31 December 2010 is depicted in the following page.
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3. THRMEE

TR EEEX S FeRRNMBNHEA, XZAAGHTERER
EELHIRBE . A2 R IR T Kb 25k B I EFDC R REH
H3k~fo ARANRZHN S RIFLZ S SHATET TR &
ARG EIE R BARER R W AR EE T hi e £ E
MK, FNERANRZ SR TEAEREEREAIRZ0.

FARANGEER DB 2THTERE O, 7 a=sExmE
RN EEBRBER = AEERSTPTER S E. FEIGERIT
MR FCIRG R RER S/ N EEER S .

ARRRBREEEMSERR N EEMING, HEZNEETR
EBESRM ST RSN E ENMRE. R Rl s L4,
1% fa AL 55 R A T KBS R R ALE T AFHR

3.1 CERE
FEEATARA R MR R MEE AURINC A 5 T % I i g
JXBS L A 22T 2 B8 FE T 3R mh T 5| A2 B9 KR o

F2010512A31H, ARRAEXAF RAFHERTMIITHEL TR,

3. Market risk

Market risk is the risk of loss arising from adverse change in
market value of the Bank’s trading portfolio during the holding
period. The Bank is exposed to market risk mainly from foreign
exchange rate and interest rate related products arising from
trading as well as non-trading businesses. The objective of market
risk management is to minimize the negative impact of volatility of
financial instruments on the Bank’s earnings and equity.

The Risk Management Division monitors the Bank’s market risk
exposure and formulates market risk policies for approval by the
Asset Liability Committee and the Executive Committee. Risk
profile reports are submitted to the Asset Liability Committee and
Risk Management Committee on a regular basis.

The Bank measures and manages its market risk in accordance
with a framework of policies and practices which include
sensitivity analysis, Value-at-Risk measure, stress testing etc.

In addition, the market risk associated with any new product/
business is required to be identified and addressed prior to
launch.

3.1 Currency risk

The Bank’s currency risk arises mainly from currency mismatches
of assets and liabilities as well as foreign exchange trading
business whereby the open positions are subject to exchange
rate fluctuations.

As at 31 December 2010, the Bank’s assets and liabilities by
currency is depicted in the following page.
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2010-12-31

£57 AR Hit &it
USD(RMB Other (RMB Total (RMB
equivalent) RMB equivalent) equivalent)
B’= Assets
&R EFMFRBITHRI  Cash and balances with the central bank 70,504,224  2,353,876,188 6,109,516  2,430,489,928
ENZEe Due from and placement with banks 1,310,617,073  3,691,725,435 98,759,320  5,101,101,828
TESRA Derivative financial assets 8,956,620 162,363,916 179,217 171,499,753
BRI Loans and advances to customer 3,504,457,318  5,531,756,630 496,884,880  9,533,098,828
A ESR A Avalilable-for-sale financial assets 388,123,333  3,251,931,470 - 3,640,054,803
INIBERFT Reverse repurchase financial assets - 1,592,450,000 - 1,592,450,000
H A A= Other assets 15,037,639 276,851,940 1,442,257 293,331,836
ArEEI Total assets 5,297,696,207 16,860,955,579 603,375,190  22,762,026,976
T fk Liabilities
EWHFREFEANA S Due to and placement from banks 4,555,744,398 240,355,851 611,091,321  5,407,191,570
TESRAGR Derivative financial liabilities 9,923,635 43,708,880 179,218 53,811,733
Sllged Customer deposits 1,202,341,815 12,226,718,253 263,301,332  13,692,361,400
HAtb 5k Other liabilities 5,542,678 137,334,044 17,687,825 160,564,547
ARET Total liabilities 5,773,552,526 12,648,117,028 892,259,696  19,313,929,250
A=A ST Net position (475,856,319) 4,212,838,551  (288,884,506)  3,448,097,726
TTESTEZ NS Notional amounts of derivative financial
instruments 14,035,237,702  4,289,188,540  3,088,324,621 21,412,750,863
fFEAIE Commitments 747,800,671 974,788,605 106,488,365  1,829,077,641
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2009-12-31

ESH AR Hit &it
USD(RMB Other (RMB Total (RMB
equivalent) RMB equivalent) equivalent)
#= Assets
& RIFMPREITHRIN Cash and balances with the central bank 26,976,655 1,477,299,948 941,548 1,505,218,151
ENEZe Due from and placement with banks 2,235,686,821 526,108,113 128,815,640 2,890,610,574
PTHE SRR Derivative financial assets 4,884,979 7,466,195 118,263 12,469,437
BHESAIE Loans and advances to customer 3,655,238,193 5,180,141,374 558,613,506 9,393,993,073
AR ESR A Available-for-sale financial assets 400,637,807 199,781,250 - 600,419,057
HAtb = Other assets 12,159,318 160,841,147 2,931,671 175,932,136
AEEIT Total assets 6,335,583,773 7,551,638,027 691,420,628 14,578,642,428
itk Liabilities
B FREIFENE S Due to and placement from banks 3,461,275,158 430,000,000 594,274,809 4,485,549,967
TS AR Derivative financial liabilities 6,218,083 7,982,887 118,264 14,319,234
ISR/ Customer deposits 1,004,161,843 5,547,079,237 90,105,651 6,641,346,731
HAb S & Other liabilities 3,194,714 58,147,916 12,924,175 74,266,805
et Total liabilities 4,474,849,798 6,043,210,040 697,422,899 11,215,482,737
ATREIY - C Net position 1,860,733,975 1,508,427,987 (6,002,271)  3,363,159,691
TESMTAEZ LS Notional amounts of derivative financial
instruments 3,131,773,777 1,642,969,352 39,415,946  4,814,159,075
(B Commitments 254,628,279 391,172,638 36,617,777 682,418,694

MTREHMEZE

NERER TN, NN A TICEATRER RN AE

LA BRI AL 22 89520 o

Holding all other variables constant, the impact from a change in
foreign exchange rates on the ‘Profit Before Tax’ and ‘Equity’ of
the Bank is as follows:

2010-12-31

2009-12-31

PO ETE LN ) PO EETE LN )

TETD) Change in Foreign Exchange Rate Impact on profit Impact on profit
SAMTHEE% -1% change against RMB 4,758,563 (18,607,340)
SR HAET% +1% change against RMB (4,758,563) 18,607,340

A ESRMESTEF AMAREARHSHICENG SN, HHET
HHEMERAZE, SN ARTICENSIER LRI T ATFE &
G AR

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static currency risk structure. It shows
the impact of a change in other currency rates against RMB on
the Bank’s ‘Profit Before Tax’ and ‘Equity’, given other variables
remain constant.
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(1) BMCEHREEREEDHIN ARTFREH ARKEFE )T
FEIEIR BN %IER AL R

2) BMMICETIEIREMMI AR TICER [ B

8) WCERPEH ONE & A RERRFIFLE

4) BEFZTEeWESSHIHIKERINER, HMERMEITA
BESMEZ AR ML

HATFEFTERRIE, CTEEUSHEAARLFRE EIASKREWY
AIRES BRI D ITHIE RAE

3.2 FIEXEK
MERLZIEFETRITAT . AEMERIATOEBMERE (FE
EFEMS) HEWMEN GUFHFEMT) WEARERIRM

RARMF RN BN EEBEE
FHEAFARERR/NEERERS

FAHEEANBRNEEERRE,
] E BRI -

RATFHFEHREHERBARBRITHONE. NFEXRICHEEE
ZEEFEEFEMRO DA,

F2010512A31H K“TMéﬂﬁ#&éﬂﬁﬁﬁ REEMHE
HBAFERDENFER
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The analysis is based on below assumptions:

(1) Exchange rate sensitivity refers to the gains and losses
caused by the 1% change of the closing rate(mid rate) of the
different foreign currencies against RMB as at the balance
sheet date;

(2) Exchange rate fluctuation refers to the fluctuation against
RMB in the same direction simultaneously;

(3) Off-balance sheet items are excluded;

(4) Since the Bank’s USD currency book accounted for around
90% of all foreign currency structural positions, the sensitivity
analysis only considers the impact of exchange rate
fluctuation on the USD book.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact of exchange
rate fluctuation on the Bank’s earnings may differ from above
sensitivity analysis.

3.2 Interest rate risk

The Bank’s interest rate risk arises mainly from maturity
mismatches (for fixed rate) or re-pricing mismatches (for floating
rate) of the Bank’s assets, liabilities, and off-balance sheet items.

The Risk Management Division monitors interest rate risk
exposure, formulates related policies and procedures and
provides regular report on interest rate risk profile to the Asset
Liability Committee and Risk Management Committee.

The Bank adheres to PBOC regulations strictly in pricing its
loans and deposits. Interest rate risk exposure is quantified and
analysed mainly using gap analysis tools such as re-pricing
schedules.

As at 31 December 2010, the Bank’s assets liabilities re-pricing
profiles (based on the earlier of maturity date and repricing date) is
in the following page.



2010-12-31

3T AM M AEIE 1ZE5%  SFME iy &it
Within 3 3 months to 1to 5 years Non-interest
months 1 year 5 years above bearing Total
#re Assets
. \ .
AeLFEMARE  Cashandbalances with — 45, 430 45 - - - 80,151,604  2,430,489,928
1T the central bank
BhE e Due from and placement 555 155 754 597,491,879 - : 454,195 5,101,101,828
with banks
TSR Derivative financial assets - - - - 171,499,753 171,499,753
P34 6 G Loans and advances 1o g 7a4 577 au5 743,420,983 - : - 9,533,008,828
customers
AT B4 B A aA;’:'e'f;'e'for'sa'e financial ;113 068,060 1,089.229,143 147,757,600 . - 3,640,054,803
TOEESRARE  overserepurchase 1,022,450,000 570,000,000 - : - 1,592,450,000
financial assets
HA R Other assets - : - - 203,331,836 293,331,836
B Total assets 19,068,689,983 3,000,142,005 147,757,600 . 545,437,388 22,762,026,976
fif& Liabilities
Bl ERRFA RS Due toandplacement 5281213219 125,978,351 - ; - 5,407,191,570
from banks
1T B Derivative financial - - - . 53811733 53,811,733
liabilities
NTIEEE Customer deposits 7,218,649,197 5,740,056,005 733,656,198 - - 13,692,361,400
HAb o6 Other liabilities - - - - 160,564,547 160,564,547
RSt Total liabilities 12,499,862,416 5,866,034,356 733,656,198 - 214,376,280 19,313,929,250
| = R R Net position 6,568,827,567 (2,865,892,351) (585,898,598) - 331,061,108  3,448,097,726
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2009-12-31

3N Al 3N AE1E 1ZE54 SR E Fita &it
Within 3 months to 1to 5 years Non-interest
3 months 1 year 5 years above bearing Total
HBE Assets
EIE ; 4 i
AERARPRE  Cash and balances with 4 175 40 505 . . - 31577,643 1505,218,151
1T the central bank
ENEZ4n Due from and placement , oo 076 705 294,631,368 - ; - 2,890,610,574
with banks
TSR AT Derivative financial assets - - - - 12469437 12,469,437
VLt G Loans and advances 1o g 5og 435 493 795,860,580 - - - 9,393,993,073
customers
NN Available-for-sale financial
ATt E SR assots 300,155,790 300,263,267 - - - 600,419,057
HAAre Other assets - - - - 175,932,136 175,932,136
ArFEEIT Total assets 12,967,907,497 1,390,755,715 - - 219,979,216 14,578,642,428
& Liabilities
R a4 Duetoandplacement o0 19067 230,000,000 - - - 4,485,549,067
from banks
PTESERE Derivative financial - - - - 14319234 14319234
liabilities
W W FERR Customer deposits 4,555,626,496 2,031,881,038 53,839,197 - - 6,641,346,731
Hft otk Other liabilities - - - - 74,266,805 74,266,305
EET Total liabilities 8,811,176,463 2,261,881,038 53,839,197 - 88,586,039 11,215,482,737
IR kO Net position 4,156,731,034 (871,125,323)  (53,839,197) - 131,393,177 3,363,159,691
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FRRTEHFNETAZREENR, WEEFNRTAZRIMBEE
Bit R&MAT LI REBAGHEENBE MR-

UTEEHMEERNTHERT, FMEAERENAEEHNNBEF
o R XA 3 73 T OS2 o

The Bank profiles its interest bearing assets and liabilities based
on maturity date (for fixed rate items) or re-pricing date (for floating
rate items).

Holding other variables constant, the impact of interest rate
movement on the Bank’s ‘Profit Before Tax’ and ‘Equity’ is as
follows:

2010-12-31

Xt B ) B 5 A XA 2 B A1)

TETE Change in interest rate Impact on profit Impact on equity

TR AN1001 £ = + 100 basis points 46,730,145 (9,935,394)

FIZF D100 E = - 100 basis points (46,730,145) 9,935,394
2009-12-31

BT IR I &5 B 0

BETI Change in interest rate Impact on profit Impact on equity

FIZIEIN100E = + 100 basis points

FIZ /D100 E = - 100 basis points

33,104,677 (1,484,388)

(33,104,677) 1,484,718

PAESRAME ST EF AP MAREARHSHRI RN L. BXED
FIEE—FAREENL, RRA-FRNERBAFMAGRHNENRTE
NI AL BHRFEW I ER BRI, EFU TR

(1) FBE=DRAR=AREE—FANEREMN S HIHZ =0 7
BRI R X HA 8 o (8 EHTE M R

(@)WmL ha R R T FATE B

@) AFFAREASHITEHMBEZL:

@) EFRIEREH OSSR A RREZIIFE.

BFETF AR, FIRERESEEAANTDF EFENEIEISEFREL
T8 S BB IR A .

Wi T AR SRR D AT E T W R i & MR R s T H RIL.
BEIREMNE LN —E B AR S ERFRA D ANERIT
ERGESEA.

The sensitivity analysis above is performed on the basis that
assets and liabilities have static interest rate risk structure. It
reflects the impact of interest rate movement on the Bank’s net
interest income over a one year period. The key assumptions are
as follows:

(1) All assets and liabilities with re-pricing date less than three
months or between three months and one year are assumed
to be re-priced in the middle of the respective time bucket;

(2) Yield curve shifts parallelly with interest rate change;

(3) Assets and liabilities are not subject to other changes; and

(4) Off-balance sheet items are excluded.

Due to the above assumptions, the actual impact on net interest
income from interest rate movement may differ from above
sensitivity analysis.

The impact on equity is estimated from the change in market

value of ‘Available For Sale’ portfolio caused by a parallel shift of
yield curve arising from interest rate change.
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4. NRMNE

NAMEREZZRNATHIHERER T2 A TR RILA T EE
Nz HE. EXHERZTH (FINARNESRZ ST FREMEE
T, mhEMITAAANMECRELN. AT, ARRAMFERR
TRy R LG EHit, SFZaamnalae
SBTE, N zRESR MMt TEEEARNE. EE,
ZALETEMTZMESRERAKRNERELND, HEMERIZ,
AR TR R LR 0

PR M2 TR R BRI :

() ManfMETEEHTHITANLIHRENSHAT/SBRAGKE
ETESMAF/ERAK) NS ERAIHSBRmMITERA M
B, HELAHSRZHN, WENEREFAHELANENS
RZ SN AHIRNHELANE. ARNMESETHETE KA
S

(i) T2 RANEBEM e A e AR TIHREE, 8
HHENMEE L AMERS;

(i) NESRFIZLUMERTRUIRTRFEREE, HARMNE
MERTHFETEEE. RRAGTERAEZTNERELR
RAAMENATER, EHARRNR MG BRIEADFHR
%, WIKEER A AN ET0ER;

(v) BREFEHEARRMERBEESEIFE. FRERRTEE
EHzHEERKARXEE B RBANN ST ARANE. BE
EHRZEFFNAANMENR SR EFIVELE, FUEAEZ
TERATF B0 RR AR HABR XY LAY AT sk I

KRRHELAMER T AR UAE AL T AR
MEIT: i EiE BRI RSB TR M
BET: It EEREERAETHEE.
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4. Fair value of financial instruments

Fair value is the value for which an asset could be exchanged,

or a liability could be settled, between willing parties with full
knowledge and on arm’s length basis. Subject to the existence
of an active market, such as an authorised securities exchange,
the market value is the best reflection of the fair value of financial
instruments. As there is no available market value for some of
the financial assets and liabilities held and issued by the Bank,
the discounted cash flow method or other valuation methods
described below are adopted to determine the fair value of these
assets and liabilities. However, the value determined by such
methods would depend on the amount of future cash flows, time
period assumption and discount rates used.

The following methods and assumptions are used in estimating
fair values:

(i) Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss (including
derivative assets/liabilities) are stated at fair value by reference
to the quoted market prices when available. If quoted market
prices are not available, the fair value is estimated using
discounted cash flows or quoted price from the counter
parties. The carrying amounts of these items reflect the fair
value as at the balance sheet date;

(i)  The fair values of other financial assets and liabilities maturing
within 12 months are assumed to be equal to their carrying
amounts in view of their short maturity;

(i) The fair value of fixed rate loans priced at market rate at
the time the loans are extended shall be determined using
prevailing market rates of similar loans. Changes in the credit
quality of loans within the portfolio are not taken into account
in determining the fair values as the impact of credit risk is
recognised separately as impairment provision which shall be
deducted from the carrying amounts and fair value;

(iv) Customer deposits are priced based on fixed rate or
floating rate depending on the product type. The fair value
of demand deposits and saving deposits without specific
maturity date is determined based on the amount payable on
demand. The fair value of fixed deposits are estimated using
discounted cash flows method with the prevailing deposit rate
for the remaining tenor of the fixed deposit as the discount
rate.

The method of determining a fair value in the Bank can be
categorised into two main approaches:

(i) Mark to Market - where the valuation uses independent
unadjusted quoted market prices;

(i) Market to Model — where valuation techniques are used to
determine the valuation.

Valuation adjustments are an integral part of the fair value process
that requires the exercise of judgment to ensure correct fair value
representation. In making appropriate valuation adjustments,

the Bank follows the methodologies that consider factors such

as bid-offer spread valuation adjustment and model valuation
adjustment.
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The Bank has established internal control procedures over the
valuation process to provide assurance over the appropriateness
of the fair values applied. If fair value is determined by valuation
models, the assumptions and techniques within the models are
independently validated by a specialist group. In addition, price
and parameter inputs, assumptions and valuation adjustments
are subject to verification and review processes. Other valuation
control includes review and analysis of daily profit and loss.

The Bank classifies all the fair value instruments according to the
following hierarchy:

Level 1: Quoted market price

This valuation technique uses recent unadjusted quoted prices
for identical assets or liabilities in active markets where the price
represents actual and regularly occurring market transactions
on an arm’s length basis. Financial instruments included in this
class are bonds with the Marked-to-market prices actively made
available and announced by China Central Depository & Clearing
Co. Ltd.

Level 2: Valuation technique using observable inputs

This valuation technique is used for financial instruments where
the prices are derived from standard valuation models, and inputs
to these models are directly observable. The valuation techniques
include the use of discounted cash flow analysis, option pricing
models and other valuation techniques widely used and accepted
by market participants. The financial instruments included in

this category are mainly Foreign Exchange Forward and Foreign
Exchange Swaps, and OTC derivatives (namely money market
deposit and placement, interest rate swap, FX Option) and
financial instruments with fair value derived from counterparty (for
structured products arranged on back-to-back basis).

Level 3: Valuation technique with significant non-observable
inputs

This valuation technique is used where at least one significant

input is not observable and reliance is placed on reasonable

assumptions made on market conditions. There is currently no

financial instrument being classified under such category.

All the assumptions and methods mentioned above provide a
consistent basis for the calculation of fair value of the Bank’s
assets and liabilities. However, other institutions may use different
assumptions and methods. Therefore, the fair values disclosed
by different financial institutions may not be entirely comparable.

In the opinion of the management, the difference between the fair
value and the carrying amount of the financial assets and financial
liabilities is not material as at the balance sheet date.

The following table shows the valuation techniques for evaluating
fair value of finacial instruments.
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g -l = #=F &it
2010-12-31 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AIHHESBA  Available-for-sale financial assets 3,640,054,803 - - 3,640,054,803
TESRA Derivative financial assets - 171,499,753 - 171,499,753
SRVAFTEIT Total financial assets 3,640,054,803 171,499,753 - 3,811,554,556
TESRAGR Derivative financial liabilities - 53,811,733 - 53,811,733
SR ARATT Total financial liabilities - 53,811,733 - 53,811,733

g2—F ol = B=F &it
2009-12-31 Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
AIHESEATT  Available-for-sale financial assets 600,419,057 - - 600,419,057
TSR Derivative financial assets - 12,469,437 - 12,469,437
SRATEIT Total financial assets 600,419,057 12,469,437 - 612,888,494
TESRAGR Derivative financial liabilities - 14,319,234 - 14,319,234
SR ARATT Total financial liabilities - 14,319,234 - 14,319,234

REE, ARARRENLANETEBHE—FERM
FERN R < (B H R i o
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During the year, the Bank had no transfers between level 1 and

level 2 of the fair value hierarchy for financial assets and liabilities

which were recorded at fair value.



1. KEARIAERE

TAFE, THETHRARRERET:

(1) NALBFEINERZ ML T

2 FRAMXBEEEARNUREREXZEVINZFERR;
@) FARAMAREEARNEREXRZEVNORER RES . HEE

IS ME AR MR E b Al .

2. ZRAFLAE:

1. Criteria of identifying related parties
Details of the Bank’s major related parties in 2010 are as follows:

(1) Investors exercise significant influence over the Bank;
(2) Key management personnel of the Bank or the close family

members;

(3) Enterprises under controls, jointly controls or significant
influence of the key management personnel of the Bank or
the close family members.

2. Parent company of the Bank:

E47 A &t R Ef it TR A HHEM L5
Business Registered Registered

Name Nature Address Capital Shareholding

KERITHRAA AT ERRS i 3,854 8 T # M 100%

United Overseas Bank Limited Banking and Financial Service Singapore SGD 3,854 Million 100%

3. FHAHMEFARFTXRBRZBNEMKEA

3. The related parties which the Bank had transactions
during the period are as follows:

RAZHABHEHNAT

Company under the common control of parent company

=L W SR Ef EM A EERERA
Business Registered Registered Legal
Name Nature Address Capital Representative
KA (BT EIR A 7 FTREBBS DSFT HHE T HiERE
United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd Banking and Financial Service Kuala Lumpur Malaysia RM 2 Billion Wee Cho Yaw
SEHARERFMEIAR
Company under the significant influence of the parent company
=L W SR iEf EM A EERERA
Business Registered Registered Legal
Name Nature Address Capital Representative
g V=319 A= e ShAR &2 N AR =15
[BEFERITRDBIRAE RITR £ FHAR S RE HE 16.917,5 E£Eiz
Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited Banking and Financial Service Yantai China CNY 1.69 Billion Jiang Xi Yun
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ZEARNEEFHAREEAREAME A

Company under the significant influence of the Bank’s director and key management

E=t W E R i M AR EERERA

Name Business Nature Registered Address Registered Capital Legal Representative
(BN EE AR AR ZEEIRE HEE] %£582,500A7C HAME

Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited Hotel management Xiamen China USD 25 Million Liam Wee Sin
FEEUFLEFFEBERAR PR hE X2 ARM5.81Z7T HAME

Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd Real estate development Tianjin China CNY 580 Million Liam Wee Sin
PHE B B R B IR E B & FE Lk £IT8,626 57T ABHE=
Shenyang Summer Palace Property Quek Pi Lan

Development Co.,Ltd

Real estate development

Shenyang China

USD 86.26 Million

(Mrs Tay Pi Lan)

MRGREAEE (L) BRAA
UOB Venture Management (Shanghai)

H R R AEE

Consulting and investment

hE LiE

Shanghai China

501,555 7T

USD 15.55 Million

Seah Kian Wee

Seah Kian Wee

Co., Ltd management
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. A £E A4 £7T650 7T Phiip Cheong
Shin Keat
Philip Cheong

UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. Holding company New York USA USD 6.5 Million Shin Keat

K& R A EEBRAF HE R A ER HE N FEIT2,980A 7T i

Kheng Leong Guangdong Investment & Consulting and investment

Management Co., Ltd management Guangzhou China  USD 29.8 Million Wee Ee Chao

RIE( LB A ERAIRAR HE R R ER FE LE £IT45075 T E—

Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment Consulting and investment

Management Co., Ltd management Shanghai China USD 4.5 Million Wee Ee Chao

EBEYRIAEREIRAF HIEMEERA ™R HE &E 2,358 AT SR
Manufacture and sale of Chinese

Hua Han Bio-pharmaceutical Holding Ltd  pharmaceutical products Hong Kong China SGD 23.58 Million  Zhang Yue

B R AR A E prypwi FE KiE ARMB021 a7 BEFE

UBI Logistics (China) Limited International freight forwarder Dalian China CNY 30.21 Milion  Zhao Xi Wang

BITREEABRAR HhEHERZ ™M FE E] %£T10073 7T RER
Manufacture and sale of Chinese

Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. pharmaceutical products Xiamen China USD 1 Million Goh Bee Leong

\ s e MBEMEE KR s — —
T Shiey y R NG - N = 500 E_‘

PRED RSB R E AR AR B AR 2 AR 42 HE R %5003 7T N
Owning and operating

Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium oceanariums entertainment and

Amusement Park Limited related services Chengdu China USD 5 Million Wee Ee Lim
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4. FRAEXBEAZEERS

4. Main transactions between the Bank and related parties

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
RE HEXXS RE HEI%RS
ERSEAngR Loans and advances to customers Balance RERLL (%) Balance REAEL151(%)
E(E)BERRAFR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 132,454,000 1.35 144,757,840 1.49
Kzt HEREMPHRKBR/AET  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 68,120,813 0.69 - -
SEBAE = B T A AR F gg‘jgfgﬁ;ﬁrggiza'ace Property 21,070,650 0.21 ; -
FBYRBIRAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 9,450,000 0.10 22,275,000 0.23
231,095,463 2.35 167,032,840 1.72

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
R HEXZ S RE HEER S
T EIR AR Due from banks Balance REALL51(%) Balance REALL51(%)
KREERITHIRA T United Overseas Bank Limited 35,052,104 0.69 67,843,802 2.35
KEERIT(BRAT)BRAR United Overseas Bank (Malaysia) Bhd 436,928 0.01 - -
BFERITRMOBIRAE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 77,209,013 1.51 88,111,455 3.05
112,698,045 2.21 155,955,257 5.40

2010-12-31 2009-12-31

K HEEXS RE HEERX S
TFEARIFEARI Borrowing from others Balance  £Fitk (%) Balance  £#itkfi(%)
KERITHR LA United Overseas Bank Limited 5,237,532,191 96.86 4,055,549,967 90.41
BERITRMOBIRAE] Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 2,086,350 0.04 - -
5,239,618,541 96.90 4,055,549,967 90.41

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
RE HE%XS RE HE%RS
g Customer deposits Balance RERLL (%) Balance REALL51(%)
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 481,085,033 3.51 419,332,888 6.31
THE BB A B IR F gﬁgﬁ?ﬁjﬁ@@?{gme rroperty 66,264,781 0.48 - -
IR A IR EE)EIRAT gg?ﬁ{gﬂt“m Management (Shangha) 31,769,374 0.23 53,764,745 0.81

BIEMREAGR AT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd 12,909,400 0.09

LW (EN)BEBRAT Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 3,366,337 0.02 16,305,178 0.25
KRB R ASBERAT mag%;oe%f f:?ifgai) investment 4,138,687 0.03 10,008,167 0.15
Kzt HEREMPHRABIR/AE  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 756,823 0.01 - -
MBI ARAR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 189,908 - 1,548,335 0.02
600,480,343 4.37 500,959,313 7.54
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2010-12-31 2009-12-31
RE HEXXS R HEXXS
RYF 2 Interest receivables Balance RELL (%) Balance REALLB51(%)
Kz FEREMmFAEMAR  Tianjn UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 940,943 0.80 - -
(BT BERRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 78,093 0.07 79,014 0.26
RE SRR ERAT stgéaggifEZ?[tza'ace Property 39,332 0.03 - -
FBRBIRAT UBI Logistics (China) Limited 1,601 - 3,778 0.01
KEERITHRA T United Overseas Bank Limited - - 133 -
EFERITRNOBIR A Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 297,763 0.25 40,386 0.13
1,357,732 1.15 123,311 0.40

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
RE HE%ZS RE HEXRS
MATFIR Interest payables Balance KB 5I(%) Balance KB I(%)
KEERITHIRAA United Overseas Bank Limited 1,128,811 122 1,041,301 9.08
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 2,196,300 2.37 124,958 1.09
MR A EE(EE)BFIRAR UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 57,072 0.06 85,250 0.74
EEREABRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 23,195 0.03 - -
FREE ()i A SR ERA A ,\K/lgir;%;g? (Csoh_f"tf’gai) investment 16,717 0.02 41,146 0.36
(B ) EE AR A Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 1,147 - 1,295 0.01
BFERITROBRAE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 292 - - -
Kzl FEREMFARBMART  Tianjn UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 187 - - -
FBEYRAERA R UBI Logistics (China) Limited 41 - 100 .
IEE S T R AR B o ece Fropery 5 : : :
3,422,767 3.70 1,294,050 11.28

2010-12-31 2009-12-31
RE HE%RS R HEXRS
R AR - Bt Rz A3k Payables-other payables Balance REEL (%) Balance RELL (%)
KERITHER AR United Overseas Bank Limited 8,781,430 2221 12,505,057 66.66
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20104 /& 20094

Year 2010 Year 2009
LW SRAEZHEH £ HEXZBEW
FIS WA Interest income Amount EE51(%) Amount LEBil(%)
FBYRERA T UBI Logistics (China) Limited 691,988 0.13 1,329,309 0.27
KiEEWVHFBREMFHLEER/AT  Tianjn UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 5,792,408 1.11 - -
WREEBHFRARAT o SN aece Propeny 214,100 0.04 : :
A (E)BEBRAR Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 2,182,321 0.42 3,882,939 0.78
KERITERAF United Overseas Bank Limited 49,971 - 247,753 0.05
FIE(CWEAEEARAR oo oo Shanghal invesiment : . o0 oo
EBEDHI AT R BIR A Hua Han Bio-pharmaceutical Holding Ltd - - 232,443 0.05
BERITROBIRAE Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 1,807,399 0.35 92,864 0.02
10,738,187 2.05 5,885,078 1.19

20105 & 20094 &

Year 2010 Year 2009
E HR%ZS Ex HR%ES
FIE 3 H Interest expense Amount EHLL (%) Amount S ELLF)(%)
KRERITHRAT United Overseas Bank Limited 24,864,432 11.49 30,705,343 22.34
UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. UOB Holdings (USA) Inc. 3,478,459 1.61 147,357 0.11
R AEIE( B ERA T UOB Venture Management (Shanghai) Co., Ltd 806,531 0.37 699,405 0.51
FztelHEEMEFABRR/AT  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 757,430 0.35 - -
EIEMREARRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 189,565 0.09 - -
KRR A SBERAR szag%:ﬁg;? (ngftfgai) Investment 125,390 006 270,772 0.20
Tl (= ))BIERRA R Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 59,224 0.03 17,983 0.01
EFRITRDBR AT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 173,584 0.08 961,442 0.70
SRS = B A R AR R ggsgéag‘g;ﬁrg’gf[tza'ace Property 1,250 : i :
FIBYRBIRAFR UBI Logistics (China) Limited 323 - 9,282 0.01
R R R AR fneng Leong Guangdong Inveiment & : . amer 029
30,456,188 14.08 33,209,795 24.17
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20104 2009f &
Year 2010 Year 2009
&5 HEEZS 2 HE%ELZ S
ESSE Y2 DN Fee and commission income Amount EHLL (%) Amount S ELLBI(%)
KERITAIRAA] United Overseas Bank Limited 2,026,271 7.72 1,332,609 7.00
EFERITRNDBIR AT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 1,299,700 4.95 -
KEElFLREMFHAEHBMR/AR  Tianjn UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 821,181 3.13 1,000,000 5.25
VLB B B & B R A Shenyang Summer Palace Property 167,900 0.64 - -
Development Co.,Ltd
(B ) EE AR A Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 29,143 0.11 - -
FBEYRERAA UBI Logistics (China) Limited 11,220 0.04 275 -
EEREABRAT Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 6,286 0.02 - -
BEBE SR REBRAR Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium 3,000 0.01 - -
Amusement Park Limited
KE R AEEBRAR Kheng Leong Guangdong Investment & - - 2,491 0.01
Management Co., Ltd
RIE(EEE R ERER AR Kheng Leong (Shanghai) Investment - - 9,452 0.05
Management Co., Ltd
4,364,701 16.62 2,344,827 12.31
20104 20094
Year 2010 Year 2009
&8 HEIZXZ S X HE%EZS
FHHERAEZH Fee and commission expense Amount EELL5I(%) Amount EHLLHI(%)
BERITROEBRAT Evergrowing Bank Co., Limited 309,888 9.59 - -
20105 20095
Year 2010 Year 2009
] GRS i HE%ELZS
WEREEE General & administrative expense Amount S HLLB1(%) Amount &L 151(%)
BEEALZEFER IT support
-KERITER A -United Overseas Bank Limited 19,629,365 6.56 17,840,092 8.01
BE#EE Rental fee
-KEESRITHIRAF -United Overseas Bank Limited 515,376 0.17 515,376 0.23
(B ) EE AR F -Hua Ye Xiamen Hotel Limited 198,641 0.07 198,641 0.09
20,243,382 6.80 18,554,109 8.33
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201065 & 20094 ff
Year 2010 Year 2009
o HEEZ S £5 HE%ERZ S
FER G Software development Amount L 5I(%) Amount S ELLF)(%)
KEERITHIRAF United Overseas Bank Limited 10,150,370 74.00 6,190,671 72.00
2010-12-31 2009-12-31
ERRE EREE
Entrusted HEZEZS Entrusted HRE%ERZS
SR E Fiduciary activities deposits L 5I(%) deposits KRB F(%)
BIEMEABRAR Xiamen Tiger Medicals Co., Ltd. 3,000,000 13.04 - -
2010-12-31 2009-12-31
FRER FRER
Entrusted HRE%ERS Entrusted HR%ERZS
loan RELL (%) loan REALE51(%)
X s e = - Chengdu Haw Par Oceanarium
AN AN _ _
FLED R BN R E AR A A Amusernent Park Limited 3,000,000 13.04
2010-12-31 2009-12-31
REH HEA%ZS 25 HE%ZS
AAH S R EURIE Irrevocable loan commitment Balance RERLL (%) Balance REALL151(%)
Kyl FERMFHLEFRAT  Tianjin UOL Xiwang Real Estate Co.,Ltd. 181,879,187 91.33 - -
2010-12-31 2009-12-31
i HEXLS i HE%LE
TEEMTAEY Derivatives Balance REALL (%) Balance REALL 51(%)
KILERITHIRAF United Overseas Bank Limited 9,189,493,559 42.92 1,219,672,095 25.34

FARE ERRBEA TR ZRIBEERIR 5 & 43T,

FAREXRBERANREAPNUZHERMT:
AREBARBEARNANES. KERSREEAR.

FEEEARFEBMAOT:

M=z MENENERM], FRIEBWEREFHT,

Transactions between the Bank and related parties mentioned

above are carried out in normal course of business and
commercial terms and market price.

Transactions between the Bank and key management personnel
are as follows:
Key management personnel include directors, supervisors and
senior management.

Key management personnel’s salaries and benefits are as follows.

20105 20094E FF
Year 2010 Year 2009
ERFHE L HMEHER Employee salaries and other short-term benefits 37,488,590 31,281,932
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(11) Post balance sheet events

As at the date on which the financial statements are approved,
there is no material post balance sheet event that needs to be
disclosed or adjusted by the Bank.

(12) Comparative amounts

Certain comparative amounts have been adjusted to conform with
the current year’s presentation.

(13) Approval of the financial statements

The financial statements were approved for issue by the Board of
Directors on 1 April 2011.
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United Overseas Bank (China) Limited
Unit 105, 2F, 3F, 111 Dongyuan Road
Pudong New Area,

Shanghai 200120

Tel: (86) (21) 6061 3888

Fax: (86) (21) 6886 0908
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